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1. DEPT OF STATE HAS ADVISKD THAT THE FUNDING OF
$85,000 WILL BE PROCESSED THROUGH THEIR CHANNELS,
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MEMORANDUM FOR DEPUTY SECAETARY SULPATRIC
- Fwoms Brig. Gen. Lansdals
Subjess: PMiilppine Kiestias Prejest

tha eppesition
eloction ia the Philipgings.

 §
Ks thie the vight thing for the U. 5, te do?

CIA 3.3(5)(1)  peistes snd sstionsi semarity in toe Phliippines ave s
rolated that e U. 5. Delonse sotablichonent (our basew davowst doy
snd propurty) has & vory real stahs is the dosision
Weo nood 99 Do sovtain that & 0.8, desiolen wil)

of an alveady lnadeguate Philippine
ohrnstuve. The grevity of U.5. sesurity sesds in Asls as this
Mg Sictoles & rentistia agpeeionl of the progasal prier be & dosialen,

Based vpou perssant wipsvienss i Fhillppiae slocticns and upen
mum?mm the fellowing comunsnids aire slioved for

; 8. The U.5. does a0t have & cloan-out shules betwoan Masapagal
umm”m Boih prosent thamosives te the Mhilippine
' slasterain 58 pre-ti, 5, and to e U, 8. gaversment 50 friends.

b CGarsis i » szt vard-politisian, 10 sponding maors mongy
on the palitically-sewsvding things, sad has & wall-ran
| (e showed renl slill in onpletting the racast visis of e Filipise's
olaved MacArthey.) In other words, Garnia has & roslly good chanse
o0 win, barviag the unisvessen. I be wing, wnd has knowiadps of U, 8,
swppart e Me Sils would plase the V.8, in & bad pesition,
dnring o ¢ om in Asia,

«. However, the problom is not that shmple, Further facters

sarey meve welght, in youlisy,  The nLig question is: san the V.8,
asffesd t» pormit annther Oarvein Administration sush a5 the 166t anet

OSD 3.3(b)( 1 )
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Frvom & sationnl cosurity view, the asower et b an smphatis “ne, *
AMhough the prosent Administration inslades some able patriets and
true U.5. friands, e ond vosult of sorruption and mal-administration

(s Usle of peittionl value warth & Filipine's visking life to defond, and

and prasiises. Clher sonrses of U. 5, astion o8 inastion jawile an

is
' the capiive of o shilifully rigged balicting systom 8o sivewmwvent ene

. Would a Massgagal victery mesa seune sonstrustive palitisal
shunges dasived by the U, 8, 7 The asswer is you, initially. His firet
Cabinet andoubiedly wouls e compoved of abie snd waselfish sen whe
would stazt vebebiditetion through some apponling snd nergeiis pre-

and the emargmes of Libovel Fasty shalwazts (whe were quite venal

mere shjestive and prastical. Basically, the U, 5. made sortain that

utnoricy:
Chief, Ro
SEEREF




o

the 1953 slection was a "free election” through truly secret balloting
anu an houest count, that the real iaswes were preseuted thoroughly
10 the electorate, aac that ..agsaysay had freecom to cawpaign,
Almost all U, 5, political actions and the relatively amall U.5, funds
were axpendsd on just those ohjectives (although it was a complex
operation, tovk 9 months of hard work, and required intiinate kaow-
ledge of Fhilippine politics). ..agsaysay's own story of receiving
$3-niillion dollare from the U, 5. to belp him carapaign was untrue
and was told by him only to impress political leaders iuto supporting
him, yet, it still has currency. Since i hac those U. 5. funuing
responaibilities in 1953, 1 know bow much sruailer L. o, expsaditures
actunlly wers and for what, and 80 do tha groper L.o. fiscal authoritien,
The point in, we should heed the truth of the 1953 lessons and fres the
U, 5. to play a wiser and more constructive role i the Philippines
from now on. We might well concentrate on meains to allow the
Philippine eloctorate to sxprees itself truly through the balliot box,
this 18 an act of uncerstandsng (riendship to the Eilipino people aAnc

ar act of faithiulaess to sur own heritage, if cone properly.

g As for the 1961 slection, -:acapagal ana his party neea help
te insure honest inspection of the polls, effective curbs on fraud,
fxeedom of public assermblage, and freedon of movemaeat for canstidates
and political workers as authorised iu the Philippine Constitution and
Flectoral Code. It would ba good if the L,5. counid do this through a
non-partisan Filipino organisation, but an effective organisation
nsither exists nor could be created in time. lhe incumbeut Larcia
Administration bas given aaple svidence that i1t wtsacs to circumvant
the law,; (transfats of Constabulary perscanel contaio the key), lhus,
a miaimum U,.S, action should be the provisioa of funds, in the
recurest masner posaible, to help Macapagal and the opposition
exarcise their lawful right, If this is what the sum naniec is for, it
should be so0 stipulated and approved.

h. This specific funding is a winimum U, 5, action. The Philip-
pines situation requires more. Thus, it is recomuaendec that dtate
be asked to prepare & U,5. program of conetructive political action,
which should include actions which can be accomplished during the
1961 Presidential campeign, and submit this to the Lroup as & maiter
of urgency. While the i\oU itself might be a wmore proper piace to
submit the program, the Group is & current focal point of U, 5. atten-
tion to the problem, and is an NSC organisation which is facing up to
the mest sensitive aspects which naed resolving.
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Subjectr Activities Paramilitary Units Under Control and Direction
SIECE (Service de Dooumentation Exterieure et Contre-Expionage)
in Indochina

’ T Y CMA Br 0elim, RRes

. Zadoohimw sinoe its formation in 1951 has developed along the following

primary lines:
! » Resistance and counter-guerrilla sctivities utilising primarily .
minority tribgl groups in Northem and Central Vietnam snd in Loes.

I

f T (Thais, Meos, Muongs, Nungs).

* 2)§. Organisation sod treining of a special Vietnsmese parsmilitary
service. : 0SD 3.3(b)(1 )

3)6’, Commando and air-borne type operations, <IA B 3(5)(‘)

; ‘ %5 Fronmmtodbogm;mww

has grown ts ourrent sirength of approximately 300 w and 3000 i
e WS el
~paragiapb-ons have been generally uniwpressivg to dabe, Phia-heo-beon dus
to #n ingbility to surmount certain problems:
{4 The fear (primarily in French civilien political circles) that

onoe strengthened militarily,ths minority tribal groups might get out
of control and cause political difficulties for the French or the

governments of the Associated States. This has hampered full military
use in the past of the minority groups. Until recently the SDECE was
forbidden officially to deal with the Meos dus to the fears and opposi-

sition of the Lao Government. (In spite of this order the Meos have
been contacted md uwsed fairly effectively for over a year.) The

-

an 13- m-1346
EO 13526 3.3(b)(1)>25Yrs
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Date: . way 19 1M Ormation )
problen is camplicated by a growing lack of confidence in certain of

¢he minority group leaders who have developed a "wait and see" attitude
in their relations with the French as a result of recurrent French
defeats in the Thal country and upper Laos,
.2),9. Development of the Vietnamese M%“W service
I\ has been retarded by Frenco-Vietnamssghistrust and by recurrent
/{ difficulty with Vietnamese recruits chosen for training at the SDECE

o y directed school. The Vietnamese training program is still in the
: s experimental stage but, according to the SIECE Chief, will somm be o
expanded in coordinstion with the Chief of Staff of the Vietnamese *J'
s(Geneial Hink hos Selected 285 men from e Vieinamese Surete for 9
National Arwa It is believed that French interest in this program

stems mainly from a desire to slosely supervise and control Vietnomese
] Ve
steps in the SeHodeieqres field, The basic mistrust of
. CM
the Vietnamese by alee French officars nﬁm thatrﬂning cadre

will have to be overcome if any effective training is to be done,
In justice to these French officers it must be recogni,ed that, from
the French point of view, this mistrust has a sed~and-coddsd basis (v

‘ faet. /
3}& Mmmw have been too often

attached to purely orthodox military operations and used as regular
commando type forces in uwprefitub¥e rouline coastal landings. Examples
of thés are such operations as "Cajpestan" (Quang Ngai), "Toulouse"

(Qui Nhon), "Atlas’and Meknes" (Nhatreng and Phan Thist). Thw=SAROR-

o O MA
f:'(,. units have participated in these orthodox operations because:

ay GCMA
¥ 8 ke _oegmisattonroperaios-under-thecover-

-
- -

b

"%.‘;,y % GeMA of Cop g Jacgue




s v [24X S E LR IS

a4 ce e A v
nolip e ?n“: ﬁf.m ‘i!ﬁt‘ﬂfﬂf 'y pﬂ,u‘ nead

L [ TN R ]

Security Informati, -3-
/[\ is a regular airberne organization,
. éﬂ# Most of the pﬁ%mom offiocers are regular Arvmy

and dislike 1sola'bioﬁ from the-genered orthodox military

- 3‘ y operstions. The fact that promotions are slow for regular
officers on detached servioe iz a sore point.

c),ﬁ A certain amount of cooperative action with the Army is

nsoessary in order to survive officially in the confused
French military "family" in Indochina. The Avwy also directly
wg substential portion of the funds for the paramilitary

, CMA tu
mifiocant success W

main fields of aotivity have been: CIA 5.3{5)(1) 0SD 3.3(b)( I )
{)&, French insbility to provide fundemental motivation for native

_— unite,
28, Diffioult French inter-service relstions and bitter rivalries

which hamper effective development of essential operations,

3)9. Poor operational planning and inadsquate security conscicus-
ness on part of organization personnsl, (This is i.n process of being
improved by asaignmnt;fsmr counterespionage officers to the 1&3‘:‘1}}
wididaey organization for seourity duties.)

4)B. TInsdequate funds to properly support and maintain existing
units, Several of these units in Cochinchina have been "farmed out®™
accordingly to.plantations for garrison duty in order to mekt the

expenses of the organisation, DECH “ssg‘oewm
€O
.91. Lack of clsar objectives and support from Paris.  Chief, Records & Declass Div,
) Dste:
MAY 19 2014
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k. The two main areas of paramilitary operations using the minority
native groups are Northwest Tonkin and Central Laos.
§. Northwest Torkin: With the swport of the Thai chieftein
Deo Van Long three-haimiguerrilla groups have been formed along with

several other smallsr units., Units are composed solely of Thais

¢ .
g MngdhgimmwNonMngandmmndodbyatrenohm
Rl - service non-commissionsd officer. Units are in radio contact with a
]
*g i central in French-held Lai Chau and receive logistical support by air
W
5 ﬁ' g.' from Hanol by Army and civilian-leased planes, Drops consist mostly
40
£S5 of ammnition, cloth, salt and rice. The pasgmiatey service is ‘
pE% Y G s
g'w ‘g ¢ also in contact with Meo @lements north and west of Lai Cham.
3 olilo Hat 424 @0 quinilia, jora 8f 2,500 W flld Mes ovea. (Moung
O o 2 LG 3 add an nf » and gauinegd . l'___,.)
§R32 -
hdgg r-dvey-g o—gd-in i nens i e ope .
’!fga_x resiatence-actinity, Soms of these groupsfiémain active in very
2‘{.} reduced mmbers, There are no French officers with the Meos in this
i§ @ area and no radio contact at present.
:E ?; B. Central Laos (Xieng Khouang - Flaine des Jaiwes): Meos in
‘g N this area are primsrily under the control of the chieftain To By.
& 9

Unite owing allegiance to To By and to which are attached SDECE
+ vhugpd
M service non-coms ars located lm a tirole M

g. the French strong-point at the Plainedes Jarres. Most of these units
- are in radio contact. Through To By the French will attempt to control

)

the oplum crop ad trade in upper Laos and hdrass Vieiminh units

s gl
remaining in Lacs. They also hope these units % prove effsctive
hy g
in the event of the renewal of the Vietminh drive through Laos Amebbm

fall,

Security Infrrmation
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A\ #.7-In sditiong to thems two main areasy other smafl units exist

under the direction of the SDECE m gervice, These are primarily

in the Upper Laos-Nortiwest Tonkin frontier sone and along the Red River,
These units have localised missions ad occasionally cooperate in orthodox
military sctions based S8ew the French-held islands of resistence in

Vietminh territory (Lai Cheu, Phong Saly, Na San)., Tasse~units—tneiude:
Accord iug Yo
Dbgmpt-—stendven

French sources(and hase not e coroborated) jucaspemesuss

wagay UnitS include:

4

al.ds 3 Companies Thai guerrillas in the Muong Te (102-37, 22-28)
area.

) 200-300 armed men in the Ba Xat area (103-51, 22-36), broken

up into smaller temms., Organization was spurred by 60 trained ~

saboteurs dropped along the west bank of the Black River
osdduly
between Jmmryll?SB.mm

C)& 200 armed men in the Phong Saly area (102-06, 21-41).
)@ 100 men at Kuong Stag (101-09, 21-11)
€).& 300 men N.W. Ba Xat (103-51, 22-31). This mz}‘parmuy
srmed with modern rifles, rest with home-made arms.[tZs led
by French-trained Wungg recaptured Phong Tho {103-26, 22-36)
' in early July 1953,
§) 22 100 men east of Muong Knoua (102-30, 21-00).
?},a: S0Umen in the Dien Bien Phu area (103-00, 21-10).
4),'& Other minor vnits, mostly in the proosss of formation, exist in
Central Aunam, WesJiimited activity in Cochinchina is centered in the Vietainh
sones north snd west of Saizon shere small units?furmerly in Southern

Informatic

I i




DECLASSIFIED IN PART
Authonty: EO 13526 PTT s o)
R vk B ;jl

1

) -6~
I Cochinchina are being used, Activity in Cambodia other than & small
training instdllation at Kep (10k-19, 10-29) is negligible due to the per-

sistant opposition of the Cambodian Government,
I ————————

7. The above stremgth figures are spproximafions only, The guerrills
units will not necessarily remain in the sectore listed. However, an
important fact, is that the bulk of the minority units can only be used in

their own native zones, They cannot be used offaotmfly in other areas. L
! %Moﬂvgw mlil smm;a

straight intelligence gathering teams in the Viet Minh sones. This activity

has baeen carried out with only varying degrees of success, This is a fisld

in which greater concentration of effort should be made. 0SD 3.3(b)( 1 )
‘ﬁ... During the past nu"

ACMA SHECE, CIA 3.3(b)s
then@BBIR has visited the following installations under SBES® control: -
).b Cap St. Jaoques (South Vietnaw). The astin, shhool

at Cap St. Jacques for guerrilla warfare training hauﬁ French and

4§ indigencus instructors on its staff. Courses are given in radio,

sabotage, psychologicsal and political warfare, close combat and Judo, Mf(’"
M infiltration of installapions and jungle warfars. Because of the -

generally low mentality of the students (to date primarily from the . 1

native minority groups), training is overly supervised. The school 1
has been in operstion for almost two ysars. In genmeral the instructors

!

are of high caliber,

.z),—n; Quan Toi (Terre Rouge, Rubber Plantation, South Vietnam).
A small installation, Unit from here is oceasionally bowrowed by
Army for coastal operations.

4 5t

5-&1-;:}\«1 . ey Ton® ny o e "'
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3) 4K Cu Lao Re Island - off the Central Annamess coast, this

SDECE oontrolled installation is used as a base for diianr wnite

engaped in coestal operations., Ielend-—het—sn-aivdivip-oepable-eof—
Smmivieg 0-47'sy s Yo ‘wonds adrsh k.

4) % Hon Me (105-56, 19-21). An island off the stwongly Vietaizh
held coast of northern Annam. This island serves as a base ’f.or
mainland sabotage and agent operations. Due to its location off the
heartland of the Communist sone it is belleved to haves a great
potential if properly developed.

§®. Haiphong. Support base for Hon Me island and radio oemtral,

)@ Tourans, ("Ilot de 1'Observaticn”). A training instsllation
for paratroops and maritime training, ,

'j}. Hanoi, Headguarters for Tonkin M o@rat:l.om ,
radio central, and training school.

£}8 Pc Yen (105-12, 20-14). Paramilitery installation for
operations directed against the Thal Nguyen area. Work in this area
has been notably unsueccessiul,

9).% lai Chau. Small training installation sd radio central far
Northweat Tonkin region.

,.-ga. Kep (10419, 10-29) (Cambodisn coast). Small training instal-
lation primarily simed at developing means for impeding Vietminh
coastal traffic in Cambodia and southern Cochinchina,

1), Other small installations (not visited) are located at Luo
Nam (106-24, 21-18) and Tien Yen (107-2, 21-19) in North Vietnam and ,
at Kontum (108-00, 14~22) in the plateau srea of Southern Annum, ’.-'
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speocialiced-paramiiibayyvervice -as-observed-during-the pest-yeav-and-noted—~

briafly in .this.repori,-we~-believe—i4 is engaged in a vital field of

s Qég wf‘infxe{ Salty,
operation in should recaeive adequate recognition and awport)

whatl GCMA
A -hﬁnsﬁalhtim wisided-wy-the-0Ek-obserwwer offer a substantial potential

for the training of speclalised tewns during the next 12-18 months, e aud téat

m,mcm contains officers with excellent training and
Associalod Stalsg .
However, n'l&u‘.

p is the proper unit to direct

any large expansion of comnter~gusrrilla mmuhm

the
it GCMA shonld finiy acnd tfrale

“Lryining-and-operstionof small specialised teams for guerrilla missions,

gabotage, egcape and evaaiom, eto.) Wosk.di-Zhane-ihalisonn-bont-bo-done-

brading GCAIA ad.
P 1 compact organisstion operating in close coordination with the Thewnt,

Mkibbony High Command.

CIA 36(:) os 3.3(b)! )

. [
st

s LD P . . W5 ke BN R Ll I et

w— R P e M ETRREe *,;'*‘-
2500-pounds-—tetrahodrensy—wbori~ello\vill contime to try to provide assistance

in terms of special equipment where warranted and not available through

h 4':"."*( “l‘tﬂ‘f
normal c:hamna?l.ts.”r * cial 'amphasia, if approved by Washington, will be

placed on expanding the potential ad effectiveapess in terms of both
_—_— L | BT ea s
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Dear Villiers:

It has been suggested by ASCHM that I write you this perasonal
letter in order to explain to you the trus position of this organisa~
tion as regaxrds the proposal which we understand the X Office is
considering as regards yourself, We are all particularly anxious
that you not be misled or given any misapprehensions with respect to
ouwr attitude in this cmneotion, and this is s matber whioch doss not
lond itself partioulsrly well to s oedbls exchange. In faot, it would
be preferable if we were able to discuss it orally, but I believe thab
I oan get ouwr points across adequately in this letber,

A faw days ago Mre. Y of the X Offioe the
and said that he was glving thought to recrult! or the X Office
at the end of your tour of duty in Saigon. He inquired as to the
probable duration and termination date of your stay in Saigon; asked
about the date of your return to the Air Poroe; and concluded by
asking whether EURARK would have any objection %o the spplication of
ce to the Air Force for your assigment to that office.
troubled at the time by a number of aspects of this telas~
call and reported it to me immediatsly, advising me
been said in the conversation. It is my understanding tha
attempted t0 indicate that the decision as to your future
the tormination of your towr whish is presently scheduled for some
December, was in aone dovbi, snd thet under the circumstances
not ses how KUBARK could reasomsbly object to fice
%o the Alr Yoroe for your assigment o them. not 1
too happy sbout the reply which he formulated, but sal ne -~ and
I agreed with him -~ that there was not very much else which he could
have ssid wder the oirewmstances of the conversation. In my dlsous-

slo s development with ASCHAM, ho was also inclined io agree
done the best that he o thought has :
na arisen in all of ow minds tha ponse could be '

suwbject to some misunderstanding or mi n on the part
of Mr, Y, We are mors oconcerned with the possibility that he may
make repressntations to either the Air Force or yourself, or both,
that KUBARK has sgreed to your assigment to the X Office, or is
otherwise quitewilling to have you acoept such an assigmuent.

CIA 3.3(b)(1).

0SD 3.3(b)( | )
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I am sure that I do not need to tell you that this s mot ot  NAY 19 2014
all the true position of KUBARK. The facts are quite simply as
:e lnt&:hm in our last conversations with you when you were
oxe, ol

8e Vo are very glad that you are remaining in Saigon
until " Debember;

be When you return to Washington at the and of your
present tour, we understand that yom propose to explore
Lfurther uﬂ:mmrm what future position and
assigments they msy wish to offer to you;

¢+ Dapending upon what the Air Foree has to offer
to youn, you may decide to omiinue to make the Alr Force
your ocareer or you may decide to resign from the Air Forve:;

de In the event of the latter decision, it would be
our hope and owr expectation that you would give favaradle
consideration to employment with KUBARK on a ocareer basis.

Confidentially, but quite frankly between us, we would not be at
a1l happy with the proaspact of yowr sesigmment to the X 0ffioe for a
variety of reasons, not the lesst of whioh is that we seriously doubt
that such an assigment would afford the proper scope for your rather
unique abilities, But in additiom to that, it is our feeling that if
you are to remmin with the Air Porce, but to be on detached duty from
i%, it would be far more satisfactory for you to be assigned to
KUBABK tasn to go into the X 0ffice «- which dees not have a unifam
record of consideration for our interests. I believe you are awsre
of oertain of the difficulties miohhmmmmthewb, but I
an sure that you do not know about all of these.

Fhis letter requires no snswer other than an sckmowledgment of
your receipt of it «» unless I have failed to make clsar any of the
points or unless I have erroneously stated the understanding whioh I
believe we have oconcerning your future course of sotion, May I
suggest that you destroy this letter after resding it, since its
only purpose is to anticipate, if possible, and correct if necessary
eny misapprehension which may be orested in your mind by same coue
munication which you may receive from the Pentagon.

noerely,

=SEGREP== CIA 3.3(;)0)

OSD 3'3(b)(l )




I \ EO 13526 3.3(b)(1)>25Yrs
C 2 1936 DECLASSIFIED INPART

Authonty: EO 13526

CIA 33(b)1)  osp3smy 1) "™ payp9

1 et we b A of wy Sutere Sxte noth-balls
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Mneowwdy, .

Ge 8, Villiewe
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Dear Douthet: G IA 2.3(b)()) 0sD3.3(b)( 1)

You and I would be eitting down for asome personal gab about this
time, under other ciroumstances,..because it's time for some talk.
But, this will have to substitute for the time being.

Ymrmyhmmabvmttnrmmm
today. ..and nade us happy by to stay on with the
family & while longer (and made them right happy, too). On the
other hand, there were some disturbing thinge about it. Ae I know
you understand and appreciate, the most disturbing was that a grand
perach whose office is across the street from yours indisated that

hommmttulotmmplmmticm +hen actually no such

exigtod. I'd hate to see anyth tmul.d aa
harmonious relationships
uoma, I'm atill quite mindful of ne :Ln t-ho put
12 I would come to him when he rea me, and my reply that

Unole could always find a way to do so, if thers was real need,
I'd hate to have him start feeling that Unele was starting to let

him dowm,..because if we lose him (which you know is not
impossible under current pressures), then wetd have a really tough
problem on owr hands.

But, the most disturbing part of sll was something that I've
resorved Just for the two of us, If I read your message sorrectly,
0lymph wrote it, possibly without reference by you to Lambsck. In
fact, that scared me., Lambeck is the one pearson you have who has

aml nfaeel® of the actual tensions at work under the non, He
and Stombock lmow that their valus as your

be far from epoiled in my assosiation wi

beooms close t0 them in the first place? whin s

part, as you and I know. Ny pressnce furnishing ssmunition to the
m:l:Amrima dosentt worry me very much...in fact the ocomment on

that aimply didn't sound to me like you at all, That's simply one
of the things we've besn through time and again sinoe you've been
in the Philippines. There's Jjust different lsadership behing it,
and mlightly different asmumnition being used.

I oouldn't uss the I-C gag, although 1'd intended something
similar, bocause my place thers hasn't opened up correctly yet..,
and any hints getdting over there from Manila that I might go
(at this time) might throw a real hitch into affairs. It's all
wixed up in a ocomplax affair involving various entities here and
in Burops and Asin. Nuts, it couldn't be much mors complex...and
has had me with ny nose to the grindstone on it, I have a lot to
learn, and have taken some part in shaping our play. All of which
has kept me from keeping closer tabs on affairs where you are.

Office of the Scerctary of Defense 50-.’. J_S.SZ ATEnyE—
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0SD 3.3(D)( 1) ls based to a fair extent, I imagine, ou letters being unanmwersd,

CIA 3.3(b)()

- 14ttle nudge to do it somewhat left-handedly,

The telephone call, of courss, brought me back into affairs, 1

went back over letters and visit from there, to try to
dig out what was really both It might be that he
feels & bit hopsless about just s dstration of his

affairs (letters unanswered, things not getting dome when he's
away, atc) or perhaps he's getting resdy to really open up an
attack on his current enemies and wented somsbody to give him a

But, reviewing ths nows, it op look far from be
Bueiness men in NY (according

ot al) are reseiving more and ottiers from the
omas in Menila towards the govermment, and the trend towards
investing or helping out there im starting to reverse itself, It

on nobody being prasent to take care of business, of some of the
large grants going to waste (sush as the recent $2 nillion one)

becauss nobody there even looked up and said *huh® about them. And,
of oourse, tryst belng 1k who apa olose to being wrong
gees (such & )to) in sarrying out
vardeus and dasior

sort of aimless haphasard.

ty placed WHEre
trying hard they tell me,
I took up an extension for Lasbeck with the right folks, and
they told me today that it was going to be okay far a one ysar
exbension. I feel strongly that some time bafore the
yoor, he should maks up his mind to some aboard as & staff aan.
It'e clearly the place he ehould be, However, the falks I talked
to didn't wowm t0 be.in a awsat over hin another year
(whieh others had told ms they would be).

X made a strong pitch for Lambesck to raceive a top decoration,
whioh the lads hed proposed end then sort of gone soft on, It wae
slignly embarpwening for we to do, but you know how I feel abomt
haaking you all up in the field. {hether T did any good oy not,
I don't know,

Renwber Sanlach? Despite my report on him to you, and your
own feelings re what he d4d, the only report on him that is in the
record hers is one frem (ymph when the fellow had been with us
only a short bime, saying that it war too early yet to determine
his usefulness, although we weren't too sanguine, That bas hurt
him here, and yot Y fosl that he wae all fired up to help us when
he returned. I've talked with him, snd will do what 1 ean to help

antetintialiafague®
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¥ihin out here — yet I know that you'want to be fair to the guy
and at least give him some sort of a rating on performance, I

perscnally think he did a damn good job on his trip south and that
we should say so, regardless of anything slse. It's hard to ecome
by folks who are willing to help us out in the local jungle here.

Your strong recomendation re a new job for Olymph had a
reaction heres all they could do would be to move him inte the
spot whers you wanted him (and some were quite gleeful about it,

and I fear their wotivis weren't kindly towards you or Glymph)
and, of course, then figure that he would have to be replaced by
someone suitabls. This someone is a guy I've talked to a little and
am not so happy about, Still lLumature, Alde to & national guard
general, prinveton, a littls stoeging for a few monthe in a familyf
buniness, then desk work shuffling papers for us with ons junket
visiting the field for a short period, A littls glismer of the big
idek, plessant mamners, but not even as eager as some of the other
boy mocuts. Your reccemendstion eountered my moves to protact youl,

so I hed to drop them, Please, please, please don't let the
sduinistrative characters dictate your opsrationsl moves and please,
please, please rely on the G-3 types. The adminietrative types have
a definite and valuable place, but can puin you vwhan they try to
operats. This last bit just sprang up as I was writing this para-
graph and isn't slanted towards individuale. Just soms general
adviee from a guy who is doggone fond of you and wunba you to loek

¥

good all along the line,

The desk folke hers are privately worried ss hell over the lack
of reports from your gang, I suspect that they've hidden the fact
somowhiat from the front office, vhioh incresses their worries. They
guess at the obvious, that chubby Willie is not well liked and
that parsonality irritations are the cause, And yet, you and the
folks at home will be the ones te get scmewhat burned fingers over
the denl, pevhaps. In esse it would help any, I've had s leng and
intiwate talk about him with the chap wvhom he replased. He tald me
that Willie had quite s baskgrownd as s kid of being too fat to b»
able &0 join the obher boys at play (elvmsy, ete) and hes quite an
inferiority complex as a result -~ and that maydbe a new spproach
by you of taking him under your wing a little more closely and
wayming him up might do wonders. Worth a try, bhub? And, 1'd
suggest that you look personally inte the lask of reports...talking
to thess folks yourself, individually.

Oh yos, tell Lamback please that I didn't forget his featherweight
specialn, The hasmerliess deals are still in the pilot stage, but
the folke have been hunting them all over the country. Thers might
be only two or thres which can be obtained. If so, I asked that
they be sent out, and the resainder of the required nusber be made
up of others (perhape a similer model with hamser), Also tell him

that I've had some talks with our bug fjuice frisnd and that what we
suspectad about the Juice was aorreot (our friend being mad &s bhall
about what we vere told, but officially helpless), It will take &
11ttle doing to get what Lambeck wanted from him further. The guy

eniuininiainiess
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is one of the staunchest allies wes ever made.

In betwsen the alarums and exoursions on dosens of other things,
I'm writing (siovly and painfully) a pol-war handbosk thing,
drawing out soms principles snd lessons from the 1950-53 experiences.
It's not & history, uses some of the happenings only s examples to
11Tustrate points,..but I might have to switeh it areund te loek
umore like a history, for lighter reading, snd to make my peints’
bafore the reader is aware of them. If as or when I ever finish the
thing (it sesms more like an albatress around the neck st times)
It11 send you the firet draft for camsent, ets, Wish it didn't have
to be 80 highly classified, because thers are sure a hesk of a lot
of folks sn our side who need to learn sone lessons, and this one
might help them soms.

Am sorry aboub what 1 hear re our mere fiery red-headed friend
and his bows, Dogpenit, I spent some time trying to tell him how
to love hanor and sbey & guy...for his imtegrity if for nothing
else, Anything you oan de to help patsh that one wp? I don't
want to ses them playing it outely. I'm doing what I can to help
them both out with their howe folks in various and sundry subtle
ways, when I can. However, if they keep aquabbling among thesselves,
they're the ones who will get hurt.,.because their home folks on
the lower desks hate thelr gute etill, and even more besawse
theytve been spanked by the big boye for it, They blocked the red
head's desired visit home, they souldntt find funds for this travel
in their budgets. They have a Jot of similar 1ittle tricks to pull
which slow down owr help. But, the guy whom our red head saved
and put in place to take over the desk is beowming a real payshe
(he hates our whale gang, turns an apoplectio red in the face when
he even hears ny name, and has gradually worked up a terrific
perssoutisn oomplex...dangsroust).

Re your aspistent, proposed. I argusd thab you were resdy and
willing 4o take over & 1ob mere direct supervision of atfalve than
in the past. But, owr heme folks are great believers in organie
sation charts and with you moving (yuph out of a spot, they insist
that that spet be filled again.,.whsther or not there is
for the guy to do. However, if I were you, I would stars taking
more of & hand in sparking up the boys...psrhaps begiming with
making&hnupmmﬂa(ﬂutlwadmtntthommpu
at home),

Please give my best to ail of the gang. They are frsquently in
uy thoughts and warsly so, .

Geoffray 8 Villiers
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY

WASHINGTON 28, D.C.

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

13 February 1951

Dear Leland:

Thanks for your recent leiter about Lansdale.
It was very timely.

Attached is a copy of one which I have just
written to Vandenberg urging his promotion and I am

supplementing this by a personal request. You will note
the final paragraph of this letter,

We are now in process, insofar as our authority
permits, of providing coordination for our own activities
in various critical areas by designating one official as

representative of the D or with such coor ting
authority. In your o Lansdale
is the man.

P private information, Lucian Truscott
is going & a8 my representative and will coordinate
our activi the adj)acent area.

Faithtully,

Walter B, Smith
Director
Encl.

CIA 3.3(b)(1)

Mejor Ueneral lLeland 8, Hobbs
Chief Advisor
Joint U, S. Military Advisory QGroup .
APO 928, c/o Postmaster 0sD 3.3(b)( 1 )

. San Francisco, California :
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September 27, 1951

Dear General Smith:

The Department hes recently received from Ambassador Myron

M. Cowsn in the Philippines the following commendation of
Lieutenant Colonel Edward Lansdale, who is approaching the end
of his assdgnment in Manilas

CIA 3.3(5)(;)

0SD 3.3(b)( 1 )

"During the past eighteen months Lt. Col. Edward

Lanadale has been in Manila attsched to JUSMAG. This has

hich I oonsider
to emn of the greates optance, and T learn with
regret that hls towr of duty in the Philippines is spprosch-
ing ocompletion. In effect, Colondl Lmnsdale has been the
right hand of the Seoretary of Nationgl Defense Magsaysay's
susoess in breaking the baokbone of the Huk military forces
and in dispersing the Philippine Communist organisational
setup. It is incomceivable to me that the Philippine situa-
tion would be as favorsble as it 1s without Colonel lane-
dale's superdb performance. He has lived day and night with
Magsaysay at very real risk to himself. He has guided and
advised him. He has provided a driving power and when
neceasary a restraining one and furthermore has been a
better souree of intslligmce than all the rest of our
intelligenoe efforts put together.

51 believe Colonel Lansdale dessrves the highest possible
commendation for his perfermance in the Philippines and I

wonld be grateful if my appraisal oould be made a part of his
official resord.”

1 coneur with Anbaasador Cowen!s reocommendation and suggest that

this commendation be made a part of Colonel Lanadele!'s military record.

Sincerely yours,
Jaxes E, Webb

The Honoreble

Walter B. Smith,

Direotor, Central Intelligence Agenoy. DECLASSIFIED Sg; PART
1EO 1
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Please note that this report is classified as "sensitive" ¥s) f
as well as "secret.

This is the condensed account of one year in the operations
of a ""cold war' combat team, written by the team itaelf in the
field, little by little in moments taken as the members could,

The team is known as the Saigon Military Mission, The field is
Vietnam. There are other teams in the field, American, Freach,
British, Chinese, Viettumese, Vietminh, and others. Each has
its own story to tell. This is oure.

The Saigon Military Mission entered Vietnam on 1 June 1954
when its Chief arrived. However, this is the story of a team,
and it wasn't until August 1954 that sufficient members arrvived
to constitute a team, S0, this is mainly an account of the
team's first year, from August 1954 to August 1955.

It was often a frustrating and perplexing year, up close.
The Geneva Agreements signed oa 21 July 1954 imposed restrictive
rules upon all official Americans, including the Saigon Military
Mission, An active and intelligent enemy made full use of legal
rights to scraen his activities in establishing his stay-behind
organisations south of the 17th Parallel and in obtaining quick
security north of that Parallel. The nation's sconomy and com-
munications system were crippled by eight years of open war.
The government, including its Army and other security forces,
was in a painful transition from colonial to self rule, making
it a year of hot-tempered incidents, Internal problems arose
quickly to points whers armed conflict was sought as the only
solution. The enemy was frequently forgotten in the heavy at-
mosphere of suspicion, hatred, and jealousy.

The Saigon Military Mission received some blows from allies
and the enemy in this atmosphere, as we worked to help stabilise
the govermment and to beat the Geneva time-table of Communist
takeover in the north. However, we did beat the time-table.

The government did become stabilized. The Free Vietnamese are
now becoming unified and learaing how to cope with the Communist
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enemy, We ars thankful that we had a chancs 1o help in this work

in & critical area of the world, te be positive and constructive in a
year of doubt. .

O. MISSION

The Ssigon Military Mission (5MM) was born in & Washington
policy measting sarly in 1954, when Dien Bien Phu was otill holding
out against the encircling Vietminh. The SMM was to enter into
Vietnam quietly and assiet the Vietnamese, rather than the Freach,
in unconventional warfare. The French wers to be kept as friendly
allies in the puocess, as far as possible.

mumw.mmmumu;w@m’.mmm
opsrations against the enemy and to wage pelitical-paychological
wariare. Later, after Geneva, the mission was medified to pre-

pare the means for undertaking paramilitary oparations in Com.
munist areas rather than to wage unconventional

On the stens, the team wadertook another ssseatial task in
warfare, & task which has been overiosked dy our side on a mum.
ber of “cold war' battlegrounds. This task was to provide some
mussure of stafl work and esordination for the U.5. leader (the
Ambassador, in his rols as Chief of Mission), to help him weld
a political-military-esconomic-unconventionsl warfare team re-
quired for success in the “cold war.” It was this sslf-imposed

task which added the sxtra hours of work each day, and for which
this team has bacome notad,

In & "hot" war, & military commander has 3 staff to assist
him and & commandar for each unit in the ferces under him. In
a "cold® war, the U,8. commander is usuanlly & civilian and has

a commandsr for each wait under him, political, peychologieal,
sconomic, military, and wncenventional. The Embassy staff is

made to function as a gensral staff by necessity, bst has listle

time to do 50 and still mest Washingten requirements levied on

it, Embassy staff members have become little more than official
reporters for Washington agencies. The "country team" i» not s
staff in & military sense. It is in reality a commandars confersnce,

In Vietnam, we are facing an enemy who has a gensral staff
experienced in the strategy and tactics of 3 “gold"” war, This

means that the enemy fights as a team, making effective wse of
political, psychological, scomomic, military, and unceaventional
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forces by using them in & coordinated manner. It is this team-
work by the snemy which has brought us so many staggering de-
feats after the shooting stopped in World War II; staggering,
bacause in that brief period the enemy has occupied and now
holds 2 3/4 million square miles of land which was formerly
free and has made captive some 700-million human beings who
were formerly free.

SMM's self-imposed task of performing cold-war staff functions
for the Ambassador grew out of the nscessities of the situation,
received official sanction for the coordination part of its role,
but was not always uaderatood. The team recognised the necessity
and performed well, for it knows that its primary mission is to
help bring defeat to the Commaunists, and providing staff work is
one vital role for victery,

II. HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

a. Early Days

The Saigon Military Mission (SMM) started on | June 1954
when its Chief, Colons! Edward G. Lansdale, USAF, arrived in
Saigon with a small box of files and clothea and a borrowed type-
writsr, courtesy of an SA-16 flight set up for him by the 13th Air
Force at Clark AFB, Lt-General John O'Daniel and Embassy
Charge Rob McClintock had arranged for his appointment as
Assistant Alr Attache, since it was improper for U.S. officers
at MAAG at that time to have advisory conferences with Vistnamess
officers. Ambassador Heath had consurred already. There was
no desk space for an office, no vehicle, no safe for filas, He
roomed with General O'Daniel, later moved to & small house rented
by MAAG. Secret communications with Washington were provided
through the Saigon station of CIA.

There was deapening gloom in Vietnam. Dien Bien Phu had
fallen. The French were capitulating to the Vietminh at Gensva,
The first night in Saigon, Vietminh saboteurs blew up large am-
munition dumps at the airport, rocking Saigon throughout the
night. General O'Daniel and Charge McClintock agreed that it
was time to start taking positive action. O'Daniel paved the
way for & quick first-hand survey of the situation throughout the
country, McClintock paved the way for contacts with Vietnamese
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political leaders. Our Chief's reputation from the Philippines
had preceded him. Hundreds of Vietaamess acquaintanceships
were made gquickly.

Working ia close gooperation with Ceozrge Hellyer, USIS
Chief, a new psychological wariare campaign was devised for
the Vietnamese Army and for the govermment in Hanoi. Shortly

after, a vefresher course in combat psywar was constructed and
Vietnamese Army personnel were rushed through it. A similar
course was initiated for the Ministry of Information. Remor

campaigns were added to the tactics and tried out in Hanoi. It
was almost too late,

The first sumor eampaign was to be a carefully planted story
of 2 Chinese Communist regiment in Tonkin taking reprisals against
& Vietmink village whose girls the Chicoms had raped, recalling
Chingse Nationalist troop bahavior in 1945 and confirming Viet-
samgse fears of Chinese occupation under Vietminh rule; the
story was to be planted by scldiers of the Vietnamese Armud
Peywar Company in Hanoi dressed in civilian clothes, The troeps
received their instructions silently, dressed in civilian clothes,
wont on the mission, and falled to raturn, They had deserted to
the Vietminh. Weaks later, Tonkinese told an excited story of the
misbebavior of two Chinese Divisions in Vietminh territery, In-
vestigated, it turned out to be the old rumor campaign, with Viet.
namese emballishments.

Thare was political chaos. Prince Bun Loc ne longer headed
the government. Government ministries all but closed. Bao Dal
remained at Cannes. The more volatile loaders of political groups
were proposing revolution, which inciuded armed attacks on the
French, Col. Jean Carbonel of the French Army propesed estad-
lishing & maguis with Vietnamese (Nungs and others) knewn $0 him
close 1o the Chinese border and asked for our backing. Our reply
was that this was a policy decision to be made between the FEC top
command and U.S. authorities.

Oscar Arsllano, Junior Chamber International vics-president

for Southeast Asia, stopped by for a visit with our Chief; an ides
in this visit later graw into "Operation Brotherhood",
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On 1 July, Major Lucien Conein arrived, as the second mem-.
ber of the team. He is & paramilitary specislist, well-known
to the French for his help with French-operated maquis in Ton-
kin against the Japansse in 1945, the one American guerrilla
fighter who had not been a member of the Patti Mission. He
was assigned to MAAG for cover purposes. Arranged by 1t-Col
Wm. Resson, a mesting was held with Col Carbensl, Col Nguyen
Van Vy, and the two SMM officers; Vy had seen his first combat
in 1945 under Conein. Carbonel proposed establishing a maquis,
to be kept as a secret between the four officers. SMM refused,
learned later that Carbonel had kept the FEC Deuxieme Bureau
informed. Shortly afterwards, at a Defenss conference with
Genersl O'Daatel, our Chief had a chance to suggest Vy for a com-
mand in the North, making him & gensral. Secrstary of State for
Defenss 1o Ngoc Chan did so. Vy was grateful and remained so.

Ngo Dinh Diem arrived on 7 July, and within hours was in
despair as the French forces withdrew from the Catholic provinces
of Phat Diem and Nam Dinh in Tonkin, Catholic militia streamed
north to Hanol and Haiphong, their hearts filled with anger at French
abandonment. The two SMM officers stopped a plannsd grenads
attack by militia girls against French troops guarding a warehouss;
the girls stated they had not eaten for three days; arrangements
were mads for Chinese marchants in Haiphong to feed them. Other
militia attacks were stopped, including one against a withdrawing
French artillery unit; the militia wanted the guns to stand and fight
the Vistminh, The Tonkiness had hopes of American friendahip and
listensd 0 the advice given them. Governor Tri died, reportedly
by poison. Tonkin's goverament changed as despair grew. Oa
2l July, the Geneva Agreemant was signed, Tonkin was given to
the Communists. Aati-Communists turnsd te SMM feor halp in
establishing a resistance movement and several tentative initial
arrangements were made.

Dism himself had rsached a nadir of frustration, as his couniry
disintegrated after the conference of foreigners. With the approval
of Ambassador Heath and General O'Daniel, our Chisf drew up a plan
of overall governmental action and presented it to Diem, with Hellyer
as interpreter. It called for fast constructive action and dynamic
loadership. Although the plan was not adopted, it laid the foundation
for a {riendship which has lasted.
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Osenr Arellanc visited Saigon again. Major Charles T. R.
Bohannan, a former team-mate in Philippines days, was in town,
At an SMM confsrence with these two, "“Operation Brotherhood"
was born: wvoluntesr medical teams of Free Asians 1o aid the
Free Vietnamase who have faw doctors of their own, Washington
responded warmly to the idea. President Diem was visited; he
issued an appeal 1o the Free World for help. The Junior Chamber
International adopted the idea. SMl would monitor the operation
quistly in the background.

President Diem had organised a Committes of Cabinet Ministers
to handle the problem of refugees from the Communist North. The
Committes system was a failurs. No real plans had been made
by the French or the Americans. After conferences with USOM
{FOA) officials and with Gensral O'Daniel, our Chief suggested to
Ambassador Heath that he call a U, S. maesting to plan & single
Vistnamenss agency, under & Commissionsr of Refugees to be
appointed by President Dism, to run the Vistnamese refuges program
and to previde a channel through which help could be given by the
U.8., France, and other free nations. The meeting was called and
the pian adopted, with MAAG under General O'Daniel in the coordinat.
ing role. Diem adopted the plan, The Freach pitched in enthusias-
tically to help. CAT asked SMM for help in obtaining a French con-
tract for the refuges airlift, and got it, In return, CAT provided
MM with the means for secret air travel between the North and
Saigon.

Later, through Dr. Wasley Fishel who was an intimate friend
of President Diem, we induced the Vistnamese goverament to honor
U.8,. and other personnel who had aided in refugee work. We devised
a Presidantial Citation ribbon which was awarded to military person.
nel. The citation iteslf was written by us. A sumber of SMM per-
sonnel most intimately connected with aiding the refugess never
received this honor, for "cover" reasous.

b.  August 1954

: An agresment had been reached that the personnel ceiling of
U.S. military personnel with MAAG would be froxen at the number -
present in Vietnam on the date of the cease-fire, under the terms

of the Geneva Agresment. In South Vietnam this deadline was to

be 11 August. It meant that SMM might have only two members
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present, unless action were taken, General O'Daniel agreed to
the addition of tan SMM men under MAAG cover, plus any others
in the Defense pipeline who arrived before the deadline. A call

for help want out. Ten officers in Korea, Japan, and Okinawa
were selected and were rushed to Vietnam.

SMM had one smaall MAAG house, Negotiations were started
for other housing, but the new members of the team arrived be~
fore housing was ready and were crammed thres and four to a
hotsl room for the first days. Mestings were held to asesss
the new members' abilities. Nene had had political-psychological
warfare experience, Moat were expsrienced in paramilitary and
clandesting intelligence operations. Plans were made quickly,
for time was running out in the north; already the Vietminh
had started taking over secret control of Hanol and other areas
of Tonkin still held by French forces.

Major Conein was given responsibility for developing a
paramilitary organisation in the noxth, to be in position when
the Vietminh took over. He was assigned Army Captain Micbasl
Moriarty, Navy Lt Robert Andrews, and Army Lt Frank Garbers.
With Gensral O'Daniel's help, this team was moved north immedi-
ately as part of the MAAG staff working on the refugee problem.
The team had headquarters in Hanoi, with a branch in Haiphong.
Among cover duties, this team supervised the refugee flow for the
Hanol alrlift organised by the French. Oune day, as a CAT C-46
finished loading, they saw a small child standing on the ground below
the loading door. They shouted for the pllot to walt, picked the
child up and shoved him into the aircraft, which then promptly
taxied out for its takeoff in the constant air shuttle. A Viet-
naAmess TAD and woman ran up to the team, ssking what they had
done with their small boy, whom they'd brought out to say good-~
bye to relatives. The Chagrined team explained, finally talked
the parents into going south to Free Vietnam, put themn in the next
aireraft to catch up with their son in Saigon.

Army Lt Rufus Phillips and Marine Capt Arthur Arundel
volunteered to assist in political-psychological warfare and
were assigned for liaison with G-5 of the Vietnamese National
Army, with the community self-help program of the Ministry of
Social Action, and with USIS, They learned rapidly. Arundel
iatex was case officer for some effective "black" strikes aguinst
the Vietminh. Phillips became an outstanding psychological
warrior, beloved by the Vietnamsese Army.
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Navy 1t Joseph Redick, with his excellent French, was made
executive assistant to the Chief. He worked twelve to twenty hours
& day in our labors to shape weapons against the Vietminh and con-
struct & political base for the struggle. Lt Redick had rushed in
directly from Washington to beat the deadline.

A second paramilitary team was formed to explore possibili-
ties of organixing resistance against the Vietminh from bases in
the south. This team consisted of Army 14-Col Raymond Witt-
mayer, Army Major Fred Allen, and Army 14 Edward Williams.
The latter was our only experienced counter-espionage officer
and undertook double duties, including working with revolutionary
political groups. Major Allen eventually was able to mount a
Vistnamess paramilitary sffort in Tonkin from the south, barely
beating the Vietminh shutdown in Haiphong a8 his teams went in,
trained and squipped for their assigned missions.

Navy 1t Edward Bain and Marine Captain Richard Smith were
assigned as the support group for SMM, Actually, support for
an effort such as 8MM is & major operation in iteell, running the
gamut from the usual administrative and personnel functions to the
imtricate business of clandestine alr, maritime, and land supply of
paramilitary materisl. In effect, they became our official smugglers
as well as paymasters, housing officers, transportation officers,
warchousemen, fils clerks, and mess officers, The work load was
such that other team members frequently pitched in and helped.

¢. September 1954

Highly-placed officials from Washington visited Saigon and,
in private conversations, indicated that current estimates led to the
conclusion that Vietnam probably would have to be written off as a
loss. We admitted that prospects were gloomy, but wers positive
that there was still a fighting chance.

On 8 Septamber, SMM officers visited Secretary of State
for Defense Chan and walked into a tense situation in his office.
Chan had just arrestsd 14-Col Lan (G-6 of the Vietnamess Army)
and Capt Giai (G-5 of the Army). Armed guards filled the reom,
We wers told what had happened and assured that sverything was
all right by all three principals, lLater, we discovared that Chan

8
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was slons and that the guards were 14-Col Len's commandes. lan
was charged with political tervorism (by his "action” squads) and

Giat with anti~-Diem propaganda (using G-5 leaflet, rumor, and
hreadeast facilisies). !

% * Authority: EQ 13526

The arrest of Lan and Gial, who simply refused to consider
themselves arrasted, and of 14 Minh, officer in charge of the
Army radio station which was guarded by Army troops, brought
inte the open a plot by the Army Chisf of Staff, Genaral Hinh, to
overthrow the goverament, Himh had hinted at such & plot to his
Amprican frisnds, using s silver cigarette box givea him by
Egypt's Nagulb to convey the hint. BMM becams thorenghly in-
volved in the tense controversy which followesd, dus to our Chief’s
clossnsss to both President Diem and Ganeral Hinh. He had met
the Jattsr in the Philippines in 1952, was a friend of beth Hink's
wifs and favorite mistress. (The mistress was a pupil in a smalil
Inglish class conducted for mistresses of important perecanges,
at thely request, by 1t Redick),

Whils various U.5. officials including Gensral O'Danisl and
Fovelgn Service Officer Frank Meloy participated in U, 5. attempts
$0 hoal the split Dotween the President and his Army, Ambassador
Haath asked us to make a majoy effort t0 and the controversy.
This offers strained relations with Dism and never was suscossful,
but did dampen Avmny enthusinsm for tha plot. At ens moment, when
thare was Jikeliboed of an attack by armered vehisles on the Proesi-
dential Palace, SMM teld Hinh hiuntly that U.S. support most prob-
ahly would stop in such an event. At the sama time a growp frem
the Presidential Guards asked for tantical sdvice on how to stop
armered vahicles with the oaly weapons aveilable ts the Guards:
carbings, rifies, and hand grenades. The advice, e tank traps
and destruction with improvised weapoas, must have sounded grim,
The following moraing, when the attack was 3o take plage, we
visited the Palace; not & guard was left on the grounds; President
Dismn was alons upstairs, calmly getting his work done,

As & result of the Hinh trouble, Dism started locking around
for troops upon whom he could count. Soms Tonkimsse militia,
vefugses from the north, ware assembled in Saigon close 1o the
Palace. But thay weras insufficiant for what he nesded. Dism made
an agresment with Gensral Trinh Minh The, lsader of somse $, 000
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Cao Dai dissidents in the vicinity of Tayminh, to give General

The some nesded financial support; The was to give armad support
to the goverament if necsssary and to provide a safshaven for the
goverament if it had 20 flee. Tha's guarrillas, kaowa as the Lien
Minh, ware strongly astionalist and were still fighting the Vietminh
and the French. At Ambassador Heath's request, the U.5. secretly
furnished Diem with funds for The, through the SMM. Shertly
afterwards, an invitation came from The to visit kim. Ambassador
Heath apgproved the visit,

On 15 Septembar, & small SMM party in civilian clothes visited
Trink Minh The at his mountain hideout, Nui Ba Dea, not far frem
Tayninh, His troops and small arms factories ware inspacted. He
pledged suppert to the goveramaent, asked for U.S, friendship, and
agreed only to defend himself against the Freuch and net initiate
sttasks. Unkaown to the French high command, The later made &
pact with local French commanders to parmit them to report apera~-
tions which actually were colitrived so that the forces did not meet.
At SMM's vequest, Genaral The released French prisonsrs be hald,

Shertly after the General The meeting, the French cemplained
officially to Ambassador Heath, asking that Lansdale be recalled
from Vietnam for his anti- French work, Ambassador Heath refused.
The French had a vielant hatred for The, blaming him for the death
of General Chanson, and had implanted agents close to him.,

President Diem sncouraged comtacts betwesn SMM and sest
military Jeaders such as Trink Minh The, Shortly after this, he
had Hoa Hae Gensral Nguyen Giac Ngo contact us, sxplaining that
he didn't want us to give material halp to Ngo, but to teach Ngo
how to earn the love and affection of bis people, Ancther leadar
was Hea Hao General Lam Thanh Nguyen, whoamn Dism warned us
was avarisious, ¥Fellowing Disam's advics, we kept our contacsts
with Nguyen brief and secial,

The northern SMM team wnder Conein had organized a para-
military group {(which we will disguise by the Vietnamese aama of
Bink) through the Northern Dai Viets, a political party with loyalties
to Bao Dai. The group was to be trained and supported by the U. 5.
as patriotic Vietnamaese, t0 come syeatually under govermuent
control when the government was veady for such activities. Thirtsen
Binhs ware quietly exfiltrated through the port of Haiphong, under
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the direction of 14 Anirews, and taken on the first stage of the
journey to their training area by 8 U.5, Navy ship., This was the

firet of a series of helpful actions by Task Force 98, commanded
by Admiral Sabin,

Azother paramilitary group for Tonkin opsrations was being
developed in Saigon threugh Gemeral Nguyen Van Vy. In September
this growp started shaping up fast, and the project was given to

“&owg. (We will give this group the Vietnamese name of
20,

Our paramilitary groups came from political parties which
later developed into opposition against President Diem, making
our work highly sensitive, Both the French and British have
dabbled in the troubled waters of these political parties,

On 25 September, the government was reo-shuffied to make reom
for Cao Dai and Hoa Hao leaders in the Cablust. The United States,
among others, had advocatsd this move as part of "broadening the
Wbﬂ:oonsstgz. Cabinet mestings tosk on a distinct Mach.

vellian air,

Towards the end of the menth, it was lsarned that the largest
printing sstablishmant in the north intended t0 remain in Hanol
and do business with the Vietminh, An attempt was made by SMM
to destroy the modern presses, but YVistminh security ageats al-
resdy had meved into the plant and frustrated the attempt. This
operation was under & Vietaamess patriot whom we shall call Trieu
Dinh; his case officer was Capt Arundel. Earlier in the month,
they had engineered a black psywar strike in Hanol: leafleto
signed by the Vietmink instracting Tenkinase on how te behave
for ths Vietmink takeover of the Hanel region in early October,
including items about property, money reform, and a thres-day
holiday of workers upon takeovar. The day fallowing the dis-
tribution of thesse leaflets, refugee registration tripled. Two
days later, Vietminh currency was worth half the value prior to
the leaflets. The Vietminh took to the radio to denounce the
loafiets; the leaflats wars so authentic in appearance that even
most of the rank and {ile Vietminh were sure that the radio de-
ounciations wers a French trick,

The Hanol psywar strike had other consequences, Dinh had
enlisted a high pelice official of Hanol as part of his team, to
effect the release from jail of any team members if arrested.

1
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SMM "Black' leaflet distributed in Hanol just before the Vietminh

:atond the city. The Vietminkh were largely unsuccessful in denying
s,

VIET-NAM DAN.CHU CONG-HOA -- nam thu X

BONG BAO THU-BO HOANG-DIEU:

May tham dwr ewoe <ai lien-hoan
ky niem ngay thu do Hoang-Dieu
dwee gial phong.

UY BAN KHANG CHIEN HANH CHINE
HOANG-DIEU you sau toan the dan chung nol
ngoai thanh Hoang-Dieu bay hwong wng cuce
del lisa-hoan treng ba ngay de Tong-tong-doan
lao~-dong Vist-Nam te-chwe voi sw hop tae eua
chink quysn nhan dan de an murng ngay thu do
Hoang-Dieu dwes gial phong khoi ach no-le
cua chinh phe bu nkin lam tay sai cho thee
dan Phap.

Trong dip de:

1) Cong nhan bat luan cas nganh, tre
nganh Cong An, se dwos nghi ba ngay 1,12,
18 thang mwel,
2) Ho Chu-~tish, sau 8 nam xa cach, se chinh
thure ra mat dong bao thu do tai Cong truong
Nha Hat Lon vae ngay 12 thang 10 sap tei.
3) D¢ that chit tinh than thisn quoc te
voi nhan dan Viet-Nam, cong nhan Lisn So va
cong nhan Trung-quoe se gl bieu thwe pham va
Quan a0 cho cac cong nhan bi song dwol ban tay
sat cua dich tai Thu-do. Nhung tang pham do
ae dwoe phat khong cho dong bao trong ba
ngay lisn-hoan sap tori,
UY MAN KHANG CHIEN HANH CHINH
THANH HOANG-DIEU
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The official at the last moment decided to assist in the leaflot distri-
bution personally. Police officers spotted hitm, chased his vehicle
through the erapty Hanoi streets of early morning, finally opened fire
on him and caught him. He was the oaly member of the group caught.
He was held in prison as a Vietminh sgent.

4. Octobey 1954

Hanoi was evacuated on 9 October. The northern SMM team left
with the last Freach troops, disturbed by what they had seen of the
grim- efficlency of the Vietminh in their takeover, the coatrast between
the silent march of the victorious Vietminh troops in their tenais shoes
and the clanking armor of the well-squipped French whose western tactics
apd eguipmaent had failed against the Communist military-politicel~

economic campaiga. CIA 3_3(5)(;) 0SD 3.3(b)( {1 )

The northern team bad spent the last days of Hraol in contaminating
the oil supply of the bus company for a gradual wreckage of engines in
the buses, ia taking the first actions for delayed sabotage of raiirond
{which required teamwork with a CI1A special techaical t«ﬁm
perioxmed their part dbrilliantly), snd in writing detailed o potential
targets for future paramilitary operations {U.5. adhereace to the Geneva
Agresment pravented SMM from carrying out the active sabotage it
desired 10 do agalast the power plant, water facilities, harbor, and bridge).
The teamn had a bad moment when contaminating the oil,  They had to work
quickly at aight, 10 an sacloaed storage room. Fumes from the contami-
oant came closs to kaocking them out. Dissy sad weak~kneed, they masked
their faces with baadkerchisfs and completed the job,

Meanwhile, Folish and Rusasian ships had arrived in the south to trans-
port southern Vietminh to Tonkia uader the Geneva Agressmeant. This
offsxred the opportunity for another black psywar strike. A leaflet was
developed by Diah with the help of Capt Arundel, attributed to the Vietminh
Resistance Commitiee. Among other items, it resssured the Vietminh
they would be kept safe below decks from imperialist air and submarice
attacks, and requested that warm clething be brought; the warm clothing
itemn would be coupled with & verbal rumor campaiga that Vietminh were
being sent into China as rxailroad laborers.

SMM had been busily devsloping G-5 of the Vietoamese Army for such
peywar offorts. Under Arundel's direction, the First Armed Propaganda
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Company printed the leaflets and distributed them, by saldiers in
civilian clothes who enetrated into southern Vietminh zones on foot.
(Distribution in Camau was made while columnist Josesh Alsop was

on his visit there which led to his sensational, glovmy articles later;
our soldier "Viatminh' failed in an attempt to get the leaflet into
Alscp's hands in Camaun; Alsop was never told this stozy). Intelligence
reports and other later reports revealed that village and delegation
coranittees complained about “‘daportation” to the north, after distri~
bution of the 1saflet,

SMM had bean working to develop & civilian-military team of
Vietnamens for “pacification” of Vietminh dominated areas south of
the 17tk Farallel. Our bops was to have Army psywar personnel make
wp camposite teams with personnel from the Ministries of Social Action,
Information, and Public Health. {SMM had worked with Social Action
in June and July, ia community self-help projects, and had instituted
community voting with symbals for illitsrates). Despite the bitter
conteation between the Army and the civil government, SMM managed to
bring officers and officials together in a series of luacheon meetings
at our Chief's house aad construct a joint working committes of
Vistnamess for the sffort. Lt Phillips toak the committes to the
Philippines in October, for & firsthand inspection of Philippines military -
civil operations which had been 80 successful agaiust the Communist
Huks. The committes returned, cordial friends and full of ideas.

As part of the work to narrow the rift between government and Army,
Navy Lt Lawrence Sharpe, aa intelligence officer with Task Force 98 who
had been a clasamats of Vietnamese srmy officers at the Ft Bragg Army
Psywar School, was transferred for temporary duty with SMM by Admiral
Sabin. With Ambassador Heath's approval, Sharpe was muved ia with
his fxiend Ii Minh, who was in command of the Army Radio Station. Amy
radio broadcasts bhad undertaken g biting charactsy assassination of
President Diem and bad picked up a big audisnce in south Vietaam. Army
pesywar f{ficers aad others close to Hinh told us that the anti-goverament
pro-Hiah propaganda campeign was beiag run by Jean Barrs, United Press
corrsspondent and publisher of a weekly newsletter circulated in the French
community, Sharpe was iastructed by us to gain editorial contro} of the
broadcasts, in stages: switch from character assassinatios of Diem to
attacking him for not taking action against Communist subversion in the
south, and then agaia switch from that to a ;lain attack against the
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the Communists for their subversive work. It was a tricky task,
because the broadcast propaganda line had to be changed after the
French propagandists had written it and they kept close tabs on the
radio station. One U.S. official complained bitterly to SMM about
aAn American being at the anti-Diem radio station, although the
operation was ex;lained to him. USIS wanted to remove U,8. aquiy-
ment they had given to the radio station, but armored vehicies and
troops guarding the station made this unfeasible. Lt Sharpe worked
hard at his task, with partial success.

On ]4 October, the first medical team of Filipino volunteers
for "Operation Brotherhood'' arrived, 7 doctors and .3 nurses, SMM,
working with Dr flo Quang ‘‘Manay'” Phuoc asd other memboers of the
Saigon Junior Chamber of Gommerce, found a place for them to stay,
vehicles, and furnishings. Their original bedding came off our own
beds. The Filipinos quickly established a clinic in the refugee center
at Bion Hoa., SMM has continued being momma and papa to this group
of dedicated volunteers ever since. We're proud that they have earned
accolades from leaders of the fres world and have won such a place in
the haarts of the Vietnamese that word of this unselfish hely by free
Asians has seeped through all the way to the Chinese border and into
areas held by dissidents such as Ba Cut, with patients smugjled through
to them. Vietoamess leaders have told us that these Filipinoa brought
with them the best medicine for a sick nation: courage.

Contention batween Diem and Hinh had bscome murderous,
Adherents of each side died in a dirty, gangster-type of warfare of
tommy-gun fire fxom moving vehicles, grentdes: throwa into houses,
kideappings and tortures. Our work of attempting & compromise
solution becamae most difficult; as we met with friends on either side, we
hoped that our friends on the other side hadn't picked that maement for an
attack. Finally, we learned that Hinh was close to action; he had
selacted 26 October as the morning for an attack on the Presidential
Palace, Hinh was counting heavily on 14-Col Lan's special forces and
on Captain Giai who was running Hink's secret headquarters at Hinh's
home. We invited these two officers to visit the Philigpines, on the
pretext that we were making sn official trip. could take them along and
open the way for them to see soma inner workings of the fight against
Filipino Communists which they probably would sever see otherwise.
Hinh reluctantly turned down his own invitation; he had had a memorable
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time of it on his last visit to Manila in 1952, Lt-Col Lan was a

Freach agent and the temptation tc see behind-the-scenes was too
much. He and Giai accompanied SMM officers on the MAAG C-47
which General O'Daniel instantly made available for the aperation.

26 October was spent in the Philippines. The attack on the Palace
didn't come off.

e, November 1954

Genaral Lawton Colline arrived as Ambassador on 8 Nevember.
- Hs appoluted Col Lansdale as a member of his personal staff.
Collias flew to Dalat to meet the F'reach chief, General Ely. On his
return to Suigen, Collins said that Ely had asked for the removal of
Lansdale but that this request was politaly but firmly turaed down.

Collins, in his firet pross conference, made it plain that the U, S.
was supporting President Diema. The new Ambassador appiied
pressurs on General Hinh and on 29 November Hinh left for Paris.
His other key conspirators followed.

Part of the SMM teams becams involved in staff work to back up
the sasrgetic campaign to save Vietnam which Collins pushed
foward. Soms SMM membsrs were scattered around the Pacific,
acconapanying Vietaamess for sscret training, obtaining and shipping

. supplies to be smuggled into north Vieitnam and hidden thers. In the
Philippines, mere support was bsing constructed to help SMM, in
expediting the flow of supplies, and in creating Freedom Company,

a non-profit Philippines corporation backed by Presidant Magsaysay,
which would supply Filipinos experienced in fighting the Communist
Huks to help in Vietaam (or elsewhere),

SMM conducted a field survey of Vietnamess Army operations in
a Vietminh domiaated arss, the Long-My district near Soctrang, and
discovered that Lt-Col Duc, the local commander, was applying many
of the lessons which we had been teaching. Troops were courteous,
they had constructed a school and were holding classes for bath
children and adults with Army volunteers as teachers, they had helped
rebuild the market place and church, they carried out active patrolling,
and they had placed locked boxes to receive information and suggestions
from the population. Feople reaponded to the treatment. In a few days
they started being friendly with the troops (something usually reserved
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for Communist troops in Asisn countries) and, after a Vietminh aight
hand-greasde attack on the market place, information about names
and locations of the Vietminh cadres started to flow to the Army from
the people. ’

Upon return from the survey trip, SMM gavs briefings on its
findings to Ambassador Collins, Genersl O'Daniel, and U.8. officers
in MAAG. Col Jose Banson, Philippiaes military observer, assisted
BMM in the briefings. SMM suggestsd that President Diem visit
Soctrang and Long-My, to give impaetus to the work of the troops.
Ambassador Collins enthusiastically backed the idea. The easuing
trip was the first of a series of such visits, with the Avroy winning over
an area and backed up scon by 8 visit by the President. The peopls
r:::‘andcd warmly. The visilingby a leader was a new exparience for
.-

The MM survey trip slso revealed a movement towards Caman
by Hoa Hao rebel Ba Cut, who appeared to be picking up soins Vietminh
cadres in his move and adding them to his ranks. Pespls in the
Rachgia area told us stories of serturss by the Ba Cut forces. Ons
torture was naw 1o us, the driving of amall nails into the ear drum,
Some weeks bafore, Trinh Minh The had had & sharp brush with Ba
Cut in the Soven Mouatains region closs to the Cambodian border;
both The and Ba Cut had requested SMM intervention to arrange »
truce, but Ba Cul’s terms ssemed to consist almost solely of receiv-
ing arms and aamunition from SMM which we refused; Gensral The
had finally taken a small party of sceuts into Ba Cut's rear and sur-
prised Ba Cut and his stafi, who were promptly brought down by
automutic-wospons fire; Ba Cut had been left for dead on the field, dut
prempt medical aid {reportedly by & Freach surgeon) saved his life.
Shostly after this, the Vietnamsese Army had a disastrous campaign
against Ba Cut in the same area, with Ba Cut directing his troops
from a stretcher. Vietmamess Army officers wers convinced that
Franch sdvisers with them had brought about the disaster; these
officers were particularly bittar about & French-arvanged truce,
French orders to cesse fire and sntruck in » convoy which turned out

- to bas & Ba Cut ambush as soon as the troops were in the trucks, T
or not, the Viatnamese beliaved it. :

On 23 Navember, twenty-ons selectad Vietnamese agants and two
cooks of our Heo psramilitary group were put abosrd a Navy ship in
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the Saigon River, in daylight. They appeared as coolies, joined
the coolie and refuges throng moving on and off ship, and dis-
appeared ons by ons. It was brilliantly planned and executed,
agents being picked up from unobtrusive assembly points through-
out the metropolis, Lt Andrews made the plans and earried out
the movement under the supervision of Major allsn. The ship
took the Heo agents, in compartmented groups, 1o an overseas
point, the firat stage in a movement to & secret training area.

f. Decamber 1954

Gensral La Van Ty was appointed Chief of Staff on 12 Decem-
ber. Our friend General Vy had been acting as Chief of Staff, was
slated to be moved up to the top poxition in the Vietmamese Army,
Inspector General. Vy had refused the Chief of Stafl post while
Hinh was still in Vietnam. We arranged a meeting of the two
goenerals with Ambassador Collins for an informal talk oa the
necassity of keeping partisan politics out of the Army.

Meanwhile, discussions between the U,5., Vietnamese and
French had reached a point where it appeared that a military
training mission using U.S. officers was in the immediate offing.
General O’'Daniel had & U,S, -French planaing group working on
the problem, undsr Col, Rosson. One psper they were developing
was & plan for pagification of Vietminh and dissident aress; this
paper was passed to SMM for its assistance with the drafting, SMM
wrote much of the paper, changing the concept from the old rigid
police controls of all areas to soms of our concepts of winaing over
the population and instituting a classification of areas by the amount
of trouble in each, the amount of control required, and fixing
responsibilities batween civil and military authorities. With a
few changes, this was issusd by President Diera on 31 December as
the National Security Action (Pacification) Directive,

President Diem had bsen worrying about the veterans, liked
the idea of a veterans lagion as a patriotic civic organivation, and
stated that he would welcome Philippines help. This was a task for
the newly organised Freedom Company, which sent the National Com-
mander of the Philippines Veterans Lagion, Frisco Juan San Juan,
for a brief survey. San Juan brought with him Alfonso Eariques, who
had been active in the PVL and formerly chief of police in Samhoanga.
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Enriques stayed on as Saigon representative of Freedom Company,
evantually opening a small office across the street from the Ministry
of Defense in Saigon, and working with both the President and the
Defense Ministar in organising what later became the Vietnamese
Veterans Legion. The main difficulty was in finding veterans who
had real leadership and had remained loyal to Dism in the Hinh
crisis; it was a frustrating and pussling search for the Filipinos

(and for us), since the government constantly changed its mind about
loyalties as rumors, reports and suspiciens about persens continued

to flood the Presidency. SMM gave guidance and halp from the back-
.3&.

The Fresdom Company office in Saigon bscams, in effect, the
unofficial Philippines consulate for a long period. Col. Jose Banson,
official obsarver for his government, frequently was asked for
assistance in getting visas and taking care of othar consular chorens.
As exchange betwasn Vietnam and the Philippines incrensed, he asked
Freedom Company for help, eventually depended upon them for most
of the work. It gave Enrigues and his staff, as well as SMM, an un-
usual knowledge of the Filipino colony in Vietnam.

There was still much disquiet in Vietnam, particularly among
anti.Communist political groups who wers not included in the govern-
ment. SMM officers were contacted by a member of such groups
who felt that they “would have t0 commit suicide in 1956 (the 1956
Plobiscite promised in the 1954 Gensva Agresmant) when: the Viet-
minh would surely take over against so wekk a goverament. One
group of farmers and militia in the south was talked out of migrating
to Madagascar by SMM and staying on their farms. A number of
thease groups asked SMM for help in training personnsl foxr eventual
guerrilla warfare if the Vietminh won., Persons such as the then
Minister of Defenss and Trinh Minh The were among those loyal to
the goverament who alse requested such help. It was decided that
a more basic guerrilla training program might be undertaken for
such groups than was available at the secret training site to which
we bad sent the Binh and Heo groups. Plans were made with Major
Bohannan and Mr, John C. Wachtel in the Philippines for a solution
of this problem; the United States backed the devslopmant, through
them, of a small Fresdom Company training camp in a hidden valley
on the Clark A¥B ressrvation,

Till and Peg Durdin of the N. Y. Times, Hank Lieberman of the
z-.ﬁD Hgﬂn gﬂﬂ uﬁn’z g’. z‘,‘. m.g'gi H%
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Mecklin of Life-Time, and John Roderick of Associated Press,
have bean warm friends of SMM and worked hard $0 panetrate
the fabric of French propaganda and give the U.5. an objective
account of evests in Vietnam. The group met with us at times
to anslyse objectives and motives of propaganda known to them,
meeting at their own requast 8s U.5, citisens. These mature
and responsible ngws correspondents performed a valuable ser-
vice for their country,

Army 1& David Smith, who had had political and psychwlogical
warfare experience, arrived for six months tesaporary duty (count-
ing travel time). His performance was superior, 1t Emith, and
others sent in for short tours of temporary duty, barely had time
30 learn Vietnsm's problems, bscams constructive members of
g;::;um before their time was up. These short tours plagued

SMM had a number of political acquaintances useful to Am-
bassador Collins., One of theae was formar Defense Minister
Fham Huy Quat, leader of the Northern Dai Viets, whom Collins
folt would be a strengthening addition to the gevernment since
be had had cabinst sxperience in previous governments. SMM
teamed up with Dr Wesley Fishel, promoted several mestings
between Diem and Quat, dut Diam naver came around to laviting
Quat 1o join his govermment. Later, following a Cao Dai propa-
ganda attack on Quat personally (which sesmed o amuse members
of the goversment), Quat went into open opposition. SMM has
maintaingd friondship with Quat and his associates,

§- Jansary 1985

The Vistminh long ago had adopted the Chiness Conununist
thought that the people are the water and tha army is the fish.
Vietminh relations with the mass of the population during the
fighting had hean sxemplary, with a few sxceptions; in contrast,
the Vistnamess Natlonal Army had been like t00 many Asian armies,
adept st cowing a population into fesding them, providing them
with gixls. SBMM had been working on this problsm from the be-
ginning, Since the National Army was the only unit of goverament
with a stromg oxganization throughout the country and with good
communications, it was the key to stabilizing the situatien quickly
on a nation-wide basis. If Army and people could be brought to-
gothar into & team, the first strong weapon against Communism
could be forgedi
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The Vietminh ware aware of this. We later learnad that months
before the signing of the Ganeva Agreement they had been planning
for action in the pest-Ganeva period; the National Army was to be
the primary target for subversion efforts, it was given tup priority
by the Central Committee for operations against its enemy, and
about 100 supsrior casdres wers retrained for the opsrations and
placed in the Dich Van erganination for the work, which commenced
even before the Agresment was signed, We dida’t know it at the
time, but this was SMM's major epponent, in a secret st ruggle for
the Natiosal Army. . .

At General O'Daniel's request, SMM worked out a reorganisa-
tion of the National Army's 6th Bursau to fit U.5. concepts. Its
oparational intslligence was transferred to G-2, It retained special
Counter Espionage and an "action force" similar to eur rangers.

Gensral O'Danisl was anticipating the culmination of long
negotiations to permit U, 8, training of the Vietnamese Armed
Yeorces, against some resistance on the part of French groups.

In Janwary, negotiations ware proceeding so well that Geaeral
O'Danisl informally ozganised a combined U, 8, ~-French training
mission which eventuslly became known as the Trainiag Relations
& Instruction Mission (TRIM) under his command, but under the
overall commmand of the top French commmander, General Paul Ely.

The French had asked for top command of hall the divisions
in the TRIM stafl. Their firet priority was for command of the
division supervising National Security Action by Vietmamese, which
could be develeped into a continuation of stroag French control of
key slomaenta of both Armay and pepulation. In conferences with
Ambassador Collins and General O'Daniel, it was decided to transfer
Colonel Lansdale from the Ambassador’s staff to TRIM, to head the
Natienal Security division. Colonsl Lansdale requested anthority
to ceordinate all U, 8, civil and military sfforts in this National
Security work. On Il Jamuary, Ambassador Cellins annsunced the
change to the country team, and gave him autherity to coordinate
this work among all U, 8, agencies in Vietnam,

The new task, too vital inthe i ght against Communism to be

passed up, required a reerganisation of SMM, Two teams were
formed, the Whites and the Blues. The Whits team, under Major

Cenein, was given the responsibility for all paramilitary and support
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duties of EMM, and was t0 remain compartmented from other
activities. The Blues, under newly arrived 14-Col Edraund
Quereau, were responsible for all political-psychological war-
fare duties of SMM and were moved into the National Security
Division of TRIM, This split was dictated by the French move

of placing their trained intelligance and security officers into
the National Security Division of TRIM,

Lifs with the French ia the National Security Division was
& eurious and unpleasant sxperience just below the surface.
Some of the French officers were clearly charged with res-
ponsibility for espionage on U.5. officers in TRIM, at times
were obsarved writing reports on U,S, personnel, The chief of
staff of TRIM, French Colons} Carbonel, drought in his old comrade
14-Col Jacques Romain-Defosses as Lansdale's deputy. Carbonel,
Romain-Defosses, and Axelrad were known within the FEC as
“the Thres Musketeers'! for their intelligence and paramilitary
activities in Vietnam in the past ten years, Axsirad, a civilian,
later joinsd the National Security Division as a 14-Col, 12-Col
Ravol, advisor to G-§ of the National Army when the G-6 organi-
sation was sngaged in terrorist acts against President Diem’s
government during the Hinh revolt, joined the National Security
Division., Othars, such as Major Boussiquet who was quickly
transferred { rom an attache post in Pukistan, ware brought in.
This Franch group apparently worked under the dafly dizection
of TRIM's chief of staff, Colonsl Carbonsl, and dally fed us the
1atest French propaganda line (Dism was waak, Diem was bilosd-
thirsty, the VNA bad Jow morale, the VNA was unabls to fight,
Americans dida't understand the Vietaamese, all whites must
sncourage only selected Vietnamese loyal to the French because
the remaindsr would turn against all whites iz another "night of
long kanives" similar to that of 1946).

Despite the under-suriace friction, there was immediate
work to do. The Vietnamese Army nseded help in mounting and
carrying out the occupation of sonss being vacated by Vietmish
forces under the Genava Agresment. Two large sonss were left
for regrouping and transfer of Vietminh forces: the Camau
peninsula on the southara tip of Vietnam (to be vacated 8 Feb-
roary) and a Central Vietnam sons south of Tourane consisting
of Binkh Dinh province and half of Quang Ngal province (to be
vacated 22 April). The Nationsl Security Division was assigned
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responsibility for the success of these opsrations by Ambassador
Collins and General O'Daniel, including logistical support, planning,
movement, personnel, training, and psychological problems. Per-
sonnel were borrowed from other TRIM divisions and organined

into a field team which moved to Sootrang with the VNA command post
for the Camau operation. Lt Philips was assigned 10 the fisld team
for psychological warfare., An Operations Brotherhood field team

of Filipino medical personnel was assigned to Camau, with Lt. Smith
as the SMM officer responsible in Saigon.

The pressures of work to be done and social gatherings at the
Chief's house overcame encugh of the friction betwsen the French
and us to psrmit teamwork to devalop in the National Security Divi-
sion. (However, as French officers were won over and started
to work sincerely with us, they seemed to earn transfers and were
shipped out of Vietnam.} At its psak load, the Natiomal Security
Division was carrying out 26 large projects. The projects included
the take-over of V letminh sones, planning security "sweeps" by the
VNA, making useful citizens of demobilized soldiers, integrating
sect forces, extending government into the villages, usiag the Army
to fight illiteracy, securing weak points along the Laotian and Cam.
bodian borders, directing security surveys of the nation, and training
G-2, G-5, and G-6.

President Diem had continned requesting SMM help with the guard
battalion for the Presidential Palace. We made arrangemaents with
President Magsaysay in the Philippines and borrowed his senior aide
and military adviser, Col Napoleon Valeriano, who had a fins combat
record against the Communist Huks and also had reorganised the
Presidential Guard Battalion for Magsaysay. Valeriano, with three
Junior officers, arrived in January and went to work on Diem's guard
battalion. Later, selected Vietnamese officers ware trained with the
Presidential Guards in Manila, An efficient unit gradually emerged.
Diem was warmly grateful for this help by Filipinos who also con-
tinuously taught our concept of loyalty and {resdom.

The patriot we've named Trisu Dinh had been working on an
almanac for popular sale, particularly in the northern cities and
towns we could still reach, Noted Vietnamese astrologers were
hired to write predictions about coming disasters to certain Vietminh
leaders and undertakings, and to predict unity in the south. Ths work
was carried out under the direction of 1Lt Phillips, based on our con-
cept of the use of astrology for psywar in Southeast Asia. Copies of the
almanac were shipped by air to Haiphong and then smuggled into Vietminh
territory.
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Dinh also had produced a Thomas Paine type series of essays
on Viethamess pasriotism against the Communist Vietminh, under
the gwidance of Capt Arundel. Thess assays were circulated amony
infiuential groups in Vietnam, sarned front-page editorials in the
leading daily newspaper in Saigon. Circulation increased with the
publication of these assays. The publisher is known to SMM as The
Dragon Lady and is a fine Vietnamese girl who has been the mistress
of an antl-American French civilian. Deapite anti.-American ramarks
by her boy friend, we bad helpéd hexr keep her paper from being
closed by the goveroment (Hellyer did this) and she found it profitable
to heed our advice on the editorisl content of her paper.

Arms and equipment for the Binh paramilitary team wore being
cached in the north in areas still {res from the Vistminh. Personnel
movemants were covered by the flow of refugees. Haiphong was
reminiscent of our own plonser days as it was swamped with psople
whom it couldn't shelter, Living space and food wexe at & premium,
narvous tension grew. Itwas a wild tims for our nethern team.

First supplies for the Heo paramilitary group started to srrive
in Saigon. These shipments a2d the sarlier ones for the Binh group
wers part of an efficient and effective air smuggling effort by the
$81st Arc Wing, U.8. Alr Force support MM, with hel; CIA
and Air Force personnsl in
officers frequently did coolie x g0, at
times working throughout the night. Marine Capt Smith had been in
charge of 8MM cargo operations. They later became the responsi-
bility of Army L4 Garbers. All available other officers pitched in
to help, as part ag "hlood, sweat and tsars”, A.tL@ pu«vx.v 0SD w.wAUVﬁ | v

President Diem made a trip to Central Vietnam. Unscheduled
stops and unrehearsed demonstrations by the population clearly
demonstrated Diem's popularity, and seamed to surprise French
Army officers and journalists who were on the scene (apparently,
they had belisved French propagandists who claimed that Diem was
unpopular, weak, and supported only by Americans), SMM sent
Army 1t Smith along on the trip to svaluate Dism's popularity, His
report becams useful in reappraising Diem in several official U, 8.
quarters.

By 31 January, all operationsl equipment of the Binh paramilitary
group had been trans-shipped to Haiphong from Saigos, mostly with
the help of CAT, and the northern SMM team had it cached in operstional
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sites. BSecurity measures were being tightened at the Haiphong
airport and plans for bringing in the Heo equipment were changed
from the air route to sea. Task Force 98, now 98. 7 under com-

mand of Captain Frank, again was asked to give a helping hand and
did so.

b, Yebruary 1958

Opsration "Liberty", the occupation of Camau, commentced on
schedule 8 February. After consultation with General O'Daniel, and
at Vistaamese request, a1l TRIM officers of the field team in Soc-
trang were brsught back to Saigon, except for 14. Phillips who
entered Camau in civilian clothes. The Operations Brotherhood
raedical team of Filipines set up medical clinics along the road as
quickly as their trucks stopped, kept the clinics open 24 bours &
day by working in shifts.

In Saigon, Ambassador Collins unconsciously gave SMM an
accolads in a country team meeting, He had heard that only one
TRIM officer remained of the figld team for Camau, a lisutenant,
when he had distinetly ordered a team of field grade officers.
Genaral O'Daniel sxplained that the field grade officers had done
their work, been pulled back. Ambassador Collias said that it
was t00 soon, to get the team back thare again and mot leave so
much responsibility to one lieutsnant, CGeneral O'Daniel replied
that the lisutenant was Phillips, "one of Lansdale’s team”. “Oh,
that's different then', replied Collins graciously. FPhillips stayed
on alone, got the job done.

We had a closely-coordinated working relationship with USIS
for "Operation Liberty”, as we did in many of our other projects.
USIS printed vp 3~-million leaflets written by EMM which were air-
dropped by the Vietnamese Air Force in Camau and later in Bish
Dinh. We aleo have had exceptionally fine werking relationships
with the USIS-USOM motion picture group under Charles Merts, not

only in producing psywar films but in the making of training and
indoctrination films as well,

In Saigon, SMM worked long hours to keep logistical support
flowing into Camau, It was found that the medical support plan
had b esn based upon faulty reports of available supplies, among
a number of other problems which faced us suddenly. 14. Dave
Smith unscrambled the medical problem, but often founu nisest
loading medical supplies on sircraft himself, Other problems

“SreRT—
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included the need for potable water, troop behavior of units which
arrived at the last minute for the operation and had minsed the
indoctrination course designed by S5MM, and read-building equip-
ment, Anti-Vietmish activities wers carried out by & former
Vietminh leader who had broken with the Communists; Diem had
discussed this with SMM and permitted us te work with the opsra-
tions commander, Col Due, on this; ons astion included the off-
loading of cloth and sewing material from a ship in Banghek and
flying it to the operation, with the cooperstion of USOM (FOA),
CARE, and MAAG-Thailand, Colonel Banson stayesd with the
Operations Brotherhood team, was invaluable in arzanging its
field support and in making full psychological use of the team
among Vietnamese who had been under Vietminh domination for
many ysars.

Freedom Company in the Philippines reperted that it had esm-
menced work on a training camp, for our use as needed, and had
christened it Camp Bateon afier the firet U.8, officer with the
Philippine scouts.

For some weeks, SMM had besn working quistly with Trisb
Minh The at Diem's requast to bring about the integration of kis
Lien Minh troops into the National Army. On 1} February, a
regiment of the Lisn Minh arrived from Ba Den meuntain and were
integrated at & public cezemany in Saigon attended by Presidens
Diem and many forsign observars. Aftar he was made a general
in the National Army, The walked over and shook hands with the
two 8MM members presext in the section for foreigmers, then re-
Joined the President for the zeview. (This sction by The cansed
canstic comments by the French afterwazds, although theiz intelli-
gonce reports alreddy had noted The's relations with SMM, been
confirmed previously by the U.S5. Ambassader.) The Lisn Minh
were in black calico uniferms, the men clossst %0 the reviewing
stand wearing tennis shoes. The others were barsfoot, Although
their uniforms were faded to a dirty gray, and they wers barefoot,
their weapons wers in excellent condition, clean and ready for use.
Thess were fighting men whose leader had pledged them to SMM,
who i turn had insisted that they be loyal te Vietnam,

There is a lesson here for everyons concerned with "comtrol"
of forsign paraons and groups. The strongest control ia ene that
is self-imposed; it is based upon mutual trust and the awakening
of unselfish patriotism on ideals or principles we onrssives cherish.
Once established, the foreign persou or groups ssrve our owa bhest
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national interests by serving their own highest national interests,
which coincide with ours. SMM based its owa methods on a happen-

ing when Corregidor and Bataan were hesiaged by hostile Japanese
in early 1942, Philippine President Quezon had cabled the President
of the United States, pointing out that an enetay was gaining control
of the countrysids, that many Filipinos had died fighting with the
Amaericans agninst this enemy, that to continue the struggle might
well cost many more lives, probably without avail, and would the
United States relsase the Philippines from its pledge to continue

the fight so that it could withdraw from the struggle? The President
of the United States cabled back his reply. The United States was
sympathetic towards the plight of the Philippines and freed them to
do as they chose, but the United States had pledged itself to defend
the Philippines and would continue to honor its word by continuing

to fight as long as thers wers U,5, soldiers for the fight, Word

of these two cables was whispered by Filipino after Filipino through-
out the islands. The manner in which the Philippines remained
loyal to the same cause as the United States amased the world, The
United States has an inumenss fund of honor and idesls to draw

UpoR among many peoples and nations; it is thare, awaiting correst
use,

Since sarly in 1955, President Diem and Defense Minister Ho
Thon Minh had been discussing a Vietnamese substitute for the
French-conceived Greupes Administratifs Mobiles (GAM's), a
form of military government used in the fight against tha Vietminh.
Minister Minh had given XKieu Cong Cung the task of formulating
a Vietnamsss organization which would be more permanasnt than
the GAM's. Both Diem and Mink instructed Cung to obtain the advice
of our Chief, who brought in the Blue Team of SMM to start helping
Cung. After discussions with President Diam, the preject was
given the name of Civic Action which transiated well in Vietnamaese.
President Diem gave ons of his trusted men, Tran Trung Dung,
respoasibility for developing the project further; Cung became deputy
to Dung. SMM rvequested a census of government employeas, since
USOM {FOA) had only sketchy estimates. The plan was to establish
a small coordinating group under the President and send trained
goverament employses into the provinces, to establish govermment
at the village level and connect it with the national goverament.
Villages wers often dominated by secret Vietminh cadras, had been
left alone by the French administration, knew little or nothing of the
national goverament.
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Dafenss Minister Minh called two meetings of all military
and civil authorities from the regions and the provinces. The
Presideatial Directive of 31 December on National Security Action
was explained and discussed, along with implemanting directives
to the Armed Forces from the Defense Minister. Coaditions in
sach province were discussed and its propar sone classification
{created by 5MM) assigned by mutual consent. Methods of con-
structing a team between paople-government-army, and of using
that team against the Communist Vietminh, along lines which SMM
had consistently been teaching in Vietnam, wsre described by Viet-
namese officials, discussed, and adopted by most of the officiala
present. (Later, U.S. cbasrvers wera surprised to find these
methods working successfully in remote areas.)

During the last day of the second big mesting of regional and
provincial officials, Mr. Dung introduced his plan for Civic Action,
It met a storm of protest. Provingial chiefs looked upon it a» an
attempt by the central government to decrease provincial authority.
{The U,5. country team had reacted in much the same manner to A
the plan.} Diem, Dung, Cung, and Minh in the following days were
insistent that Clvic Action be started. SMM suggested some modifica-
tions of the plan, which were adopted, Prasident Diem ordered
Dung and Cung to start, gave them a small budget. They started
recruiting cadres from the Ministries of Pablic Health, Education,
Social Action, and Information and commenced training the first
toam of theas cadres, to dress like villagers, live simply, and
work hard to help the villagea. On funds eked out a Jittle st a time,
mostly under Cung's leadership, a pilot project was tried (6MM
brought U.S., Freach and Vistasmese officials to inapect this pilot
project) and Civic Action gradually spread to ten previnces, without
U. 5. material aid. Province chiefs changed their tune, started ask-
ing for teams for their provinces.

As part of National Security Action, SMM suggested that the
President visit Caman, talk with the people thers who had lived under
the Vietminh. The President did so. It was a successful visit, al-
though thers was still evidence of the axistence of Vietminh political
cadres. The National Security Division of TRIM was busily listing
and studying the lessons learned in the Camau opsration, while

planhing the next major occupation of Binh Dinh and Quang Ngai.
Again, this was our respensibility.
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On 28 February, U.5, Secretary of State Dulles visited Vietnam,
He was much struck by Operations Brotherhood and the warmly

favorable resction it had caused among the Vietnamess people. He
remarked en it in his public statements. '

The atmosphere in Vietoam was lightening, We were leamning
more about the ensmy south of the 17th Parallal, were able to start

making specific plans to combat him with increasingly stronger
military and gevernmental actions.

i. Maxch 1955

The Blue Toam of SMM in the National Security Division became
heavily engaged in a nuuaber of probiems, the most immaediately com-
plex of which was in planning the demobilisation of the Nationsl Army,
which didu't want to be demobilised, Fiscal reasons dictatad thay
the Army be phased down from ita strength of 260, 000 at the start
of the ysar to sbout 100, 000 in the Fall. As troops were demobilised,
Vietminh agents sxploited the situation, pointing out that the Vietminh
were now sure 10 win since their own forces were heing strengthensd
(this was among mountain people being softensd by Vietminh para-
military forees), Other troops, as they saw their eight-year way of
livelihood about t0 end, tevk to the hilis with their weapoas and became
bandits. Still others were recruited by sect forces, to swell the
ranks of the privats armies., Complicating the problem was the fact
that most soldiers had married, with an sverage of wife and three
children per soldier. This meant about 800, 000 persons would be
affacted by the demobilization, making it an even larger problem
than that of the refugess from the nerth,

Since our Chief had desn given authority to coordinate U.8.
agencies in such work and to contact Vietnamese officials as needed,
2 series of work groups was established of Americans, French and
Vistnamese to find solutions to the problem. It wae decided to
discharge persons with homes south of the 17th Parallel,ss far as
possible, President Diem backed this with a directive. A quick
survey was made of all public works profects, so that troops in the
aeighborhood could be discharged and given priority for jobs on the
projects; this was keyed in with Defense Ministry demobilisation
orders. With the help of Ambassador Collins, FOA chief Leland
Barrows, and General O'Danisl, 5-million piastres wers made
available to permit demobilization pay of one-thousand piastres per
man as an emergency measurs. Then a work group was assigued to
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come up with & more permansnt solution, preferably oms that
would combine solutions to both the refuges and demobilisation
problems. The immaediate crisis had been met.

Another knotty problem was that of the privats armies, the
sect foxces, In early March, it was estimated that the sects had
& total of abeut 40,000 men under sarms. Somebow, the best sect
troops would have to be sslectad and integrated into the National
Army, aad the remainder demebilised. Most of these troops had
been paid suppletifs of the French Expeditionary Corps, but pay-
ments had snded in February; the national goverament had had to
start paying the bill, Ambassador Collins and General Ely dis-
cussed the problem. Ely would contribute all funds he could make
avallable, Colline would iry te obtain whatever remainder was
necessary. They appeinted Colonel Lansdale to head a Franco~-
American work group to come up with a psaceful solution to the

"problem of the sect armies, to work clossly with General Gambies
while Kly made a quick trip to France.

The French and American work group was formed quickly,
split into teams. One team obtained facts on status of forces,
strengths, numbers and types of weapons, rates of pay, and
available means of livelibood, Other teams worksd on economic,
political, and psychological aspocts of the problem. The whole
group caught the spirit of working hard and fast, obtained facts
about the sects hitherte oanly loosely reported, soon had some
practical solutions being worked out, We knew that time was runaing
out for us, the sects wers getting restiess. In the closing days of
our work, we worked right around the clock, coming up with our
proposed solution ahsad of deadline, General Ely returned fram
Paris. Hes and Ambassador Collins mat with our work greup,
decided to give the matier further study. We warnsd them that
time was extremsely short, that the sects were about to take action
by arms and that a psaceful solution would have to be introduced
inunediately or the opportunity would be lost. The opportunity
was loat.

While we had besn working on the problem of the sect forces,
the leaders of the sects (most of whom ware now memburs of the
government) had held & sexies of secret mestings, formad a United
Front, General Trinh Mink The conferred with SMM on the problem,
describing thess meetings to us almost as they met, He folt that
he conld be most useful on the inner council of thess maestings, rather
than walk out of them. Bay YVien snd Ba Cut ware tha ringleaders,
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wers advogating an anti-Diem and anti-U, 5. program. We asked
General The to confer with Presidest Dism; we saw President
Diem saparately. It was decided 10 have The stay with the United
Front's inner council temperarily.

As a play to break the trend towards an armaed coup against
the government, our Chisf asked for a meeting with Ambassader
Cellins, General O'Daniel, and the Embassey pelitical staff, re-
commending to them that the initial step be 8 brisfing of sect
leaders on the future of the Nationsl Army, the briefing to be
given by O'Daniel, Lansdale, Rosson, and Carbonel at TRIM,
This was agresd to and accomplished to allay sect fears of the

Immoediately afier the TRIM brisfing, however, Bay Visn called
ancther mesting of the United Frout, presented it with an uitimatem
to be sant to President Diexa asking Mm to mast a series of demands
or leave office. Kveryons present was ferced to sign, undsr moral
suasion. Trink Mink The signed. 3o did General Phueng, commander
of the reguiar Cao Dai forces. Gao Dai Pope Tac had been made
president of the United Fromt, Beth Generals The and Phuong im-
maediately conferred with ns. We polnted out that Bay Vien and Ba
Cut were planniag armed rebellion in the immediate future, that
Vietmam's resal future lay in a pelitical solution to the problam,
that Diem as & tras nationalist offgred & way sut politically o
them, aad that they should withdraw from the United Fremt, They
both promised 0 do s, and wers teld 0 ses Diem and advise him
of their trus intention,

s worth noting hers that relations between SMM and the Cao
Dai wilitary lsadess were based on trust and respest, wet meney.
Weo had become friends. The saly money, asids {rom the initial
fund for the Lisn Mish given to President Diam, was the small
© ameunt spat for food and drink during eur conferences.

A% President Diem's vequest, we had boen seeing him almost
nightly as tensions increased, cur sessions with him lasting for
hours at a tims, He was trying desparately to get French and U, 8.
help %0 remove the Surets from the contrel of the Bink Xuyen, who
had purchased control of surete and police from Bao Dai in the late
Spring of 1954 for a staggering sum, iacluding part of the Bish Xuyen
Franng‘!!.-n prostitution, and the opiwm traffic. Freach and

U.8. reactions to the prohlem were in the form of advice to proceed
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slowly, to act with caution. Ewents would not permit this. Binh
Xuysn terrorist squads were acting with automatic weapons and
gresades, mostly ageinet civilians; a favorite tactic was to use

Days bofore, we had quistly warned U.5. agencies of the
possibility of txouble. We asked our Filipino {riands in Operation
Brotberhood and Freedom Company to institute nightly curfews,
Two doctors arrived the evening of 28 March from Camau, stating
that the situation there was being endangered by Ba Cut and that
they wanted duty sither in quist Saigon or to return to Manila,

We sent them to the Brotherhood BORD), about two hlocks away from
the Cholon prefectural polise headquarters., It came under mortar
fire in the sarly morning. The doctors west hems to Manila the
next day, The sther Filipinos stuck it out, sarned furthex honor
by their voluntesr care of civilian wounded.

At midnight 28-29 March, the Presidential Palace started
recelving mortar five, one shall hitting the outer wall of the
President's bedroam, On rue Gallieni, the Bish Xuyen attacked
the prefectural bullding, ware repulsed and then chased down the

street. Anothar paratroop cemapany, ia truck convoy en the way
to the prefectural bullding, cams under machine-gua fire frem a

drugstors. The drugstore was quickly demolished. SMM requested
permission to send persomael to the Palace; permission was denied.
A telephone check gave us & preliminary idea of the situation:seme
casualties among the troops at the Palace, the Binh Xuyen drivea
away from the prefectural police building, the Army moving in and
taking up positions arcund the many Binh Xuyen fortified strong-
points in the city,

General Kly had decided on imposing a cease~-fire, ebtaining
Ambassador Collina' concurrence in the early morning, French
officers and troeps meved in and stopped the fighting, Ely saw
Diem and insisted upon his desisting irom all armed action. The
morning sun saw the troops facing each other, often only a few
foot from each other, dug in behind sandbags, dirt or concrete
structures. Our Chief saw Ambassador Collins sarly in the morning,
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explaining that only the Binh Xuyen would gain by the cease-fire,
that a goveramant which did not control its own police forces in
its own capital and permitted a hostile armed force to exist in its
midst, & hostile force which had opened fire upon the Presidential
Palace, was & government without the power of sovereignty and
would be so recognised by the psople. The French imposed and
U, 5. backed ceane-fire was continued. Ambassador Collins was
sincerely convinced that the Binh Xuyen could be induced by
Freunch negotistions to withdraw from the Surets and police control
of the metropolis,

The French had b een insistent that the National Army was a
bollow shell, that its officers would refuse to fight, that morale
was 80 bad the troops would desert vather than follow “bloody Diem."
The clandestine United Front radio station, which SMM had located
at Ambassador Collins' request as situated at the Y-bridge head-
quarters of the Bink Xuyen, carried the sams theme re & "blood-
thirsty” Diem. Colonsl Lansdale waa placed on the death list by
this same radio station, Freach intelligence and security officers
at TRIM were jubilant, sithough they became gium when we pointed
out how the parairoopers made the Binh Xuyen run, that all of us
were working to make the National Army stronger and should be
proud of the way they proved their combat mettle.

Meanwhile, Major Conein had briefed the members of the Binh
paramilitary team and started them infiitrating into the north as
individwals. The infiltration was carried out in careful stages over
a 30-day period, & successful eperation. The Bishs became normal
citisens, carrying out every day civil pursuits, on the surface,

We had smuggled into Vietnsm about eight and a half tons of
suppliss for the Hee paramilitary group. They included fourteen
agent radios, 300 carbines, 90,000 rounds of carbine ammunition,
50 pistols, 10,000 rounds of pistel ammunition, and 300 pounds of
explosives. Two and a half tons ware delivered to the Heo agents
in Toskin, while the remainder was cached along the Red River by
SMM, with the belp of the Navy.

On 31 March, General Phuong and his staff attended a ceremony
at the Presidential Palace. Eight thousand of his Cao Dai troops
were being integrated in the National Army. Pope Tac had left
the United Front after a spat with Bay Vien, which included some
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sharp vemarks about the Bink Xuyen being chused down rus Gallieni
by the paratroopers in the early merning of 29 March. Cao Dai
forces under Soal and Ba Cut had failed to join the revols, despite
gggguiu:?&:n%%gg
“blockaded” by thess forces. While Phuong was being swera in
at the Palace, we ware sitting in the President's bedroom listen

During the first half of April, thers was & continning decline
of public trust in the Diem govarnment, brought about by the sease-
fire, Binh Xuyen terrorists shet up the town at night, The Surets
remained wader Binh Xuysn comtrol. Bink Xuyea troops manned
their positions throughout the city. Freach armored vehicles and
troops guarded & large sector of Saigen, sxtending their boundary
lines even further afier the Iate March affair. Bao Dai sent a
maessage to Diem polnting out that Diem had caused the shadding
of dlood of innocent civilians by his rash actions and was hardly
‘the man t0 head & government; & copy of this message was alse
givea the Binh Xuysa, who used it over their radie statien sud in
lsaflets. Diem was gg?flﬂ%‘g
by the French and U.8, geovermuenis, based on the expressed
gf&:igg?g

‘ French joursalists and Bish Xuyen %gg.ﬁ
the therne that Colonsl Lansdale wae raslly ®0 blame for the blood

muﬁoﬁzsiqiiégggﬂ against
gggfsgiggigiig

popular. Unfortunately, U. 5. officials who were helping make Diem
ii%ggg_&;ﬂ.lg?
ggﬁﬁoigg; r and more popular. At TRIM,

Fyrench officers kept us adequately informed of sach propaganda

change, ggi‘u?sgig%r;
fast at their mess

Trinh Minsh The was part of the Vistnamess dalegation to the
Afro-Asian Conference which opanad at Banduag 15 April, He had
become our intimate friead; we were planning a trip together to the
Philippings in May for which The was preparing by lsarning Eaglish,
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Geanaral The's propaganda theme for Bandung was worked out: Viet-
aamess nationalists hated the French colonialists and had fought
against them, but hated the new Communist colonialism even worse
becauss it would make them slaves, which is why 700, 000 Vietnamess
bad fled from living under the new Communist colonialists in the
north. General The had these mimeographed, with many lurid
“mw personally handed them out to Communist delegates

Meanwhile, the Heo paramilitary team had finished its training
at the secret training site and deen flown by the Air Force to a hold-
ing sits in the Philippines, where Major Allen and his officers
brisfed the paramilitary team, In mid-April, they were takenr by
the Navy to Haiphong, whers they were graduslly slipped ashors.
Meanwhile, arms and other equipmaent including explosives were
being flown into Saigon via our amuggling routs, being readied for
shipment north by the Navy task force handling refugess. Ths White
team office graduslly becams an imposing munitions depet, Nightly
shootings and bombings in restiess Saigon caused us to give them
disparsed storage behind thick walls as far as this oas big house
would permit. SMM personnel guarded the house night and day, for
it also contained our major files other than the working file at our
Command Post. All filos were fixed for instant destruction, auto-
matic wespons and hand grenades distributed to all personnel, It
was & strange scens for new personnsl just arriving,

Army 13-Col Jorgeusen reported for duty with SMM. His quick
adsption to the noeds 0f EMM at the moment and bis intelligent, ener-

geotic work led to his being appointed Deputy to the Chief of SMM,

Tension mounted. With Ambassador Collins' approval, we re-
ceived the government's plan of action against the Binh Xuyen from
Diem, for commaent on its effectivensss. This was shown to General
O'Daniel, who assigned 14-Cel Hamelin 1o assist in the work. The
annotated plan was given back to Diem, who was still trying hard to
got sither French or U.8. backing to remove the Binh Xuyen from
top, positions in the Surete. The grsen berets of Bigh Xuyen shock
troops could be seen all over town behind their fortified positions,
inrluding Surete headquarters on rus Catinat, the main shopping
street of Saigon. The French told Diem that if he tried to take over
Surete haadquarters which was now inciuded in the French sone,
French troops would open fire on the Vietnamese Army. The Upited
States advised Diem to be patient, that the French were really being
helpful by asgotiating with the Binh Xuyen. The cease-fire limit was

extended,
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SMM was making new friends quickly in the Vietnamese Army,
including most of the combat leaders commanding troops in Saigon-
Cholon and Mal Huu Xuan, chief of military security, whom General
Gambies had tried to dissuads from his course of action. Sise-
able sums were being offered to Army officers and 1o sect leaders
who were raxaining leyal to Diem, to sntice them into being at least
neutral. Those who refused were subjected to character-assassina-
tion attacks, which always included that they had been bought with
huge sums from Diem, We got the barest glimpse of the original
type-script of one of these attacks, in the hands of TRIM associste

. Remain-Defosses who said that it had been prepared for Col Carbonsl;
it was a purported intelligence report of rapes, tortures, murders,
and opivm smuggling performed by Colonel Xusn. Xuan had long
been deputy Surete chisf under the French; they were infuriated that
he would no longer do their Mdding. Others camas in for attack for
the same reason, including Colensl Don who was chief of the General
Staff and had been one of the two most promising French agents among
Vietaamess graduates of French intelligence schools. Don choss to
stick to bis country, his President, and his Army. Beth Xuan and
Don started working with SMM; we only asked them to be loyal to
their own country.

Qld contacts started appearing. There were three different
attexpts by Bay Vien and the Binh Xuyen to apen sscrat negotiations
with 8MM, one of these was via Corsican gangster friends of Major
Conein which continued right into the later fighting. The others
were through old Vistnamese acquaintances of ours. At the same time,
the Hoa Hao dissident lsader Ba Cut made contact through & formaer
high official trusted by Diem. To them all, we replied that the U.5,
was still supporting the legal government, Diem, and that we would
listen to the dissidents only if they were willing to accept complete
esurrender from their attempt &t a coup. Murder threats against us
increased. There was s plot 10 kidnap Lansdale, Meanwhile, we
were helping the goverament in its work to get the Binh Xuyen chief
of staff, Colomsl Manh, to rally to the government with troops loyal
to him, who comprised about half the Binh Xuyen forces.

At the National Sscurity Division of TRIM, despite obvieus French
hostility, we contizned finishing plans for Operation "Gisi Phong"
{breaking of slave shackies), the name given 2o the Natiomal Army
occupation of southern Quang Ngai and Binh Dink provinces, using
troops of the new 3lst and 32nd Divisions, The area had beev &
real stronghold of the Communists, noted as s leftist hotbed as far
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bask as the surly 1930%s, The Mixed Commission (Fronch- Yietmish)
had agreed on a number of phase date lines within the area for Viet-
aamese oecupation and Vietmink withdrawal, Communication routes
waers badly damaged by the war. Almost all avallable shipping,
needed for landings aleng the thousand mile shore-line, was being
used for the evacuation of Haiphong and sonlda’t be spared. On top
of all the usual headaches attending Jogistical support of an operation,
which in our case aleo included support for Operations Brotherhood
madical teams, we bad the additional chore of supervising the psywar
and behavior training of all troops assigued to the operations, At the
last momaent, divisional troops were meved south to reinforce Saigon~
Cholon. We had to "maks do" with fewer troops than the job required.

Colons] Le Vaa Kim had besn assigned as commander of the opers~
tion. He had been the brightest of all Vietnamens officers given hoth
military and istalligence training by the French, probably the mest
capabls staffl officer in the Vistuamase Army., President Diem was
dublous about the choice; he simply dida't trust an officer who had
boen that closa to the Freacth, We offiered to assign 14 Phillips to :
monitor the operation, to be with Cel Kim day aad night, and suggested
that the President call in Kiz, tell him that he knew sbeut Kim's past
but that he was entrusting him with an operation vital so the natiea.

As 1% similar vases in the past, we pointed out that this was real
leadership and that Diem was the isader of his people and must
damasnstrate it to them. He took the advice, sxpressed surprise to

ws privately sfterwards at the.way Kim was bucked up by the confidence
placed in kim. Phillips was assigaed to the speration, with General
O'Danisl's g&cgg?:%g‘%
éggggf refasing to allow French or U.5
11333..&..&& , 8. advisors %fas-ivig.

géi!&&&!nﬁ. 22 April, Tha treops
E?giggﬁ? dectring, but Kim

ta...ziaaix. %il&%i?g&
mareh, the people opened up te tham; dy the third day, the behavior
action had snew-balled inte geminely bretherly fselings betwoon the
poopla and the troops. The peeple started 1o poist out Vietmink etay.
bohind cadres and their avme cachas, started bringing food snd flowsrs
t0 the treops. The nsws swept into the nonss being ¢losed out by the
Vietmish, where they weze promising to return soon, and were warsisg |
the people against the barbaric practices of the National Axmy. The last
days of the Vietmish in Dinh Dizh were spent in slinking out past &
population no longer supportiag them and getting ready to weleoms the
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National Army; children bad been hidden in the hills, because the
Vietmink were taking boys and girls down to the age of 12 for shipment
to the north; Vietminh currency became worthless, ualike their cur-
vency in other aress. The news from Binh Dich was cheering to us

in Saigon.

Saigon was now seething. Kidnapping of red beret paratreopers
and green beret Binh Xuyen was active daily; hacked open bodies of
vietims floated down the Saigon River. The respected Chingse who
was starting to give President Diem {and SMM) the truth about the
opium traffic was kidnapped st high noon from a crowded restaurant
on & Cholon main street, never to be soen again., Celonel Xuan, whom
the Prosident had $0ld to help SMM on the same opium project, was
losing his best agents. French sfficers in the Bich Xuyen hegdquarters
were busily oMtaining the release of G-6 troeps kidnapped by the Binh
Xuyen, since G-6 was still being used as an arm of French intelligence.
General Ely shrugged off Diem's repuated requasts fir the French to
take back the six armed river vedettas of the Fronch Navy being used
by the Bish Xaysn, refused to deliver the armored vehicles promised
months sgo and heid just eutside of town at Biena Hoa.

General The was asked t0 mave his troops fyom their camp near
Bien Hoa down into the Rung Sat area adjacent o the Saigon Rivar,
which was being rosdied as a guarrilla hase for the Binh Xuyen.
General The could ebtsin no water supply for his troeps (lack of
water was 1o plagus the Bish Xuyen later inm this ares) and found
Frouch armored squadrons accompanying him as he attampted to
push towards the Rung Sat area. He Jeft his troops in command of
Col, Cao snd slipped through to Saigen o ask our help; he nesded
water carriers and heavier weapons for the reduction of Binh Xuyen
strong-points absad of him, We saw Diem, who was kitter at Tha's

hositancy; we patiently explained that these ware genuine military
aseds, that Col Minh as First Military Region had given General The

asither essential suppliss nor emcouragement nor a plan of support,
and that The's effort weuld be wasted under these cireumsiances.

The President mads no commaent,

Major Bohannsn, who had been supporting us strongly from
the Philippines, arrived in towa., He had been ahout to visit the

U.5. on home leave, after years of exira duty in the Philippings,
but gave it up when he sensed that SMM was heading into a time of
trouble. He was a combat infantryman of sexpsrisace, had dbeen
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Colonel Lansdale's valued deputy in the struggle agains the Huks ia

the Philiypines. Bursts of fire from automatic weapons could be heard
around town, now and then the sxplosion of a plastic bomb. It waa
rapidly becoming the time aad place for experisaced hands.

Ambassader Collins had left for Washington. He and we had been
masting several times a day; just befors he departed he told Lansdale
not to be worried by newapaper rumers that ths U.5. would stop supporting
Dism, Laasdale asked then if his orders wers to continue supporting
Diem; Collins said yos. Maembers of the country tesm privataly {elt
that Diem should be supported by us, that the Natioaal Army was ready
to support him and had the capability of defsating the Binh Xuyen.
Washington suggested that we got the country team leaders 10 state
this, sach through his own chanasl. This suggestion reached us the
morniag of 28 April, whon we were working on suppart problems for
"Giai Phong’' and on & propossl to transfer the veterans buresy to the
Ministry of Defense. A call camie through from President Diem who
waaml us to ses bim urgently.

‘On the way to the Falsce, Lansdale and Redick came wnder fire
£rom Binh Xuyen troops occupying the Petruski School near TRIM,

" . foreing them to abaandon their vekiele. Civilian cyclists nesr them -

ware the only casuaities. It was the usual terrorist strafing. When
it stopped, they drove past Fetruski to the Palace. Diem was worrsied,
baviog just received word frem his Washington Embassy thet the U.8.
appearsd to be about to stop supperting him. Bao Dal was ordering
bim to go to Prance immediately, bad reguested a mesting thers of &
aumber of Vistnamess, including & majority camyosed of Diem's
enemies, to discuss s new govermment. The telephone interrupted |
the conversation; the call was from the General Staff. It had just
come under sub-machinagun fire {rom 2 jeep passing alosg e

- Gallioni, & French Army jeep drives by a white man in colonial army

uniform, with three gress-beret Vistnamese handling the weapous,
Col Don had besa going owt the doorway of the building, almost been
hit. There ware cazsualties.

Diem told Cal Doa on the telephose to returs say fusther fire by
the terrorists, hung up, than continued with describing his problem.
On the 35th, the majority of the police had pledged loyalty to the
governmsni, .although surete personnsl were still holding out with the
Binh Xuysn. The troubls was that the prefectural police wers becoming
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frightenod for the safety of their families when they left home, since

Binh Xuyen traops still held strongpoints throughout town, French

armor protected a large sector of Saigon containing not only Surete
headquarters but also a Binh Xuyen reserve force of shock troops.

Most of his Cabinet had resigned as he had failed to take action against

the rebellious Biah Xuyes in the capital city. The people were furious
against this bold armed holdup of the government by what they kaew

wore only gangsters. Army and people laid the blame on the Freach,
because they could see French armored vehicles and troops in the streets,

" evidently ready for action against the Vietnamese. We told him that it

looked as though Vietnam still needed a leader, that Diem was still
President, that the U.S. was still supporting him.

Shortly after starting a late lunch at home, and making dates to
meet with General O’'Daniel and Mr Barrows to ask them to send

.messages to Washington through their own channels, the sound of

morxtar explosives was heard. The telep.hone rang, amid increaning
explosions, some of which were in the neighborhood. It was Vo Van
Hei, Diem's confidential secretary on the telephone. He said that

the Palace was under heavy mortar fire, that the President was on
another line talking to General Ely, that Ely stated that he couldn't
hear any explosions aad the Prosident was holding the mouthpiece

out towsrds the sxplosions eo Ely could hear them. Hai started to
ask what should be done, interrupted hiznself to say that the President
had just ordered the National Army to start returning the fire and had
so informed Ely. He hung up.

We had prepared for the emergency. A amall team had been formed
with the CIA station in Saigon, whose acting chisf Phil Potter had
voluntarily placed bhimsalf under our Chief's guidance for the emergency
period. FPotter had been appoiated head of a small operation group,
with Bohannan as deputy and with members from both the C1A etation
and SMM, Key houses were linked by radio. Operational planning was
done jointly, iatelligence take shared instantly. All msasures possible
under the limits permitted by U.S. policy were taken for action agaiast
the Binh Xuyen and Ba Cut. (These will not be described here, but

there were a number of successful actions).

Conein had bees waiting for contact with Bay Vien's men, who
still waated a conference with us. He was ordered to return from
the contact point. On the way to report in, he saw & taxi take a
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- direct hit in fromt of him; the taxi was filled with civilians as only
Vietaamese taxis can be. Mortar fire was increasing. Some shells
waere landing around the White team’s bullding, where smaunition
and explosives had been stored. Parmission was regmested to
abandon the building, after destroying the files. This parmission
was denied, since the bullding was solid snough to sustain direct
higs by Si-tam mortar fire and still protect our stored supplies.

Evaa 8o, thoae on goard in the buildiag were distinctly uneasy; the
National Army had set up batteries across the strest which Binh

- Xuysa mortars wars stitampting to resch. The Binh Xuyea had
set fire to a large sestion of Cholen and the skies darkened with
the smoke. Wrscked cars in the streets, troop movements, and firefights
‘betwaen cambatants in business and residentisl districts made detours
necessary ia driving, . .

Our Chiof bad asked Charge Randy Kidder to call a meeting of the
country team, which Kidder had declined under the inconclusive -
circumstances of the moraing. It was decided to try again, alter &
briaf chéck in at the White team house to see conditions there.
Kverrthing was under contral, se onr Chisf drove to the Embassy to

, 8ae Kiddez. Kidder was having s meeting with the military attaches.
They were drafting & report on the fighting for Washington to which we
contributed. When this was finished, our Chiof asked Kidder again to'
ir!%&gagaggﬁag the subjsct io be the
support of President Disem by the U.5. uader the changed circumstances.
Kidder stated that he was not in position to do this, since n&?ﬁlﬁ
#E gﬁt&cn

- Genersl O'Daniel and Mz Barrows wers .aoﬂ?ggg
They both falt strongly that the U.5. should costinue supporting Diem, -
particularly sow that he bad besn challenged and was fighting back,
but naithex folt that they should 8o inform their hesdquarters, since
this was a political matter. (Next morning, Vashington ssked for
the views of the country team on this subject; & meseting was held; the
eountry toana quickly agresd that Diem should be supperted).

u.»u!ua- continned. We were getting fatigued, goiag withont
sleep in planaing and taking actions, in keeping Washiagton up to the
minute on svents in Saigon. Dixie Reese, USOM (FOA) photographer,
had taken a light civilian aircraft over the Binh Xuysa lines to got
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pictures, was shot down; the Binh Xuyen radic and propagands leafiets

- promptly announced that Reesns was 8 spy for Colonsl Lansdals. Reese

and his Freach pilot were killed. ‘

The next moraing, we saw Trinh Minh The, The Army had asked
him to bring his troops in from Bien Hoa and take the lefi fank when
the Army started driving the Binh Xuyen south across the Saigon River
and the Canal de Derivation. He was going now to get his 3roops and
bring them past French armor into town. He had a large scals map of
the entirs area and showed us his plan. Hae then comymented that the
people in Chalon were overjoyed that the Army was continuing the fight
and that talk had started openly against Bao Dai and the French whose
armor was clasking around the strests. -

President Diem wanted to see us. Vietunamess troops had captured
somse Freach while taking Bish Xuyen strongpoints south of rus Oallieni,
more French ware seen in the Fetruski School which was being reduced
by the Army, close by FEC headquarters at Camp de Mares. Bao Dai
had seat & message ordering Diem to stop the fight immaediately and go
to France, that General: Vy would take over. The President's oyes
were red-rimmed from lack of slsep, but he had confidence in what he -
was doing. He would ignore Bao Dai. His manner was the same 28 a
fow days previously when he heard that Genexal Hiah was returaisg,
sud calmly gave orders to either prevent Hink's entry or arrest him
upon landing. The Hoa Hao forces of Ba Cut and Soai had not moved
towards Saigon) tine was still a 1ocalized fight with the Bink Xuyen and
the Army was detsrmined to win.

Negotiations with Colonel Manh, Bay Vieun's chief of stafl, bad
renched a succesaful conclusion. Mis men were crossing the Canal
de Derivation; he would prepare them for joining up with the National
Army and wae conviaced that the men wers eagsr 10 do so; they
didn't want to fight the government. SMM worked with the Defenae
Miaistry on surrendsr leaflets, to exploit this development with the
remaining Bink Xuysn when the time came.

We had besn gctﬁng roports of General Vy's movaments duriag the
afternoon (visits to Gambies, Quat, and others). That night, John

Maecklin of Time Magazine telephoned to say that Vy had been arrested
at the Palace. Wa checked with the Presidency; Vy was there but not
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under arrest. Later Major Hoai of the Lien Minh visited us. The
"Revolutionary Committee)’' had arrested Vy at the Palace, paratroopers
were coming to free him, .#hd what should the Revolutionary Committee
do now? Generals The and Phuong, we leagned, were members of thie
Committes and at the Palace. Ve commented that it was a hell of a way

to run a revolution, and maybe the committes should escape out of the
back deor.

Just then, The and Phuong arrived at our Chief's house, grioning in
embarrassment. President Diem had sent Vy back to the Army, to spand
the night in General Hink's old quarters. The Ravolution lad failed to
arrest Yy, but the people were aroused against Bao Dai. They explained
that the Revolutionary Committies had grown out of the Front organisa-
tion which Diem's brother Nau had tried to organise some days earlier;
they had followed our advice and had joined with Nhm ia the Front, but
wera dissatisfied with some of the weak organisations they felt Nha was
depending on, 8o bad organized something more dynamic to meet the
threat of Vy and Bao Dai, and called themselves the Revolutionary'

- Committes. They wanted Bao Dai dethroned and wanoted the Freach to
. - stop interfering in Vietnamsese affairs,

The Pxesidency telephoned aarly the next moraing. Vy had arrested
Genosral Ty and Colonel Don, was holding them at Hinh's house, where
b they were being guarded by a battalion of Imperial Guards which had
Just arxived from Dalat. Could we come over? SMM officer drove
- over to the Palace. As we eatered, Captain Cav ran down the stairs,

. told us that Yy's troops had just captured the Post Office two blocks

away {it was the communications csnter for Saigon) and the National
. Treasury. We had barely started talking with the Prasident when Cao returaed.
He had grabbed some men from the Presidential Guards, rushed to the Fost
Office sad Treasury buildings, talked the Imperial Guard into leaving, and
both building were now secure. Hs explained that quick action was dinned
- into him by Col Valsriano when he and others received tralaing with the

Malacanang Guards in Maaila recently, The President made Cac &

4 major,

Galenel Don reported in. He and Ty had been released by Vy, and Vy
was lesving for Dalat with his troops {(where Majors Conein and Allea met
him secretly later for a conforence on our Heo project). Don and ather
officers had teassd Vy about being able to get gasoline aad ammuaition
from the Freach, when they conldn't. Vy snswered that the French would
give him aanything. The others thea asked hira to call up the French and
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request the armored vehicles which the Freach had beea holding at
Bien Hoa 80 loag without delivery to the Vietnamese Army. The
Freach rushed these vehicles to Hinh's house, evidently having been
holding them just outside towa for this emergeacy, where Army men
took them over snd drove them iato the fight agaiast the Binh Xuyen.
Don said the French still hada't caught on, still thought that Vy would
ase this armor to bring the Army into line to stop fighting the Binh
Xuyen and be loyal to Bac Dai. Doa added that the Army folt the
same as the Revolutionary Committee: Bao Dai was finished.

The addition of the armor hastened the witinirawal of the Binh
Xuyen. By noon of 30 April, almost all of their forces had withdrawa
across the Canal, except for strongpoiats in Cholon which were still
manned but cut off. Natioaal Army troops on the north bank were
exhausted, catching quick anps before attemptiag a crossing. Boats
were being gathered for the crossing, but the six vedetias of the Binh
Xuyen were in the canal, ready to stop the crossing.

Ia the afternoon, Trink Miah The slipped ia for & visit with us.
{His troop movement through Saigon bad thoroughly alarmed many
foreigners, including Americans, who felt that he was going to attack
the calony of whites). General The reparted that all of his troops
except one battalios had crossed the canal over a bridge; that they
were being held up now by the fire of the six vedettes (river gunboats)
who were firing on the bridge at poiat-blank range from the canal; he
wanted to finish the movemaent and joia this last battalion to hAis troops
across the canal where they had to reduce a Dink Xuyoa fort which appeared
to b heavily manned. The's hand was bleeding on the map he used to show
us his position. We bandaged it for him, while giving him tactical advice
oa how to eaghage the gunboats from the shors, including the use of
artillery. Genersl The told us shortly afterwards that no artillery could
be spared for him. We weat to the Palace (o see if something conld be
done. The General Staff was thare, listened tc us, and started artillery
moviag to the flank to support Geaeral The.

Diam waated to talk about the Revolutionary Committee which was
in session. He explained that there were some hot-heads on the

- Committee, particularly Soh and Lang. He sketched in their pokitical
backgrounds for us, includiag the smattering of political work they had
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learned as minor officials of the Vietminh. He felt that Phuong
relishod the wild action of the Committee, and that Trianh Minh
The bad been very foolish to join in with the action. Diem was
going to call 8 Congress of delegates from all provinces to sit

in with the Committes, change its character from one dominated
by the Cao Dal and Hoa Hao {of General Ngo), to one that could
speak with the voice of the people. He had sent a radio message
to Huas and dulegates from Central YVietnam provinces would be
arriving in Saigon shortly. What would the United States do if
this Congress dathroned Bao Dai? We explained that the United
States probably would accept & legal action, but that dethrone~
ment by voice vots io a Congress guch as that described by Diem
was hardly a legal proceading.

The Presidant's brother Ngo Dinh Nhy came into the room
hurriedly at this point and interxupted us. 'Triak Minh The is
dead, *' he said. He sxplained that & report had just coms in by
telephone., Geasyal The had baen shot through the head while
diracting the fire against the vedettes. It was nsws that hurt.
Diem broke into tears. We sat with the Presideat for a time,
talking about our mutual friend The, then left,

,” .
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We suggoested to President Diem that the govermment provids
for Gensral The's family, which was done. We also arranged that
the lien Mioh make Nge Dioh Diem their hovorary leader. This

_ was done at a private ceremony when The was buried at Nul Bs

Den in the presence of his mother, bis wife, his childrea, the Lien
Minh staff, Lansdale sad Redick. There had besn & large public
coremony in Saigon, since The was a national herve. Colonel Gao
assumed cammand of the Lien Minh and was made & general,

In Iate April, President Diem had requested funds te finance
s former Vietminh leader who promised to got rid of Ba Cut
{through Vietminh close to this Hoa Hao rebel). SMM furnished
2-million piastres, as a first installment of the fands requested,
but advised Diem to check details thoroughly before sxpenditurs.
The funds weare passed in & large suitcase to Diem's sonfidential
secretary. In following days, President Diem seemned somewhat
embarrassed whea yueried about the project. Fianlly, he indicat-
ed that the plan had not worked out and asked what he should do
with the money we had given him, We advised him to return it to
us, which he &id,

Fighting continuad in Cholon, where some Binh Xuyen streag-
points still held out. SMM held ons conferencs with General
O*'Daniel at MAAG on obtaining bridging material for the Bink Dink
operation, (Col Kim and Lt Phillips had flewn down ¢t» get help)
during which the Binh Xuyen strongpoints around MAAG wers
reduced; much of the conferance was in shouts above the noise of
machine gans and mortars, since scme of the strongpoints were
Just across the strest. .

Colonel Manh was reported as probably dead, He had gone o
his bome in 2 little village south of Cholon t0 get his wife and a file
of documents he had hidden. He had said previously that he had
documaents which gave details of the opium smuggling, inclunding
French partisipation. As he was leaving his house, an armed group
seined him, He was last sean, bound and gagged, oa the vear flvor
of & small taxi. His troops were under attack by the remainder
of the Binh Xuyen, whe were blocking their reute through to the
National Army, Surrender leaflets, which we had prepared, were
dropped from the air, saturating areas heid by the Bish Xuyen. On
2 May, five of the battalions fought their way through and joined the
National Army. Little mere than a thousand men were still alive
in these units.
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On 4 May, the National Congress of People snd Administrative
Representatives met in Saigom, as called by President Diem, He
had asked to sse us And we sat in the bedroom talking $o him whils
he prepared te appear bafore the Congress. Diem had besn weeping,
baving just vetursed from Trish Mish The's houss, and put on dark
glasses. We discussed the rumors that the French were asking the
U.S. to recall certain Americans (as printed in the local French
Press as news), the Presidential Directive on Nationality (which
wonld require Army officers to declare themaslves either as Fronch
or as Vistnamgss), and vicions rumors about Col Kim in Biah Dink,
On the latter, we suggssted that the Presidenst send & mature person
he trusted to Bink Dinh 10 investigate, since vsperts resching us
showed that Kim was behaving ia exemplary and landabls fashion.
(Mhn:ﬂu»rtm&n?nﬂomm sast, confirmaed onr
reports.

Operation Brothsxhwod had growa into an organisation of 105
Filipine doctors and aurses, plas sdministeative persoansl. They
were opexating ten medieal coniers, and wers training Vietmamese
in thess operations to prepare them for eventual takesvey. Mors
than 2,000 patieats were buing treated en an average day. The hard
work of these teams and their gayety off-duty when they entertaimed
rafuges and orphan groups had becoma almoat a lagend im Vietanm,
The "tinikling" {Filipino bareseet dance between clanking bamboo peles)
was taken up by the Vietaamese (and Americans in Saigen), SMM
continued its help and guidance.

The National Security Division was eollecting infermation about
Vistminh activities and oxrganisations south of the 1T Farallel,
through available istelligence repovis, field trips, and & previagial
survey system which made use of TRIM and Natienal Army fleid
personnel (which we had established through the Ministries of Defense
and Interier; they trusted us as frisnds not to mis-use unfaversble
information). Results of this work were given to the country team
and brought the remark by Ambassador Collins that this was the first
datailed picture he had obtained of the snamy. He asked that it be
given to Gensral Ely, which was done.

Vietminh paramilitary organisations were Jocated at several
places in the foothills of Central Vistnam, in the high plateau jungles
north of Koatum, along the jungled Lastian border west of Ban Me
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Thuot, in the swamps of the Plaineg des Joncs, and in small cadres
along the rivers and canals of the south, Their secret political
control of villages was growing, siuce they were advocating the
nomn-payment of taxes t0 3 government which was to be replaced
by the Vietminh in 1956 and were using small-scals texrorism to
bring village elders into line.

Although the National Armay was still sngaged with the Binh
Xuyen, and activities by Ba Cut and Soai in the West against the
Army bad been stepped up sharply {including the shelling of such
population centers as Long Xuyen), the National Security Division
started planning measures against the Vietminh, including opera~
tisns in Central Vistnam and immediate security screening actions
in provinces south of Saigon, such as Goceng and Bantre. Civic
Action, which was davaloping rapidly on its still axtremaly lmited

budget, was asked to put teams into the more troubled areas as
quickly as possible.

Haiphong was taken ovar by the Vietminh on 16 May. Our
Binh and northera-Heo teams were in place, complstely sguipped,
It had taken a tremandous amount of hard work to beat the Geneva
deadlineg, to locats, sslect, exfiltrate, train, infiltrate, equip the
maen of these two teams and have them in place, ready for actions
required against the snemy. It would be a bard task to do opanly,
but this had to be kept secret from the Vietminh, the International
Commission with its suspicions French and Poles and Indians, and
evan friendly Vietnamese. Movements of personnal and suppliss
bad had to be over thousands of miles.

As Haiphong was taken over by the Vistminh, Binh Dish was
taken over by the Vistnamess Army. SMM's black psywar, through
Vistsamess Army agents, had embarrassed the Vietminh: in the
aame of the local Vietmink Comumittes, the people of Bink Dink
had besn ssked to redessn their Vietminh currency (as premised
by the Vietminh) for Bank of Indochina plastres by seeing Vietminh
officinls at the last svacuation point. Thousands traveled to Qui
Nhon whers red-faced Vietmink lamely sxplained that they had no
money. On 27 May, President Diem visited Qui Nhon and Binh
Dish, where he was given a tumultous welcome,

Ambassador Collins left, with a warm letter of apprecistion
to SMM for its help to him, Frederick Reinkardt, the now Am-
bassadoy, arrived, and presented his credentials to Diem en
28 May,

47

~SEERE




DECLASSIFIED IN FULL
Authority: EO 13526 -SE'GR‘EF'
Chief, Records & Deciass Div, WHS

MAY 19 2014

. Alfonso Enriques of Freedom Company had been working day and
night, with a small team supporting him aand with background guidaace
and heip by SMM, to orgaaine the Yietnamese Veterans. The First
National Congrese of the Vietnamaese Veterans Legion was held on
29 May. This first Vistaamese Vetersns' convention was a marked
success, with President Diem asnd General O'Daniel as the honor
guests, heading & long list of Vietoamese and foreign officisle, includiag
invited visitors from the Philipploes Veterans Legion. Surete Chief,
General Nguyen Ngoc Lo, was chairman of the fizst conveation and was
slected as commander of the Legion. Enrigues had bhecome highly
popular with the Vietnamese, was asked to maks a speech, He
distributed gift shirts from the Philippines Veterans Legion. The
convention adapted resclutions supportiag President Dien and agaiast
the Vietminh. After the coavention, work started on organising
provincial chapters. Memberahlp in the World Veterans Organisation
was requested. '

On 25 May, President Diem calied us in to mest General Mai Huu
Xuan, chief of Military Security. He told Xuan that he waanted Xuan to
work closely with us in developing his intelligence work. Diem also asked
SMM for help in seeing that Xuan got & good rest and some leave in tae
Philippines. This was arranged.

Our French associates at National Security Division told us that the
- French mission in Hanoi estimated that thers ware about 400 Chinese
advisors with the Vietminh, maialy as advisors to the higher schelons.
R A Frecch business man from Hano: estimated that thers were a total of
""" peshaps 2, 700 foreiga advisors with the Vietminh, including s smail
Soviet mission. The Gensral Staff of the National Army estimated that
there were about 10,000 Vietminh clandestine cadres south of the 17th
Farallel; the YVietmiah paramilitary in the south were organized in 9
skeletal battalicas and 14 skeletal companies.

By the end of the month, SMM was the recipient of unguarded
comnnents by saniar Freach officers, during work on combined projacts
. or at sacial functions. The gist of these commenta was: the French
Expeditionary Corps would not fight the Vietmianh, except to defand
themsslvss or to protect the evacuation of French civiliana.

On 30 May, Fresident Diem told SMM that fighting in the West
against SOAI and Ba Cut was imminent, perhaps by 31 May or 1 June.
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Dissident actions against the National Army had becomse intolerable.
General Hinh was with Soal at his Cai Von headgquarters. Soal's
clandeatine radic station was broadcasting propaganda similar to

that of the Binh Xuyen and Vietminh., Soai bad artillery in position to
fire on Cantho across the Bassac River from his headquarters; French
gunners wers reported as serving these guns. (High Freuch officers
stated thess men were deserters). The plan given Soal was te capture
Long Xuyen, Racgia and Chaudoc quickly, to create & favorable inter-
national opinion favoring these Hoa Haos over a "weak'' goverament.
Tha National Army was set to capture Cai Von and Lai Yung as soon
as hostilities opened.

1. Juene 1955

On 5 June, Genersl Hiab had called a meeting of sect leadars and
Vietminh at Cai Von. The National Army struck swiftly, over-runaing
dissident Hoa Hao positions and stroag-points the first few hours.

1, 500 of Soai's treops rallied to the National Army. Soai with a few men hesded
for a juncturs with Ba Cut at the Seven Mountains, close to the Cambodian
bordex near Hatien. Ba Cut left one regiment as 2 rear-guard; it was

quickly destreyed by axtiliery. Ba Cut snd Soai headed fer hideouts. Hinh

fled to Cambodia. Our old friend, Captain Gial, whom we bad takea to

the Fhilippines whon he was on Hinh's staif planning a coup, was reported

to have beea killed by Ba Cut in anger over the disaster. One of the

studants from Redick's former English classes for mistrasses was

reported to have been in Cat Von with Hinh, safely sscaped to Cambodia;

we ware relieved that this lovely, spirited girl got away.

The {ailure of a French-type of sect uprising was followed by a bitter
and at times hysterical psychological operation by the French. Its main
theames were:

1). The basic French mistake in 1945 was in not giving Vietaam its
independence. From then on, France was supported by U.5. dellars and
was ao leager able to act as a free agent. In every showdown, France
had to give in to U,.8. policy, which was the root of all trouble in lado-
China. Cardinal Speliman influsnced the U.5. to back Diem in 1954. The
Freach might have found & modus vivendi with Diem if ealy certain
Americans hada't encouraged his antipathy towards the Freanch. 100,000
mean of the Expeditionary Corps and 30,000 French civilians were going
home bitterly anti-American, This would drive Fraoce into the neutralist
camp, aid the Commuanists in the next election,
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2). Dictator Diem was tryiag to hold the masses through terrorism
and propaganda. The Army was corrupt. The Vietmink were increasingly

powerful, {(This line formerly included: the sects are unified and ready
to overthrow the government).

3). (In diplomatic circles). Colonel Lansdale was financing Ngo
Dinh Nbu in printing anti-Freach propaganda in a small shop in Cholon.

4). (Raymond Cartier, Paris Match, 4 June). Every Freachman
believes that Lanadals is writing anti-Freanch propaganda at his desk.
An anti-French commando group at the American Embassy is playing
& mechanical palitical game and has plunged Vietoam iato chaos.

5). (Cafes and army messes). Lansdale is now attempting to b;y
off tha Hoa Hao. Fresch Army perscanel saw him with a suitcase
coataining }-million piastres trying to bribe Ba Cut (who nobly turned down
the offer). Sosi had turasd down a Lansdale check for 150-million piastres.

Lt-Col Jorgensen had been assigned by General O'Daaiel to the Embassy,
to assist Ambassador Collins in steff planaing for a Civil Guard (nationsl
police force}. Ambassador Reinhardt had requested that Jorgensen continue
this work. SMM had brought in Colonel Valeriano to work with the
Vietnamese on this organisation, at Prosident Diem's request. Jorgensen
and Valeriano teamed up with the police experts of ths Public Admiaistra-
tion toam of Michigan State University, who hed arrived to establish a
school of public sdministration in Vietnam, usder FOA amspices. The
plan finslised by Jorgensen was under loag study by the coustry team;
the Vietaamess were impatieat to get started with thefr organisation. As
a first step, then, Jezgensen arranged for the inclusion of selected Guard
officars at the newly-established Avmy Leadership conrse st Quang Trung.
Tweaty others were solectad asd sent to Manila for a brief Constabulary
course given by the Philippices Constabulary, arrsaged by SMM through
Fresidom Company. The first group of Civil Guard officers arrived in
Manila 10 Juas; training was given under the guidance of Freedom Company.

The first ten days of June saw a seriss of killings on the streets of
Saigon and Cholon. Despite the fact that all of the victims were Freach,
propagandists 1abelled this as an "sati-American' campaign, and it was
80 reported in the U.S. press. The victims were ascurity officials and
transportation paople, mostly Corsicans recently moved down from
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Tonkin, who apparently had astempted to establish their own oplum

traffic organisation and wers stopped by Saigon gangsters from eacroach-
ing on long~held preserves.

5MM had long been attempting to reorganise Psychological Warfare
ia the Vietnamese Army, which had been an ineffective organisation since
the G-5 had supported Hinh the previous year. Civilians with assimilated
rank had been placed in G-5, but had little kaowledge of Army organisation
or capabilities. In June, Ministar Adjoint of Defense Tras Trung Dung
and Lt Phillips worked out & new paywar organization together, one which
would have effective control {rom the Ministry down through battalions,
but with military personnsl ia executive pesitions. Diem agreed to this
new organization (but has never agreed to which personnel would be
placed in key positions}. Fiunally, 15 Army officers were approved by
the Ministry to man the top organisations. Training of these men was ar-
ranged through Freedom Company at a special Philippines Army course,
including field work. While these 15 were in training in the Philippines,
SMM was informed that none of the men ware trusted sufficiently for key
jobs. Upon graduation, they werse placed back into lower echelons.

Colonel Kim, whom Diem still suspected of being a French agent,
had proven to be an oxcelleat commaader in the Binh Dinh operations.

. We had hopes that he would be selected to head all Army eaginesring

organisations. SMM arranged an indoctrination trip to the FPhilippines
for him in June, had him geatly “brain-washed' by the Filipises through
Freedom Compaay.

\

Presideat Diem had become enthusiastic about friendship with the
Philippines. He told SMM that the very opsn and warm maaner of the
Filipinos, in contrast to other Asians whose foelings ware continually
half{-masked, was imparting the tras spirit of fresdom and democracy
among Vietaamese with whom Filipines came in contact. Most of the
government aad army now.wanted to visit the Philippines, he said. Col.
Jose Banson strongly recommended to Presidest Diem that Nguyen Bao
Toaun, president of the Revolutienary Committes, be shown democracy
in action by sending him to Maanila for & visit. Toan arrived in June,
where he was taken under the wing of Freedom Company and met
leaders of both the executive and legislative branches of governmaent.
Toan was greatly interested in the Constitution. SMM arranged meetings
through Freedom Company, with two practical Filipino Constitutional
lawyers, Senator Lorenso Tanada and Dy. Juan Orendsin. Both had been
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admitted to practice befors the U.5, Supreme Court, were working

lawyers, and kasw the hard truth about politics from the inside. Toan
was grastly impressed by thase two and invited them to visit Vietnam,
at the Revolutionary Comunittee’s expense, and give advice on
constructing & constitution for Vietnam.

Two of the Binh paramilitary teams, now opsrating behind enemy
lines, opened radio contact with us, The third team sent & sourier
mossage; the Viatmich sscurity messures io its arss wers still too
atrict to permit risking radic contact with us.

SMM within the National Security Division had initiated plans to
establish a medivm-wave radie transmitter, for Free Viatnamase use,
to covar both the Vistminh avess of Tonkin and the Centex, as wall as
Center and Sonth Vistasm of Free Vietanm. The plan was origiaated

' by Lt Dave Smith, then given to SMM associate Lt-Col George Melvin.

Maelvin carried through lengthy surveys and coordination with both
USOM (FOA) and USIS. A 100 kw transmitter located in the vicinity of
Hue could dominate Tonkin over water; an oriented antenaa would give
complets coverage of the south, This was turned over to USOM and
USIS for actioa.

m. July 1955
The Philippines recognised Vietoaw oa 12 July. The story behind

. this goes back sevaral years, whan our State Department first started

suggesting this strougly to Philippines officials. In December 1954,
Seaator Claro Recto spoke out vigorously against recognition, arguing
that Vietnams was going to tura Comsnunist and the Philippines would be
smbarrassed. In June 1955, Alfenso Enriques, who repressnted
Freedom Conpany in Saigon, asd Frisco Juss San Juan, Natiomal
Commander of the Philippines Veterans Lagion, stisuded the Veterans
Convention in Cebu. They decided to push the recognition of Vietnam
through the smergency session of the Philippines Congress which had
been calisd by Presidest Magsaysay. They enlisted the support of
Senator Mac Peralta, & Legionasire.

San Juan and Enriques thea tarned to Major Bohannaa for help.
A campaign was mapped out. Mimeographed information brochures on
Vistaam waere seat to Legion posts, gongressmen, civic loaders, and
the prese. Legion posts started writiag their congressmaen. Catholic
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Action and the Junior Chamber of Commaerce were induced $o help the
campaign. When Congress convened on 8 July, there was vigorous
support for the recoguition of Vistuam from the press, from many
civic organisations. Senator Retto again attacked, but found himself
against an overwhelming tide of public opinion. On tha basis of this
popular support, Presideat Magsaysay oxtended recognition of 12 July
without waiting for ths Congress to pass a resolution. By the vime

- Recto could muster ammunition for his owa isclated stand, 23 July, it
was too Late.

One of the Binh courier routes makes uss of » sailing junk. It put
in at a proall constal spot asar Nbatrang in Central Vietnam, and the
Binkh tesm went askore to find its contact mmen.  The head of the Binhs
assigued ono of his men to mest the perthorn crow. Shortly he was
picked up at a military check~point. His name was similar to & Binh
Xuyen agent who was wanted by the Natiooal Army, and he was arrested.
He was intarrogated by being bandcuffed to a lepar, both beaten with the
same stick 1o draw blood, told he wonld now have leprosy, sad both
locked up in & tiny cell together, SMM was able to have hixn veleased.

SMM became involved in the integration of the sect forces of Phmong
(Cao Dal) and Ngo {Hos Hao), the final formula was that half of each
foxce would ba integrated s a unit and the othar half s fndividuale, all
to receive training and aguipment at Quang Trang. The prepagandiste
ware busily st work, sttempting to indace hostility betwesen the govern-
ment sod these two forces. General O'Daniel snd SMM commenced work
on the problem, with ths approval of Presideat Diem, and quickly obtained
Phuong's and Ngo's agresment 18 working principles.

One of our Heo agents was gives the task of interrogating refugees
fromn Yietminh sones and has furnished much detailed informatien, soms
of which is being compiled in a State Department study of social and
economaic conditions under the Vistminh.

Now, there ware indications from Washington that SMM paramilitary
operations would be transferred to the control of the Saigos CIA station,
apd that other SMM activities might be limited to purely clandesting
operatisns. Some of the most stalwart support persoanel in the Philippines
were being removed, The Freedom Company camp was being shut down,
limits pilaced on its operations. Since porsonnel siots for military are
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strictly limited under tlw Geneva Agresment, it appeared that there

would be little or no room for SMM. We started to work on theae
problems. ‘

General O'Daniel reorganized TRIM, with most of sur personnel
being transferred to MAAG, into the Direct Aid Liaison Section. In
the reorganised TRIM, he gave SMM secret responsibility for the G-2
Branch of the Aymy Division. SMM plaeced this under associate Lt-Col
Melvin, with Lt Phillips to help him. 1.t Joseph Palastra was added
1ater, to train Vietnamese commandos. This G~2 Branch is respon-
sible for all intelligence, psywar, raager, and paramilitary training
of the Vietnamese Army. The Vietminh Army has the capability of
over-running Free Vietnam; the National Army is planned 10 have the
capability of delaying that enemy until the SEATO nations can send in
forces to help, but SEATO has plain escape clauses for its participating
nations. Thus, there is the distinct possibility of large portions of
Free Vietaam belug occupied by the Vietmish snemy ia the future. If
this happens, Army personnel aow being trained by the G-2 Branch of TRIM
will be the key to resistance by the Free Vistaamese, just as they will

be the key to present actions against Vietminh paramilitary hrcn south
of the 17th Parallel.

SMM itself was reorganised to fit the TRIM and MAAG reorgaai-
sations. The new SMM has four teams: Folitical~-Psychological (Blue),
Paramilitary (White), Intelligence-Security (Gold), and Support (Red).

" The Whits team has been separated physically from the others. Lt

Huago, who has been on duty in the Philippines as our support Jiaison
officer, will be recalled for parsmilitary duties at SMM, with another
officer replating him in Manila.




- DECLASSIFIED IN FULL

Autharity: EO 13526 el

i Chief, Records & Decjass Div, WHS

Date:  may 19 2014

IV, ORGANIZATION, SAIGON MILITARY MISSION
31 July 1955

CHIEF
Col Edward Laasdale, USAF
leocsaasrnrscacases MANILA LIAISON
Lt Victor Hugo, USA

EK O
Lt Joseph Redick, USNR

-
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- OPERATIDNS
Lt-Col Gordon Jorgensen, USAR#
POL-PSYWAR PARAMILITARY INTELL & BUPPORT
{BLUE) {YHITE) SECURITY (RED)
Lt Rufus Phillips, Maj Lucien Conein, (aoﬁ) 1t Frank Garbers,
USAR, Chief USAR, Chief Lt-Cal Edmund USAR, Chief
Querean, USAR,
Ls John Gates, Jr, Maj Fred Allen, Chief Lt Jerome
USMCR USAR Morris, USNR
’ ' Lt Edward
Lt Richard Lt Cristopher Williams, USAR 8gt Charles
Mellor, USNR Dock, USAR Sandman, USA
Lt George
Lt Joseph Moseley, USAR PFC Elweod
Palastra, USA Butler, USA
PEC Willimm

Flanagan, USAR
OPN ASBOCIATE
Lt-Col George Melvia, USAR
{¢Acts as Deputy Chief in Col Lansdale's absence)

FORMER MEMBERS

Army: ) Navy: Air Force:

L:-Col Raymond Wittmayer Lt Edward Bain Lt-Col Jesus Villamor
Capt Michael Moriarity Lit Robert Andrews

Lt David Smith 14 Lawrence Sharpe {assoc)

Lt Richard Halloran

M/Sgt Alex Alvares Marine Corps:

Capt Richard Smith
Capt Artour arvousi
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V. EXPENDITURES

Bxpenditures listed here are foxr FY 1955. While this doas not
cover the precise psriod of the repoxt, it does cover all major
expenditures. Expenditures not covered are minor recurring expenses.
Included herein ara initial costs for establishing the mussion, such as
official vehicles and office equipment. Pay and allowances of U.8

personnel are not included, nor are weapons, ammaunition and ra.diou
drawn from U,5. stocks.

Opeunam. including pay snd expenses of agents
(including Binh and Heo paramilitary teams), safa-
, houses, transportation (such as a sailing juak)

Support Equipmesat, such as vehicies, safes, desks,
darkroom photographic equipment, office squipment

Living Quarters, mostly Saigon but iocludes Haiphong,
both cities were landlorda’ heaven

Per Diem and Travel, includiag $20, 565 for Vietnamese
Garde Civile personnsel trained in the Fhilipploes (the
bulk of this money will be reimbuused to us); & number
of U.8, personnel wera with us for fairly short periods
of TDY and received per diam; Filipinos are included

* . Esxpendable Items, such as opsrational clothing
and cover oquipment for safehcuses

’Muu_m:a of Fixed Praoperty

Storage, Maiantenance and Operation of Vehicles,
gasoline aud oil are bought un the local market

s ‘Wages (or local caretaker, guard personnel
Miscmum. includiag transporiation of property,
confidential fund c.uuno charges

Totrl
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MEMORANDUM FOR SECRETARY McNAMARA ~———&&
DEPUTY SECRETARY GILPATRIC

From: Brig. Gen. Lmadale%d

Subject: A Cold War Win

What does it take to win in the cold war? Allen Dulles
has agreed that it might be useful to you and General Taylor,
as you consider this problem, to read a closely-held report
of some successful work in the past. A copy is attached,

The report covers one yea
n hurriedly in the ¢
midst of conflict, ce etails digguised. It shows

what a handful of dedicated and qualified Americans can do,
when properly on target and supported.
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I, FOREWORD

Please note that this report is classified as "sensitive"
as well as "secret."

This is the condensed account of one year in the operations
of a "cold war" combat teatn, written by the team itself in the
field, little by little in moments taken as the members could,

The team is known as the Saigon Military Mission. The field is
Vietnam. There are other teams in the field, American, French,
British, Chinese, Vietnamese, Vietminh, and others. Each has
its own story to tell. This is ours,

The Saigon Military Mission entered Vietnam on 1 June 1954
when its Chief arrived. However, this is the story of a team,
and it wasn't until August 1954 that sufficient members arrived
to counstitute a team. 8o, this is mainly an account of the

team!'s first year, from August 1954 to August 1955,

It was often a frustrating and perplexing year, up close.
The Geneva Agreements signed on 21 July 1954 imposed restrictive
rules upon all official Americans, including the Saigon Military
Mission, An active and intelligent enemy made full use of legal
rights to screen his activities in establishing his stay-behind
organizations south of the 17th Parallel and in obtaining quick
security north of that Parallel. The nation's economy and com-
munications system were crippled by eight years of open war.
The government, including its Army and other security forces,
was in a painful transition from colonial to self rule, making
it a year of hot-tempered incidents, Internal problems arose
quickly to points where armed conflict was sought as the only
solution. The enemy was frequently forgotten in the heavy at-
mosphere of suspicion, hatred, and jealousy,

The Saigon Military Mission received some blows from allies
and the enemy in this atmosphere, as we worked to help stabilize
the government and to beat the Geneva time-table of Communist
takeover in the north, However, we did beat the time-table,

The government did become stabilized. The Free Vietnamese are
now becoming unified and learning how to cope with the Communist
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enemy. We are thankful that we had a chance to help in this work
in a critical area of the world, to be positive and constructive in a
year of doubt,

I, MISSION

The Saigon Military Mission (SMM) was born in a Washington
policy meeting early in 1954, when Dien Bien Phu was still holding
out against the encircling Vietminh. The SMM was to enter into
Vietnam quietly and assist the Vietnamese, rather than the French,
in unconventional warfare. The French were to be kept as friendly
allies in the process, as far as possible.

The broad mission for the team was to undertake paramilitary
operations against the enemy and to wage political-psychological
warfare, Later, after Geneva, the mission was modified to pre-
pare the means for undertaking paramilitary operations in Com-
munist areas rather than to wage unconventional warfare.

On the scene, the team undertook another essential task in
warfare, a task which has been overlooked by our side on a num-
ber of "'cold war' battlegrounds. This task was to provide some
measure of staff work and coordination for the U.S, leader (the
Ambassador, in his role as Chief of Mission), to help him weld

N a political-military~-economic-unconventional warfare team re-
quired for success in the "'cold war." It was this self-imposed
tasgk which added the extra hours of work each day, and for which
this team has become noted,

In a "hot" war, a military commander has a staff to assist
him and a commander for each unit in the forces ynder him, In
a "“cold" war, the U.S. commander is usually a civilian and has
a commander for each unit under him, political, psychological,
economic, military, and unconventional, The Embassy staff is
made to function as a general staff by necessity, but has little
time to do so and still meet Washington requirements levied on
it. Embassy staff members have become little more than official
reporters for Washington agencies, The "country team'" is not a
staff in a military sense. It is in reality a commanders conference.

In Vietnam, we are facing an enemy who has a general staff
experienced in the strategy and tactics of a "cold" war. This
means that the enemy fights as a team, making effective use of
political, psychological, economic, military, and unconventional

2
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forces by using them in a coordinated manner. It is this team-
work by the enemy which has brought ue so many staggering de-
feats after the shooting stopped in World War II; staggering,
because in that brief period the enemy has occupied and now
holds 2 3/4 million square miles of land which was formerly

free and has made captive some 700-million buman beings who
were formerly free.

SMM's self-imposed task of performing cold-war staff functions
for the Ambassador grew out of the necessities of the situation,
received official sanction for the coordination part of its role,
but was not always understood. The team recognized the necessity
and performed well, for it knows that its primary mission is to

help bring defeat to the Communists, and providing staff work is
one vital role for victory.

I, HIGHIJIGHTS OF THE YEAR

a. Ea.rlx Days

The Saigon Military Mission (SMM) started on 1 June 1954
when its Chief, Colonel Edward G. Lansdale, USAF, arrived in
Saigon with a small box of files and clothes and a borrowed type-
writer, courtesy of an SA-16 flight set up for him by the 13th Air
Force at Clark AFB. lLit-General Jobhn O'Daniel and Embassy
Charge Rob McClintock had arranged for his appointment as
Asgistant Air Attache, since it was improper for U, S, officers
at MAAG at that time to have advisory conferences with Vietnamese
officers. Ambassador Heath had concurred already. There was
no desk space for an office, no vehicle, no safe for files. He
roomed with General O'Daniel, later moved to a small house rented
by MAAG. Secret communications with Washingion were provided
through the Saigon station of CIA,

There was deepening gloom in Vietnam. Dien Bien Phu had
fallen, The French were capitulating to the Vietminh at Geneva.
The first night in Saigon, Vietminh saboteurs blew up large am-
munition dumps at the airport, rocking Saigon throughout the
night., General O'Daniel and Charge McClintock agreed that it
was time to start taking positive action. O'Daniel paved the
way for a quick first-hand survey of the situation throughout the
country. McClintock paved the way for contacts with Vietnamese
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political leaders, Our Chief's reputation from the Philippines

had preceded him, Hundreds of Vietnamese acquaintanceships
were made quickly,

Working in close cooperation with George Hellyer, USIS
Chief, a new psychological warfare campaign was devised for
the Vietnamese Army and for the government in Hanoi. Shortly
after, a refresher course in combat psywar was constructed and
Vietnamese Army personnel were rushed through it, A similar
course was initiated for the Ministry of Information, Rumor

campaigns were added to the tactics and tried out in Hanoi, It
was almost too late.

The first rumor campaign was to be a carefully planted story
of a Chinese Cornmunist regiment in Tonkin taking reprisals against
a Vietminh village whose girls the Chicoms had raped, recalling
Chinese Nationalist troop behavior in 1945 and confirming Viet-
namese fears of Chinese occupation under Vietminh rule; the
story was to be planted by soldiers of the Vietnamese Armed
Psywar Company in Hanoi dressed in civilian clothes, The troops
received their instructions silently, dressed in civilian clothes,
went on the mission, and failed to return. They had deserted to
the Vietminh, Weeks later, Tonkinese told an excited story of the
misbehavior of two Chinese Divisions in Vietminh territory. In-
vestigated, it turned out to be the old rumor campaign, with Viet-
namese embellishments.

There was political chaos, Prince Buu Loc no longer headed
the government. Government ministries all but closed. Bao Dai
remained at Cannes. The more volatile leaders of political groups
were proposing revolution, which included armed attacks on the
French. Col. Jean Carbonel of the French Army proposed estab-
lishing a maquis with Vietnamese (Nungs and others) known to him
close to the Chinese border and asked for our backing, Our reply
was that this was a policy decision to be made between the FEC top
command and U, S, authorities.

Oscar Arellano, Junior Chamber International vice-president
for Southeast Asia, stopped by for a visit with our Chief; an idea
in this visit later grew into "Operation Brotherhood'.
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On 1 July, Major Lucien Conein arrived, as the second mem-
ber of the team. He is a paramilitary specialist, well-known
to the French for his help with French-operated magquis in Ton-
kin against the Japanese in 1945, the one American guerrilla
fighter who had not been a member of the Patti Mission. He
was assigned to MAAG for cover purposes. Arranged by Lt-Col

Wm. Rosson, a meeting was held with Col Carbonel, Col Nguyen
Van Vy, and the two SMM officers; Vy had seen his first combat

in 1945 under Conein. Carbonel proposed establishing a maquis,
to be kept as a secret between the four officers. SMM refused,
learned later that Carbonel had kept the FEC Deuxieme Bureau
informed. Shortly afterwards, at a Defense conference with
General O'Daniel, our Chief had a chance to suggest Vy for a com-
mand in the North, making him a general, Secretary of State for
Defense L.e Ngoc Chan did so. Vy was grateful and remained so.

Ngo Dinh Diem arrived on 7 July, and within hours was in
despair as the French forces withdrew from the Catholic provinces
of Phat Diem and Nam Dinh in Tonkin, Catholic militia streamed
north to Hanoi and Haiphong, their hearts filled with anger at French
abandonment. The two SMM officers stopped a planned grenade
attack by militia girls against French troops guarding a warehouse;
the girls stated they had not eaten for three days; arrangements
were made for Chinese merchants in Haiphong to feed them, Other
militia attacks were stopped, including one against a withdrawing
French artillery unit; the militia wanted the guns to stand and fight
the Vietminh. The Tonkinese had hopes of American friendship and
listened to the advice given them. Governor Tri died, reportedly
by poison. Tonkin's government changed as despair grew. On
21 July, the Geneva Agreement was signed. Tonkin was given to
the Communists, Anti-Communists turned to SMM for help in
establishing a resistance movement and several tentative initial
arrangements were made,

Diem himself had reached a nadir of frustration, as his country
disintegrated after the conference of foreigners. With the approval
of Ambassador Heath and General O'Daniel, our Chief drew up a plan
of overall governmental action and presented it to Diem, with Hellyer
as interpreter, It called for fast constructive action and dynamic
leadership. Although the plan was not adopted, it laid the foundation
for a friendship which has lasted,
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Oscar Arellano visited Saigon again, Major Charles T. R.
Bohannan, a former team-mate in Philippines days, was in town,
At an SMM conference with these two, "Operation Brotherhood"
was born: volunteer medical teams of Free Asians to aid the
Free Vietnamese who have few doctors of their own, Washington
responded warmly to the idea. President Diem was visited; he
issued an appeal to the Free World for help. The Junior Chamber
International adopted the idea. SMM would monitor the operation
quietly in the background,

President Diem had organized a Committee of Cabinet Ministers
to handle the problem of refugees from the Communist North, The
Committee system was a fallure., No real plans had been made
by the French ox the Americans. After conferences with USOM
{FOA) officials and with General O'Daniel, our Chief suggested to
Ambassador Heath that he call a U, S, meeting to plan a single
Vietnamese agency, under a Commissioner of Refugees to be
appointed by President Diem, to run the Vietnamese refugee program
and to provide a channel through which help could be given by the
U.S., France, and other free nations. The meeting was called and
the plan adopted, with MAAG under General O'Daniel in the coordinat-
ing role, Diem adopted the plan. The French pitched in enthusias-
tically to help, CAT asked SMM for help in obtaining a French con-
tract for the refugee airlift, and got it. In return, CAT provided

SMM with the means for secret air travel between the North and
Saigon.

Later, through Dr, Wesley Fishel who was an intimate friend
of President Diem, we induced the Vietnamese government to honor
U,S. and other personnel who had aided in refugee work., We devised
a Presidential Citation ribbon which was awarded to rmilitary person~
nel, The citation itself was written by us, A number of SMM per-
sonnel most intimately connected with aiding the refugees never
received this honor, for "cover" reasons.

b. August 1954

An agreement had been reached that the personnel ceiling of
U.S. military personnel with MAAG would be frogen at the number
present in Vietnam on the date of the cease-fire, under the terms
of the Geneva Agreement. In South Vietnam this deadline was to
be 11 August. It meant that SMM might have only two members
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present, unless action were taken, General O'Daniel agreed to
the addition of ten SMM men under MAAG cover, plus any others
in the Defense pipeline who arrived before the deadline. A call
for help went out, Ten officers in Korea, Japan, and Okinawa
were selected and were rushed to Vietnam,

SMM had one small MAAG house. Negotiations were started
for other housing, but the new members of the team arrived be-
fore housing was ready and were crammed three and four to a
hotel room for the first days. Meetings were held to access
the new members! abilities. None had had political-psychological
warfare experience. Most were experienced in paramilitary and
clandestine intelligence operations. Plans were made quickly,
for time was running out in the north; already the Vietminh
had started taking over secret control of Hanoi and other areas
of Tonkin still held by French forces.

Major Conein was given responsibility for developing a
paramilitary organization in the north, to be in position when
the Vietminh took over. He was assigned Army Captain Michael
Moriarty, Navy Lt Robert Andrews, and Army Lt Frank Garbers.
With General O'Daniel's help, this teamn was moved north immedi-
ately as part of the MAAG staff working on the refagee problem,
The team had headquarters in Hanoi, with a branch in Haiphong.
Among cover duties, this team supervised the refugee flow for the
Hanoi airlift organized by the French. One day, as a CAT C-46
finished loading, they saw a small child standing on the ground below
the loading door. They shouted for the pilot to wait, picked the
child up and shoved him into the aircraft, which then promptly
taxied out for its takeoff in the constant air shuttle. A Viet-
namese man and woman ran up to the team, asking what they had
done with their small boy, whom they'd brought out to say good-
bye to relatives, The Chagrined team explained, finally talked
the parents into going south to Free Vietnam, put them in the next
aircraft to catch up with their son in Saigon.

Army Lt Rufus Phillips and Marine Capt Arthur Arundel
volunteered to aseist in political-psychological warfare and
were assigned for liaison with G-5 of the Vietnamese National
Army, with the community seli-help program of the Ministry of
Social Action, and with USIS. They learned rapidly. Arundel
later was case officer for some effective "black' strikes against
the Vietminh, Phillips became an outstanding psychological
warrior, beloved by the Vietnamese Army.

7
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Navy Lt Joseph Redick, with his excellent French, was made
executive assistant to the Chief. He worked twelve to twenty hours
a day in our labors to shape weapons against the Vietminh and con-
struct a political base for the struggle. Lt Redick had rushed in
directly from Washington to beat the deadline.

A second paramilitary team was formed to explore possibili-
ties of organizing resistance against the Vietminh from bases in
the south. This team consisted of Army Lt-Col Raymond Witt-
mayer, Army Major Fred Allen, and Army Lt Edward Williams,
The latter was our only experienced counter-espionage officer
and undertook double duties, including working with revolutionary
political groups. Major Allen eventually was able to mount a
Vietnamese paramilitary effort in Tonkin from the south, barely
beating the Vietminh shutdown in Haiphong as his teams went in,
trained and equipped for their assigned missions,

Navy It Edward Bain and Marine Captain Richard Smith were
assigned as the support group for SMM, Actually, support for
an effort such as SMM is a major operation in itself, running the
gamut from the usual administrative and personnel functions to the
intricate business of clandestine air, maritime, and land supply of
paramilitary materiel. In effect, they became our official smugglers
as well as paymasters, housing officers, transportation officers,
warehousemen, file clerks, and mess officers. The work'load was
such that other team members frequently pitched in and helped.

c. September 1954

Highly-placed officials from Washington visited Saigon and,
in private conversations, indicated that current estimates led to the
conclusion that Vietnam probably would have to be written off as a
loss. We admitted that prospects were gloomy, but were poeitive
that there was still a fighting chance.

On 8 September, SMM officers visited Secretary of State
for Defense Chan and walked into a tense situation in his office.
Chan had just arrested Lt-Col Lan (G-6 of the Vietnamese Army)
and Capt Giai {G-5 of the Army). Armed guards filled the room.
We were told what had happened and assured that everything was
all right by all three principals, Later, we discovered that Chan
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was alone and that the guards were Lt-Col Lan's commandos, Lan
was charged with political terrorism (by his "action' squads) and

Giai with anti-Diem propaganda (using G-5 leaflet, rumor, and
broadcast facilities).

The arrest of Lan and Gial, who simply refused to consider
themselves arrested, and of Lt Minh, officer in charge of the
Army radio station which was guarded by Army troops, brought
into the open a plot by the Army Chief of Staff, General Hinh, to
overthrow the government, Hinh had hinted at such a plot to his
American friends, using a silver cigarette box given him by
Egypt's Naguib to convey the hint, SMM became thoroughly in-
volved in the tense controversy which followed, due to our Chief's
closeness to both President Diem and General Hinh. He bhad met
the latter in the Philippines in 1952, was a friend of both Hinh's
wife and favorite mistress. (The mistress was a pupil in a small
English class conducted for mistresses of important personages,
at their request, by Lt Redick),

While various U, 8, officials including General O'Daniel and
Foreign Service Officer Frank Meloy participated in U.S. attempts
to heal the split between the President and his Army, Ambassador
Heath asked us to make a major effort to end the controversy.

This effort strained relations with Diem and never was successful,
but did dampen Army enthusiasm for the plot. At one moment, when
there was likelihood of an attack by armored vehicles on the Presi-
dential Palace, SMM told Hinh bluntly that U, S, support most prob-
ably would stop in such an event. At the same time a group from
the Presidential Guards asked for tactical advice on how to stop
armored vehicles with the only weapons available to the Guards:
carbines, rifles, and hand grenades. The advice, on tank traps
and destruction with improvised weapons, must have sounded grim,
The following morning, when the attack was to take place, we
visited the Palace; not a guard was left on the grounds; President
Diem was alone upstairs, calmly getting his work done.

As a result of the Hinh trouble, Diem started looking around
for troops upon whom he could count, Some Tonkinese militia,
refugees from the north, were assembled in Saigon close to the
Palace. But they were insufficient for what he needed. Diem made
an agreement with General Trioh Minh The, leader of some 3,000
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Cao Dai dissidents in the vicinity of Tayminh, to give General

The some needed financial support; The was to give armed support
to the government if necessary and to provide a safehaven for the
government if it had to flee. The's guerrillas, known as the Lien
Minh, were strongly nationalist and were still fighting the Vietminh
and the French, At Ambassador Heath's request, the U.S, secretly
furnished Diem with funds for The, through the SMM, Shortly

afterwards, an invitation came from The to visit him. Ambassador
Heath approved the visit,

On'15 September, a2 small SMM party in civilian clothes visited
Trinh Minh The at his mountain hideout, Nui Ba Den, not far from
Tayninh. His troops and small arms factories were inspected. He
pledged support to the government, asked for U,S, friendship, and
agreed only to defend himself againet the French and not initiate
attacks. Unknown to the French high commmand, The later made a
pact with local French commanders to permit them to report opera-~
tions which actually were contrived so that the forces did not meet,
At SMM's request, General The released French prisoners he held.

Shortly after the General The meeting, the French complained
officially to Ambassador Heath, asking that Lansdale be recalled
from Vietnam for his anti-French work, Ambassador Heath refused.
The French had a violent hatred for The, blaming him for the death
of General Chanson, and had implanted agents close to him,

President Diem encouraged contacts between SMM and sect
military leaders such as Trinh Minh The. Shortly after this, he
had Hoa Hao General Nguyen Giac Ngo contact us, explaining that
he didn't want us to give material help to Ngo, but to teach Ngo
bhow to earn the love and affection of his people, Another leader
was Hoa Hao General Lam Thanh Nguyen, whom Diem warned us
was avaricious, Following Diem!s advice, we kept our contacts
with Nguyen brief and social.

The northern SMM team under Conein had organized a para-
military group (which we will disguise by the Vietnamese name of
Binh) through the Northern Dai Viets, a political party with loyalties
to Bao Dai, The group was to be trained and supperted by the U. S,
as patriotic Vietnamese, to come eveninally undexr government
control when the government was ready for such activities., Thirteen
Binhs were quietly exfiltrated through the port of Haiphong, under
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the direction of Lt Andrews, and taken on the first stage of the
journey to their training area by a U,S. Navy ship. This was the

first of a series of helpful actions by Task Force 98, commanded
by Admiral Sabin,

Another paramilitary group for Tonkin operations was being
developed in Saigon through General Nguyen Van Vy, In September
this group started shaping up fast, and the project was given to
Ma.jo;' Allen, (We will give this group the Vietnamese name of
Heo.

Our paramilitary groups came from political parties which
later developed into opposition against President Diem, making
our work highly sensitive. Both the French and British have
dabbled in the troubled waters of these political parties.

On 25 September, the government was re-shuffled to make room
for Cao Dai and Hoa Hao leaders in the Cabinet, The United States,
among others, had advocated this move as part of "broadening the

base of government", Cabinet meetings took on a distinct Mach-
iavellian air,

Towards the end of the month, it was learned that the largest
printing establishment in the north intended to remain in Hanoi
and do business with the Vietminh, An attempt was made by SMM
to destroy the modern preesses, but Vietminh security agents al-
ready had moved into the plant and frustrated the attempt. This
operation was under a Vietnamese patriot whom we shall call Trieu
Dinh; his case officer was Capt Arundel, Earlier in the month,
they had engineered a black psywar strike in Hanoi: leaflets
signed by the Vietminh instructing Tonkinese on how to behave
for the Vietminb takeover of the Hanoi region in early October,
including items about property, money reform, and a three-day
holiday of workers upon takeover., The day following the dis-
tribution of these leaflets, refugee regisiration tripled. Two
days later, Vietminh currency was worth half the value prior to
the leaflets. The Vietminb took to the radio to denounce the
leaflets; the leaflets were so authentic in appearance that even
most of the rank and file Vietminh were sure that the radio de-

nunciations were a French trick,

The Hanoi psywar strike had other consequences, Dioh had
enlisted a high police official of Hanoi as part of his team, to
effect the release from jail of any team members if arrested,

1
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SMM "'Black" leaflet distributed in Hanoi just before the Vietminh

entered the city. The Vietminh were largely unsuccessful in denying
this,

VIET-NAM DAN-CHU CONG-HOA -~ nim thd X

BONG BAO THU-BO HOANG-DIEU:

Miy tham dyr eufe dai lién-hoan
ky niém ngdy thd d6 Hodng-Diéu
dwge giadl phéng.

UY BAN KHANG CHIEN HANH CHINE
HOANG-DIEU yéu eau todn thd din chéng ndi
ngozi thinh Hodng-Diéu hiy hudng Tng cufe
dei lién-hodn trong ba ngdy do Téng-cdng-dodn
Lao-déng Vi§t-Nam to-chire véi su hop tfe cla
chinh quyén nhin din d& Zn mirng ngiy thi d6
Hodng-Diéu duwge giai phbng khdi 4ch nd-1¢
cta chinh phd bl nhin lam tay sai cho thwe
d8n Phap.

Trong dip d5:

1) Céng nhin bit luln cde nginh, trir
ngénh Céng An, s% dwge nghi ba ngiy 11,12,
18 thing mwdi.
2) H6 Chd-tieh, sau 8 ndm xa cich, s& chinh
thire ra mit ddng bio thi dé tai Cdng trudng
Nhi Hit Lbn vdo ngdy 12 thing 10 sdp tbi.
3) Dé that chit tinh thin thién qudc t¥
voi phidn din Viét-Nam, cong nhin Lign S§ va
cOng nhin Trung-qube sé gl bidu thwe phim v
quin d0 cho cdc cdng nhan bi sbng dwéi ban tay
st clia dich tai Thi-do, Nhiing t3ng phim db
88 dwge phit khong cho déng bio trong ba
ngdy lién-hoan sip téri. ,
UY MAN KHANG CHIEN HANH CHINH
THANH HOANG-DIEU
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The official at the last moment decided to assist in the leaflet distri-
bution personally. Police officers spotted him, chased his vehicle
through the empty Hanoi streets of early morning, finally opened fire

on him and caught him. He was the only member of the group caught.
- He wae held in prison as a Vietminh agent.

d. October 1954

Hanoi was evacuated on 9 October. The northern SMM team left
with the last French troops, disturbed by what they had seen of the
grim efficiency of the Vietminh in their takeover, the contrast between
the silent march of the victorious Vietminh troops in their tennis shoes
and the clanking armor of the well-equipped French whose western tactics
and equipment had failed against the Communist military-political-

economic campaign. CCIA 3.3(b)(1) 0SD3.3(b)( I )

The northern team had spent the last days of Hanoi in contaminating
the oil supply of the bus company for a gradual wreckage of engines in
the buses, in taking the first actions for delayed sabotage of the railroad
{which required teamwork with a CIA special technical teaﬂhﬂ
performed their part brilliantly), and in writing detailed notea of potential
targets for future paramilitary operations (U.S. adherence to the Geneva
Agreement prevented SMM {rom carrying out the active sabotage it
desired to do against the power plant, water facilities, harbor, and bridge).
The team had a bad moment when contaminating the oil. They had to work
guickly at night, in an enclosed storage room. Fumes from the contami-

nant came close to knocking them out. Dizzy and weak-kneed, they masked
their faces with handkerchiefs and completed the job.

Meanwhile, Polish and Russian ships had arrived in the south to trans-
port southern Vietminh to Tonkin under the Geneva Agreement. This
offered the opportunity for another black psywar strike. A leaflet was
developed by Dinh with the help of Capt Arundel, attributed to the Vietminh
Resistance Committee. Among other items, it reassured the Vietminh
they would be kept safe below decks from imperialist air and submarine
attacks, and requested that warm clothing be brought; the warm clothing
item would be coupled with a verbal rumor campaign that Vietminh were
being sent into China as railroad laborers.

SMM had been busily developing G-5 of the Vietnamese Army for such
psywar efforts. Under Arundel's direction, the First Armed Propaganda
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Company printed the leaflets and distributed them, by soldiers in
civilian clothes who penetrated into southern Vietminh zones on foot.
{Distribution in Camau was made while columnist Joseph Alsop was

on his visit there which led to his sensational, gloomy articles later;
our soldier '"Vietminh'' failed in an attempt to get the leaflet into
Alsop's hands in Camau; Alsop was never told this story). Intelligence
reports and other later reports revealed that village and delegation

committees complained about ''deportation’’ to the north, after distri-
bution of the leaflet.

SMM had been working to develop a civilian-military team of

Vietnamese for 'pacification” of Vietminh dominated areas south of

the 17th Parallel. Our hope was to have Army psywar personnel make
up composite teams with personnel from the Ministries of Social Action,
‘ Information, and Public Health. (SMM had worked with Social Action

in June and July, in community self-help projects, and had instituted
community voting with symbols for illiterates). Despite the bitter
contention between the Army and the civil government, SMM managed to
bring officers and officials together in a series of luncheon meetings

at our Chief's house and construct a joint working committee of
Vietnamese for the effort. Lt Phillips took the committee to the
Philippines in October, for a firsthand inspection of Philippines military-
civil operations which had been so successful against the Communist
Huks. The committee returned, cordial friends and full of ideas.

As part of the work to narrow the rift between government and Army,
Navy Lt Lawrence Sharpe, an intelligence officer with Task Force 98 who
had been a classmate of Vietnamese Army officers at the Ft Bragg Army
Psywar School, was transferred for temporary duty with SMM by Admiral
Sabin. With Ambassador Heath's approval, Sharpe was moved in with
his friend Lt Minh, who was in command of the Army Radio Station, Army
radio broadcasts had undertaken a biting character assassination of
President Diem and had picked up a big audience in south Vietnam. Army
psywar cfficers and others close to Hinh told us that the anti-government
pro-Hinh propaganda campaign wae being run by Jean Barre, United Press
correspondent and publisher of a weekly newsletter circulated in the French
community. Sharpe was instructed by us to gain editorial control of the
broadcasts, in stages: switch from character assassination of Diem to
attacking him for not taking action against Communist subversion in the
south, and then again switch from that to a plain-attack against the
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the Communists for their subversive work. It was a tricky task,
because the broadcast propaganda line had to be changed after the
French propagandists had written it and they kept close tabs on the
radio station. One U.S. official complained bitterly to SMM about
an American being at the anti-Diem radio station, although the
operation was explained to him. USIS wanted to remove U.S. equip-
ment they had given to the radio station, but armored vehicles and

troops guarding the station made this unfeasible. Lt Sharpe worked
hard at his task, with partial success.

On 14 October, the first medical team of Filipino volunteers
for "Operation Brotherhood'' arrived, 7 doctors and 3 nurses. SMM,
working with Dr Ho Quang "Manny" Phuoc and other members of the
Saigon Junior Chamber of Commerce, found a place for them to atay,
vehicles, and furnishings. Their original bedding came off our own
beds. The Filipinos quickly established a clinic in the refugee center
at Bien Hoa. SMM has continued being momma and papa to this group
of dedicated volunteers ever since. We're proud that they have earned
accolades from leaders of the free world and have won such a place in
the hearts of the Vietnamese that word of this unselfish help by free
Asians has seeped through all the way to the Chinese border and into
areas held by dissidents such as Ba Cut, with patients smuggled through
to them, Vietnamese leaders have told us that these Filipinos brought
with them the best medicine for a sick nation: courage,

Contention between Diem and Hinh had become murderous.
Adherents of each side died in a dirty, gangster-type of warfare of
tommy -gun fire from moving vehicles, grenades thrown into houses,
kidnappings and tortures. Our work of attempting a compromise
solution became most difficult; as we met with friends on either side, we
hoped that our friends on the other side hadn't picked that moment for an
attack. Finally, we learned that Hinh was close to action; he had
selected 26 October as the morning for an attack on the Presidential
Palace. Hinh was counting heavily on Lt-Col Lan's special forces and
on Captain Giai who was running Hinh's secret headquarters at Hinh's
home . We invited these two officers to visit the Philippines, on the
pretext that we were making an official trip, could take them along and
open the way for them to see some inner workings of the fight against
Filipino Communists which they probably would never see otherwise.
Hinh reluctantly turned down his own invitation; he had had a memorable
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time of it on his last visit to Manila in 1952, Lt-Col Lan was a

French agent and the temptation to see behind-the-scenes was too
much. He and Giai accompanied SMM officers on the MAAG C-47
which General O'Daniel instantly made available for the operation.

26 October was spent in the Philippines. The attack on the Palace
didn't come off.

e, November 1954

General Lawton Collins arrived as Ambassador on 8 November.
He appointed Col Lansdale as a member of his personal staff.
Collins flew to Dalat to meet the French chief, General Ely. On his
return to Saigon, Collins said that Ely had asked for the removal of
Lansdale but that this request was politely but firmly turned down.

Collins, in his first press conference, made it plain that the U.S.
was supporting President Diem. The new Ambassador applied
pressure on General Hinh and on 29 November Hinh left for Paris,
His other key conspirators followed.

Part of the SMM team became involved in staff work to back up
the energetic campaign to save Vietnam which Collins pushed
foward. Some SMM members were scattered around the Pacific,
accompanying Vietnamese for secret training, obtaining and shipping
supplies to be smuggled into north Vietnam and hidden there. In the
Philippines, more support was being constructed to help SMM, in
expediting the flow of supplies, and in creating Freedom Company,

a non-profit Philippines corporation backed by President Magsaysay,
which would supply Filipinos experienced in fighting the Communist
Huks to help in Vietnam (or elsewhere).

SMM conducted a field survey of Vietnamese Army operations in
a Vietminh dominated area, the Long-My district near Soctrang, and
discovered that Lt-Col Duc, the local commander, was applying many
of the lessons which we had been teaching. Troops were courteous,
they had constructed a achool and were holding classes for both
children and adults with Army volunteers as teachers, they had helped
rebuild the market place and church, they carried out active patrolling,
and they had placed locked boxes to receive information and suggestions
from the population. People responded to the treatment. In a few days
they started being friendly with the troops (something usually reserved
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for Communist troops in Asian countries) and, after a Vietminh night
hand-grenade attack on the market place, information about names

and locations of the Vietminh cadres started to flow to the Army from
the people.

Upon return from the survey trip, SMM gave briefings on its
findings to Ambassador Collins, General O'Daniel, and U.S. officers
in MAAG. Col Jose Banzon, Philippines military observer, assisted
SMM in the briefings. SMM suggested that President Diem visit
Soctrang and Long-My, to give impetus to the work of the troops.
Ambassador Collins enthusiastically backed the idea. The ensuing
trip was the first of a series of such visits, with the Army winning over
an area and backed up soon by a visit by the President. The people

responded warmly. The visiting by a leader was a new experience for
them.

The SMM survey trip also revealed a movement towards Camau
by Hoa Hao rebel Ba Cut, who appeared to be picking up some Vietminh
cadres in his move and adding them to his ranks. People in the
Rachgia area told us stories of tortures by the Ba Cut forces. One
torture was new to us, the driving of small nails into the ear drum,
Some weeks before, Trinkh Minh The had had a sharp brush with Ba
Cut in the Seven Mountains region close to the Cambodian border;
both The and Ba Cut had requested SMM intervention to arrange a
truce, but Ba Cut's terms seemed to consist almost solely of receiv-
ing arms and ammunition from SMM which we refused; General The
had finally taken a small party of scouts into Ba Cut’s rear and sur-
prised Ba Cut and his staff, who were promptly brought down by
automatic-weapons fire; Ba Cut had been left for dead on the field, but
prompt medical aid (reportedly by a French surgeon) saved his life.
Shortly after this, the Vietnamese Army had a disastrous campaign
against Ba Cut in the same area, with Ba Cut directing his troops
from a stretcher. Vietnamese Army officers were convinced that
French advisers with them had brought about the disaster; these
officers were particularly bitter about a French-arranged truce,
French orders to cease fire and entruck in a convoy which turned out
to be a Ba Cut ambush as soon as the troops were in the trucks. True
or not, the Vietnamese believed it.

On 23 November, twenty-one selected Vietnamese agents and two
cooks of our Heo paramilitary group were put aboard a Navy ship in
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the Saigon River, in daylight, They appeared as coolies, joined
the coolie and refugee throng moving on and off ship, and dis-
appeared one by one. It was brilliantly planned and executed,
agents being picked up from unobtrusive assembly points through-
out the metropolis, Lt Andrews made the plans and carried out
the movement under the supervision of Major Allen, The ship
took the Heo agents, in compartmented groups, to an overseas
point, the first stage in a movement to a secret training area.

f. December 1954 -

General Le Van Ty was appointed Chief of Staff on 12 Decem-
ber, Our friend General Vy had been acting as Chief of Staff, was
slated to be moved up to the top position in the Vietnamese Army,
Inspector General. Vy had refused the Chief of Staff post while
Hinh was still in Vietnam. We arranged a meeting of the two
generals with Ambassador Collins for an informal talk on the
necessity of keeping partisan politics out of the Army.

Meanwhile, discussions between the U,S,, Vietnamese and
French had reached a point where it appeared that a military
training misesion using U.S, officers was in the immediate offing,
General O'Daniel had a U, S, -French planning group working on
the problem, under Col, Rosson, One paper they were developing
was a plan for pacification of Vietminh and dissident areas; this
paper was passed to SMM for its assistance with the drafting, SMM
wrote much of the paper, changing the concept from the old rigid
police controls of all areas to some of our concepts of winning over
the population and instituting a classification of areas by the amount
of trouble in each, the amount of control required, and fixing
responsibilities between civil and military authorities. Witha
few changes, this was issued by President Diem on 31 December as
the National Security Action (Pacification) Directive,

President Diem had been worrying about the veterans, liked
the idea of a veterans legion as a patriotic civic organization, and
stated that he would welcome Phillppines help. - This was a task for
the newly organized Freedom Company, which sent the National Com-
mander of the Philippines Veterans Legion, Frisco Juan San Juan,
for a brief survey. San Juan brought with him Alfonso Enriquez, who
had been active in the PVL and formerly chief of police in Samboanga.
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Enriquez stayed on as Saigon representative of Freedom Company,
eventually opening a small office across the street from the Ministry
of Defense in Saigon, and working with both the President and the
Defense Minister in organizing what later became the Vietnamese
Veterans Legion. The main difficulty was in finding veterans who
had real leadership and had remained loyal to Diem in the Hinh
crisis; it was a frustrating and puszling search for the Filipinos

(and for us), since the government constantly changed its mind about
loyalties as rumors, reports and suspicions about persons continued

to flood the Presidency, SMM gave guidance and help from the back-
ground,

The Freedom Company office in Saigon became, in effect, the
unofficial Philippines consulate for a long period, Col. Jose Banzon,
official observer for his government, frequently was asked for
assistance in getting visas and taking care of other consular chores.
As exchange between Vietnam and the Philippines increased, he asked
Freedom Company for help, eveninally depended upon them for most
of the work, It gave Enriquez and his staff, as well as SMM, an un~
usual knowledge of the Filipino colony in Vietnam.

There was still much disquiet in Vietnam, particularly among
anti-Communist political groupe who were not included in the govern-
ment, SMM officers were contacted by a member of such groups
who felt that they "would have to commit suicide in 1956 (the 1956
Plebiscite promised in the 1954 Geneva Agreement) when the Viet-
minb would surely take over against so weak a government. One
group of farmers and militia in the south was talked out of migrating
to Madagascar by SMM and staying on their farms. A number of
these groups asked SMM for help in training personnel for eventual
guerrilla warfare if the Vietminh won, Persons such as the then
Minister of Defense and Trinh Minh The were among those loyal to
the government who also requested such help. It was decided that
a more basic guerrilla training program might be undertaken for
such groupse than was available at the secret training site to which
we had sent the Binh and Heo groups. Plans were made with Major
Bobannan and Mr, John C. Wachtel in the Philippines for a solution
of this problem; the United States backed the development, through
them, of a small Freedom Company training camp in a hidden valley
on the Clark AFB reservation,

Till and Peg Durdin of the N, Y, Times, Hank Lieberman of the
N.Y. Timea, Homer Bigart of the N.Y, Herald-Tribune, John
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Mecklin of Life-Time, and John Roderick of Associated Press,
have been warm friends of SMM and worked hard to penetrate
the fabric of French propaganda and give the U.S, an objective
account of events in Vietnam, The group met with us at times
to analyze objectives and motives of propaganda known to them,
meeting at their own request as U,8, citizens. These mature

and responsible news correspondents performed a valuable ser-
vice for their country.

Army 1t David Smith, who had had political and paychological
warfare experience, arrived for six months temporary duty (count-
ing travel time). His performance was superior, Lt Smith, and
others sent in for short tours of temporary duty, barely had time
to learn Vietnam's problems, became constructive members of

the team, before their time was up, These short tours plagued
SMM,

SMM had a number of political acquaintances useful to Am-
bassador Collins, One of these was former Defense Minister
Pham Huy Quat, leader of the Northern Dai Viets, whom Collins
felt would be a strengthening addition to the government since
he had had cabinet experience in previous governments. SMM
teamed up with Dr Wesley Fishel, promoted several meetings
between Diem and Quat, but Diem never came around to inviting
Quat to join his government, Later, following a Cao Dai propa-
ganda attack on Quat personally (which seemed to amuse members

of the government), Quat went into open opposition. SMM has
maintained friendship with Quat and his associates.

8. Jammary 1955

The Vietminh long ago had adopted the Chinese Comnmunist
thought that the people are the water and the army is the fish.
Vietminh relations with the mass of the population during the
fighting had been exemplary, with a few exceptions; in contrast,
the Vietnamese National Army had been like too many Asian armies,
adept at cowing a population into feeding them, providing them
with girls. SMM had been working on this problem from the be-
ginning, Since the National Army was the only unit of government
with a strong organization throughout the country and with good
communications, it was the key to stabilizing the situation quickly
on a nation-wide basis. If Army and people could be brought to-
gether into a team, the first strong weapon against Communism
could be forged.
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The Vietminh were aware of this, We later learned that months
before the signing of the Geneva Agreement they had been planning
for action in the post-Geneva period; the National Army was to be
the primary target for subversion efforts, it was given top priority
by the Central Committee for operations against its enemy, and
about 100 superior cadres were retrained for the operations and
placed in the Dich Van organization for the work, which commenced
even before the Agreement was signed. We didn't know it at the

time, but this was SMM's major opponent, in a secret struggle for
the National Army,

At General O'Daniel's request, SMM worked out a reorganiza-
tion of the National Army's 6th Bureau to fit U,5. concepts. Its
operational intelligence was transferred to G-2, It retained special
Counter Espionage and an "action force" similar to our rangers.

General O'Daniel was anticipating the culmination of long
negotiations to permit U,S, training of the Vietnamese Armed
Forces, against some resistance on the part of French groups.

In Janvary, negotiations were proceeding so well that General
O'Daniel informally organized a combined U. S, -French training
mission which eventually became known as the Training Relations
& Instruction Mission (TRIM) under his command, but under the
overall command of the top French commander, General Paul Ely,

The French had asked for top command of half the divisions
in the TRIM staff. Their first priority was for command of the
division supervising National Security Action by Vietnamese, which
could be developed into a continuation of strong French control of
key elements of both Army and population. In conferences with
Ambassador Collins and General O'Daniel, it was decided to transfer
Colonel Lansdale from the Ambassador's staff to TRIM, to head the
National Security division. Colonel Lansdale requested authority
to coordinate all U, S. civil and military efforts in this National
Security work., On 11 January, Ambassador Collins announced the
change to the country team, and gave him authority to coordinate
this work among all U.S, agencies in Vietnam,

The new task, too vital in the fight against Communism to be
passed up, required a reorganization of SMM. Two teams were
formed, the Whites and the Blues. The White team, under Major
Conein, was given the responsibility for all paramilitary and support
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duties of SMM, and wag to remain compartmented from other
activities, The Blues, under newly arrived Lt-Col Edmund
Quereau, were responsible for all political-psychological war-
fare duties of SMM and were moved into the National Security
Division of TRIM, This split was dictated by the French move
of placing their trained intelligence and security officers into
the National Security Division of TRIM,

Life with the French in the National Security Division was
a curious and unpleasant experience just below the surface.
Some of the French officers were clearly charged with res-
ponsibility for espionage on U,S, officers in TRIM, at times
were obsexrved writing reports on U,S, personnel. The chief of
staff of TRIM, French Colonel Carbonel, brought in his old comrade
Lt-Col Jacques Romain-Defosses as Lansdale's deputy. Cazbomnel,
Romain-Defosses, and Axelrad were known within the FEC as
"the Three Musketeers” for their intelligence and paramilitary
activities in Vietnam in the past ten years. Axelrad, a civilian,
later joined the National Security Division as a 1t-Col., 14-Col
Revol, advisor to G-6 of the National Army when the G-6 organi~
zation was engaged in terrorist acts against President Diem's
government during the Hinh revolt, joined the National Security
Division. Others, such as Major Bounssiquet who was quickly
transferred from an attache post in Pakistan, were brought in,
This French group apparently worked under the daily direction
of TRIM's chief of staff, Colonel Carbonel, and daily fed us the
latest French propaganda line {Diem was weak, Diem was blood-
thirsty, the YNA had low morale, the VNA was unable to fight,
Americans didn't understand the Vietnamese, all whites must
encourage only selected Vietnamese loyal to the French because
the remainder would turn against all whites in another "night of
long knives" similar to that of 1946).

Despite the under-surface friction, there was immediate
work to do, The Vietnamese Army needed help in mounting and
carrying out the occupation of zones being vacated by Vietminh
forces under the Geneva Agreement. Two large zones were left
for regrouping and transfer of Vietminh forces: the Camau
peninsula on the southeran tip of Vietnam (to be vacated 8 Feb-
ruary) and a Central Vietnam zone south of Tourane consisting
of Binh Dinh province and half of Quang Ngai province (to be
vacated 22 April). The National Security Division was assigned
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responsibility for the success of these operations by Ambassador
Collins and General O'Daniel, including logistical support, planning,
movement, personnel, training, and psychological problems. Per-
sonnel were borrowed from other TRIM divisions and organized

into a field team which moved to Sootrang with the VNA command post
for the Camau operation. Lt Philips was assigned to the field team
for psychological warfare. An Operations Brotherhood field team

of Filipino medical personnel was assigned to Camau, with Lt. Smith
as the SMM officer responsible in Saigon,

The pressure of work to be done and social gatherings at the
Chief's house overcame enough of the friction between the French
and us to permit teamwork to develop in the National Security Divi-
sion. {However, as French officers were won over and started
to work sincerely with us, they seemed to earn transfers and were
shipped out of Vietnam.) At its peak load, the National Security
Division was carrying out 26 large projects., The projects included
the take~over of V ietminh zones, planning security "sweeps' by the
VNA, making useful citizens of demobilized soldiers, integrating
sect forces, extending government into the villages, uaing the Army
to fight illiteracy, securing weak points along the Laotian and Cam-
bodian borders, directing security surveys of the nation, and training
G-2, G-5, and G-6,

President Diem had continued requesting SMM help with the guard
battalion for the Presidential Palace. We made arrangements with
President Magsaysay in the Philippines and borrowed his senior aide
and military adviser, Col Napoleon Valeriano, who had a fine combat
record against the Communist Huks and also had reorganized the
Presidential Guard Battalion for Magsaysay. Valeriano, with three
junior officers, arrived in January and went to work on Diem!'s guard
battalion, Later, selected Vietnamese officers were trained with the
Presidential Guards in Manila, An efficient unit gradually emerged.
Diem was warmly grateful for this help by Filipinos who also con-
tinuously taught our concept of loyalty and freedom.

The patriot we've named Trieu Dinh had been working on an
almanac for popular sale, particularly in the northern cities and
towns we could still reach. Noted Vietnamese astrologers were
hired to write predictions about coming disasters to certain Vietminh
leaders and undertakings, and to predict unity in the south, The work
was carried out under the direction of Lt Phillips, based on our con-
cept of the use of astrology for psywar in Southeast Asia, Copies of the
almanac were shipped by air to Haiphong and then smuggled into Vietminh
territory,
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Dinh also had produced a Thomae Paine type series of essays
on Vietnamese patriotism against the Communigt Vietminh, under
the guidance of Capt Arundel, These essays were circulated among
influential groups in Vietnam, earned front-page editorials in the
leading daily newspaper in Saigon. Circulation increased with the
publication of these essays. The publisher is known to SMM as The
Dragon Lady and is a fine Vietnamese girl who has been the mistress
of an anti-American French civilian, Despite anti-American remarks
by her boy friend, we had helped her keep her paper from being
closed by the government (Hellyer did this) and she found it profitable
to heed our advice on the editorial content of her paper,

Arme and equipment for the Binh paramilitary team were being
cached in the north in areas still free from the Vietminh, Personnel
movemente were covered by the flow of refugees. Haiphong was
reminiscent of our own pioneer days as it was swamped with people
whom it couldn’t shelter. Living space and food were at a premium,
nervous tension grew, Itwas a wild time for our nothern team.

First supplies for the Heo paramilitary group started to arrive
in Saigon. These shipments and the earlier ones for the Binh group
were part of an efficient and effective air smuggling effort by the
581st Arc Wing, U.S, Air Force support SMM, ‘with help by CIA
and Air Force personnel in bo SMM
officers frequently did coolie labor in manhandling tons of cargo, at
times working throughout the night, Marine Capt Smith had been in
charge of SMM cargo operations., They later became the responsi-
bility of Army Lt Garbers. All available other officers pitched in
to help, as part of our 'blood, sweat and tears',

<A 3.3(b)()  0SD3.3(b)( 1 )

President Diem made a trip to Central Vietnam. Unscheduled
stops and unrehearsed demonstrations by the population clearly
demonstrated Diem's popularity, and seemed to surprise French
Army officers and journalists who were on the scene (apparently,
they had believed French propagandists who claimed that Diem was
unpopular, weak, and supported only by Americans). SMM gent
Army Lt Smith along on the trip to evaluate Diem's popularity. His
report became useful in reappraising Diem in several official U.S.
quarters.

By 31 January, all operational equipment of the Binh paramilitary
group bad been trans-shipped to Haiphong from Saigon, mostly with
the help of CAT, and the northern SMM team had it cached in operational
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SZ:lteB. Becurity measures were being tightened at the Haiphong
airport and plans for bringing in the Heo equipment were changed
from the air route to sea. Task Force 98, now 98. 7 under com-

mand of Captain Frank, again was asked to give a helping hand and
did so.

h. February 1955

Operation "Liberty", the occupation of Camau, commenced on
schedule 8 February, After consultation with General O'Daniel, and
at Vietnamese request, all TRIM officers of the field team in Soc-
trang were brought back to Saigon, except for Lt, Phillips who
entered Camau in civilian clothes. The Operations Brotherhood
medical team of Filipinos set up medical clinice along the road as
quickly as their trucks stopped, kept the clinics open 24 hours a
day by working in shifts.

In Saigon, Ambassador Collins unconsciously gave SMM an
accolade in a country team meeting. He had heard that only one
TRIM officer remained of the field team for Camau, a lieatenant,
when he had distinctly ordered a team of field grade officers,
General O'Daniel explained that the field grade officers had done
their work, beem pulled back. Ambassador Collins said that it
was too soon, to get the teamn back there again and not leave so
much responsibility to one lieutenant. General O'Daniel replied
that the lieutenant was Phillips, ''one of Lansdale's team', 'Oh,

that's different then', replied Collins graciously. FPhillips stayed
on alone, got the job done.

We bad a closely-coordinated working relationship with USIS
for "Operation Liberty", as we did in many of our other projects,
USIS printed up 3-million leaflets written by SMM which were air-
dropped by the Vietnamese Air Force in Comau and later in Binh
Dinh, We also have had exceptionally fine working relationships
with the USIS-USOM muotion picture group under Charles Mertz, not
only in producing psywar films but in the making of training and
indoctrination films as well,

In Saigon, SMM worked long hours to keep logistical support
flowing into Camau. It was found that the medical support plan
had b een based upon faulty reports of available supplies, among
a numaber of other problems which faced us suddenly. 1t. Dave
Smith unscrambled the medical problem, but often found himself
loading medical supplies on aircraft himseelf, Other problems
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included the need for potable water, troop behavior of units which
arrived at the last minute for the operation and had missed the
indoctrination course designed by SMM, and road-building equip-
ment, Anti-Vietminh activities were carried out by a former
Vietminh leader who had broken with the Communists; Diem had
discussed this with SMM and permitted us to work with the opera-
tions commander, Col Due, on this; one action included the off-
loading of cloth and sewing material from a ship in Bangkok and
flying it to the operation, with the cooperation of USOM (FOA),
CARE, and MAAG-Thailand. Colonel Banzon stayed with the
Operations Brotherhood team, was invaluable in arranging its
field support and in making full psychological use of the team
among Vietnamese who had been under Vietminh domination for
many years.

Freedom Company in the Philippines reported that it had com-
menced work on a training camp, for our use as needed, and had
christened it Camp Batson after the first U.S, officer with the
Philippine scouts.

For some weeks, SMM had been working quietly with Trinh
Minh The at Diem's request to bring about the integration of his
Lien Minb troops into the National Army, On 13 February, a
regiment of the Lien Minh arrived from Ba Den mountain and were
integrated at a public ceremony in Saigon attended by President
Diem and many foreign observers, After he was made a general
in the National Army, The walked over and shook hands with the
two SMM members present in the section for foreigners, then re-
joined the President for the review. (This action by The caused
caustic comments by the French afterwards, although their intellj-
gehce reports already had noted The's relations with SMM, bheen
confirmed previously by the U.S. Ambassador.) The Lien Minh
were in black calico uniforms, the men closest to the reviewing
stand wearing tennis shoes. The others were barefoot. Although
their uniforms were faded to a dirty gray, and they were barefoot,
their weapons were in excellent condition, clean and ready for use.
These were fighting men whose leader had pledged them to SMM,
who in turn had insisted that they be loyal to Vietnam.

There is a lesson here for everyone concerned with ''control"
of foreign persons and groups. The strongest control ie one that
is self-imposed; it is based upon mutual trust and the awakening
of unselfish patriotism on ideals or principles we ourselves cherish.

Once established, the foreign person or groups serve our own best
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national interests by serving their own highest national interests )
which coincide with ours, SMM based its own methods on a happen-
ing when Corregidor and Bataan were besieged by hostile J apanese
in early 1942, Philippine President Quezon had cabled the President
of the United States, pointing out that an enemy was gaining control
of the countryside, that many Filipinos had died fighting with the
Americans against this enemy, that to continue the struggle might
well cost many more lives, probably without avail, and would the
United States release the Philippines from its pledge to continne

the fight so that it could withdraw from the struggle? The President
of the United States cabled back his reply. The United States was
sympathetic towards the plight of the Philippines and freed them to
do as they chose, but the United States had pledged itself to defend
the Philippines and would continue to honor its word by continuing

to fight as long as there were U.S. soldiers for the fight. Word

of these two cables was whispered by Filipino after Filipino through-
out the islands, The manner in which the Philippines remained
loyal to the same cause as the United States amazed the world, The
United States has an immense fund of honor and ideals to draw

upon among many peoples and nations; it is there, awaiting correct
use.

Since early in 1955, President Diem and Defense Minister Ho
Thon Minh had been discussing a Vietnamese substitute for the
French-conceived Groupes Administratifs Mobiles (GAM's), a
form of military government used in the fight against the Vietminh,
Minister Minh had given Kieu Cong Cung the task of formulating
a Vietnamese organization which would be more permanent than
the GAM's, Both Diem and Minh instructed Cung to obtain the advice
of our Chief, who brought in the Blue Team of SMM to start helping
Cung. After discussions with President Diem, the project was
given the name of Civic Action which translated well in Vietnamese.
President Diem gave one of his trusted men, Tran Trung Dung,
responsibility for developing the project further; Cung became deputy
to Dung. SMM requested a census of government employees, since
USOM (FOA) had only sketchy estimates. The plan was to establish
a small coordinating group under the President and send trained
government employees into the provinces, to establish government
at the village level and connect it with the national government,
Villages were often dominated by secret Vietminh cadres, had been
left alone by the French administration, knew little or nothing of the
national government,
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Defense Minister Minh called two meetings of all military
and civil authorities from the regions and the provinces. The
Presidential Directive of 31 December on National Security Action
was explained and discussed, along with implementing directives
to the Armed Forces from the Defense Minister. Conditions in
each province were discussed and its proper zone classification
(created by SMM) assigned by mutual consent, Methods of con-
structing a team between people-government-army, and of using
that team against the Communist Vietminh, along lines which SMM
had consistently been teaching in Vietnam, were described by Viet-
namese officials, discussed, and adopted by most of the officials
present, (Later, U.S, observers were surprised to find these
methods working successfully in remote areas.)

During the last day of the second big meeting of regional and
provincial officials, Mr, Dung introduced his plan for Civic Action,
It met a storm of protest. Provincial chiefs looked upon it as an
attempt by the central government to decrease provincial authority.
(The U.S. country team had reacted in much the same manner to
the plan.) Diem, Dung, Cung, and Minh in the following daye were
insistent that Civic Action be started. SMM suggested some modifica-
tions of the plan, which were adopted. President Diem ordered
Dung and Cung to start, gave them a small budget. They started
recruiting cadres from the Ministries of Public Health, Education,
Social Action, and Information and commenced training the first
team of these cadres, to dress like villagers, live simply, and
work hard to help the villages. On funde eked out a little at a time,
mostly under Cung’s leadership, a pilot project was tried (SMM
brought U.S,, French and Vietnamese officials to inspect this pilot
project) and Civic Action gradually spread to ten provinces, without
U.S. material aid, Province chiefs changed their tune, started ask-
ing for teams for their provinces.

Ag part of National Security Action, SMM suggested that the
President visit Camau, talk with the people there who had lived under
the Vietminh, The President did so. It was a successful visit, al-
though there was still evidence of the existence of Vietminh political
cadres. The National Security Division of TRIM was busily listing
and studying the lessons learned in the Caman operation, while
planning the next major occupation of Binh Dinh and Quang Ngai,
Again, this was our responsibility,
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On 28 February, U,S, Secretary of State Dulles visited Vietnam.
He was much struck by Operations Brotherhood and the warmly
favorable reaction it had caused among the Vietnamese people. He
remarked on it in his public statements.

The atmosphere in Vietnam was lightening. We were learning
more about the enemy south of the 17th Parallel, were able to start
making specific plans to combat him with increasingly stronger
military and governmental actions.

i. March 1955

The Blue Team of SMM in the National Security Division became
heavily engaged in a number of problems, the most immediately com-
plex of which was in planning the demobilization of the National Army,
which didn't want to be demobilized, Fiscal reasons dictated that
the Army be phased down from ite strength of 260, 000 at the start
of the year to about 100, 000 in the Fall. As troops were demobilized,
Vietminh agents exploited the situation, pointing out that the Vietminh
were now sure to win since their own forces were being strengthened
(this was among mountain people being softened by Vietminh para-
military forces), Other troops, as they saw their eight-year way of
livelihood about to end, took to the hills with their weapons and became
bandits, Still others were recruited by sect forces, to awell the
ranks of the private armies. Complicating the problem was the fact
that most soldiers bad married, with an average of wife and three
children per soldier. This meant about 800,000 persona would be

affected by the demobilization, making it an even larger problem
than that of the refugees from the north,

Since our Chief had been given authority to coordinate U.S.
agencies in such work and to contact Vietnamese officials as needed,
a series of work groups was established of Americans, French and
Vietnamese to find solutions to the problem, It was decided to
discharge persons with homes south of the 17th Parallel, as far as
possible. President Diem backed this with a directive. A quick
survey was made of all public works projects, so that troops in the
neighborhood could be discharged and given priority for jobs on the
projects; this was keyed in with Defense Ministry demobilization
orders. With the help of Ambassador Collins, FOA chief Leland
Barrows, and General O'Daniel, 5-million piastres were made
available to permit demobilization pay of one-thousand piastres per
man as an emergency measure, Then a work group was assigned to
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come up with a more permanent solution, preferably one that
would combine solutions to both the refugee and demobilization
problems, The immediate crisis had been met.

Another knotty problem was that of the private armies, the
sect forces. In early March, it was estimated that the sects had
a total of about 40, 000 men under arms, Somehow, the best sect
troope would have to be selected and integrated into the National
Army, and the remainder demobilized, Most of these troops had
been paid suppletifs of the French Expeditionary Corps, but pay-
ments had ended in February; the national government had had to
start paying the bill, Ambassador Collins and General Ely dis-
cussed the problem. Ely would contribute all funds he could make
available, Collins would try to obtain whatever remainder was
necessary. They appointed Colonel Lansdale to head a Franco-
American work group to come up with a peaceful solution to the

problem of the sect armies, to work closely with General Gambiez
while Ely made a quick trip to France.

The French and American work group was formed quickly,
split into teams, One team obtained facts on status of forces,
strengths, numbers and types of weapons, rates of pay, and
available means of livelihood, Other teams worked on economic,
political, and psychological aspects of the problem. The whole
group caught the spirit of working hard and fast, obtained facts
about the sects hitherto only loosely reported, soon had some
practical solutions being worked out. We knew that time was running
out for us, the sects were getting restless, In the closing days of
our work, we worked right around the clock, coming up with our
proposed solution ahead of deadline., General Ely returned from
Paris, He and Ambassador Collins met with our work group,
decided to give the matter further study. We warned them that
time was extremely short, that the sects were about to take action
by arms and that a peaceful solution would have to be introduced
immediately or the oppertunity would be lost. The opportunity
was lost.

While we had been working on the problem of the sect forces,
the leaders of the sects {most of whom were now members of the
government) had held a series of secret meetings, formed a United
Front, General Trinh Minh The conferred with SMM on the problem,
describing these meetings to us almost as they met. He felt that
he could be most useful on the inner council of these meetings, rather
than walk out of them. Bay Vien and Ba Cut were the ringleaders,
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were advocating an anti-Diem and anti-U, 5. program. We asked
General The to confer with President Diem; we saw President

Diem separately. It was decided to have The stay with the United
Front's inner council temporarily.

As a play to break the trend towards an armed coup against
the government, our Chief asked for a meeting with Ambassador
Collins, General O'Daniel, and the Embassy political staff, re-
commending to them that the initial step be a briefing of sect
leaders on the future of the National Army, the briefing to be
given by O'Daniel, Lansdale, Rosson, and Carbonel at TRIM,

This was agreed to and accomplished to allay sect fears of the
future.

Immediately after the TRIM briefing, however, Bay Vien called
another meeting of the United Front, presented it with an ultimatum
to be sent to President Diem asking him to meet a series of demands
or leave office, Everyone present was forced to sign, under moral
suasion. Trinh Minh The signed. So did General Phuong, commander
of the regular Cao Dai forces. Cao Dai Pope Tac had been made
president of the United Front, Both Generals The and Phuong im-
mediately conferred with us. We pointed out that Bay Vien and Ba
Cut were planning armed rebellion in the immediate future, that
Vietnamis real future lay in a political solution to the problem,
that Diem as a true nationalist offered a way out politically to
them, and that they should withdraw from the United Front. They
both premised to do 8o, and were told to see Diem and advise him
of their true intention.

It is worth noting here that relations between SMM and the Cao
Dai military leaders were based on trust and respect, not money.
We bad become friends. The only money, aside from the initial
fund for the Lien Minh given to President Diem, was the small
amount gpent for food and drink during our conferences.

At President Diem's request, we had been seeing him almost
nightly as tensions increased, our sessions with him lasting for
hours at a time, He was trying desperately to get French and U, S,
help to remove the Surete from the control of the Binh Xuyen, who
had purchased control of surete and police from Bao Dai in the late
Spring of 1954 for a staggering sum, including part of the Binh Xuyen
take from gambling, prostitution, and the opium traffic. French and
U.S. reactions to the problem were in the form of advice to proceed
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slowly, to act with caution. Events would not permit this. Binh
Xuyen terrorist squads were acting with automatic weapons and
grenades, mostly againat civilians; a favorite tactic was to use
sub-machine-gun fire on civilian pedestrians at a crowded inter-
section, then make a fast get-away. Diem decided to gain some
measure of control by taking over the prefectural police, On

28 March, a company of paratroopers took over the prefectural

police building on rue Gallieni; across the street were Binh Xuyen
barricades.

Days before, we had quietly warned U,8. agencies of the
possibility of trouble, We agked our Filipino friends in Operation
Brotherhood and Freedom Company to institute nightly curfews.
Two doctors arrived the evening of 28 March from Camau, stating
that the situation there was being endangered by Ba Cut and that
they wanted duty either in quiet Saigon or to return to Manila,

We sent them to the Brotherhood BOQ, about two blocks away from
the Cholon prefectural police headquarters, It came under mortar
fire in the early morning. The doctors went home to Manila the
next day, The other Filipinos stuck it out, earned further honor
by their volunteer care of civilian wounded,

At midnight 28-29 March, the Presidential Palace started
receiving mortar fire, one shell hitting the outer wall of the
President's bedroom, On rue Gallieni, the Binh Xuyen attacked
the prefectural building, were repulsed and then chased down the
street. Another paratroop company, in truck convoy on the way
to the prefectural building, came under machine-gun fire from a
drugstore. The drugstore was quickly demolished, SMM requested
permiasion to send personnel to the Palace; permisgsion was denied.
A telephome check gave us a preliminary idea of the situation:some
casualties among the troops at the Palace, the Binh Xuyen driven
away from the prefectural police building, the Army moving in and
taking up positions around the many Binh Xuyen fortified strong-
pointg in the city,

General Ely had decided on imposing a cease-fire, obtaining
Ambassador Collins! concurrence in the early morning, French
officers and troops moved in and stopped the fighting, Ely saw
Diem and insisted upon his desisting from all armed action. The
morning sun saw the troops facing each other, often only a few
feet from each other, dug in behind sandbags, dirt or concrete
structures. Our Chief saw Ambassador Collins early in the morning,
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explaining that only the Binh Xuyen would gain by the cease-fire,
that a government which did not control its own police forces in
its own capital and permitted a hostile armed force to exist in its
midst, a hostile force which had opened fire upon the Presidential
Palace, was a government without the power of sovereignty and
would be so recognized by the people. The French imposed and

U.S. backed cease-fire was continued. Ambassador Collins was
sincerely convinced that the Binh Xuyen could be induced by

French negotiations to withdraw from the Surete and police control
of the metropolis,

The French had b een insistent that the National Army was a
hollow shell, that its officers would refuse to fight, that morale
was so bad the troops would desert rather than follow "bloody Diem., "
The clandestine United Front radio station, which SMM had located
at Ambassador Collins' request as situated at the Y-bridge head-
quarters of the Binh Xuyen, carried the same theme re a “blood-
thirsty' Diem, Colonel Lansdale was placed on the death list by
this same radio station. French intelligence and security officers
at TRIM were jubilant, although they became glum when we pointed
out how the paratroopers made the Binh Xuyen run, that all of us
were working to make the National Army stronger and should be
proud of the way they proved their combat mettle.,

Meanwhile, Major Conein had briefed the members of the Binh
paramilitary team and started them infiltrating into the north as
individuals. The infiltration was carried out in careful stages over
a2 30-day period, a successful operation. The Binhs became normal
citizens, carrying out every day civil pursuits, on the surface.

We had smuggled into Vietnam about eight and a half tons of
supplies for the Heo paramilitary group, They included fourteen
agent radios, 300 carbines, 90,000 rounds of carbine ammunition,
50 pistols, 10,000 rounds of pistol ammunition, and 300 pounds of
explosives, Two and a half tons were delivered to the Heo agents
in Tonkin, while the remainder was cached along the Red River by
SMM, with the help of the Navy.

On 31 March, General Phuong and his staff attended a ceremony
at the Presgidential Palace, Eight thousand of his Cao Dai troops
were being integrated in the National Army, Pope Tac had left
the United Front after a spat with Bay Vien, which included some
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sharp remarks about the Binh Xuyen being chased down rue Gallieni
by the paratroopers in the early morning of 29 March. Cao Dai
forces under Soai and Ba Cut had failed to join the revolt, despite
the attempts by French journalists to describe Saigon-Cholon as
""blockaded" by these forces, While Phuong was being sworn in

at the Palace, we were sitting in the President’s bedroom listen-

ing to a detailed run-down on the military and political situation
by himself and his staff,

j. April 1955

During the first half of April, there was a continuing decline
of public trust in the Diem government, brought about by the cease-
fire., Binh Xuyen terrorists shot up the town at night, The Surete
remained under Binh Xuyen control. Binh Xuyen troops manned
their positions throughout the city. French armored vehicles and
troops guarded a large sector of Saigon, extending their boundary
lines even further after the late March affair. Bao Dai sent a
message to Diem pointing out that Diem had caused the shedding
of blood of innocent civilians by his rash actions and was hardly
the man to head a government; a copy of this message was also
given the Binh Xuyen, who used it over their radio station and in
leaflets, Diem was held back from taking corrective measures
by the French and U,S, governments, based on the expressed
French desire 'to prevent more bloodshed",

French journalists and Binh Xuyen propaganda then took up
the theme that Colonel Lansadale was really to blame for the blood
shed by innocent Vietnamese civilians and that he was rashly pro-
voking another World War. In a few short days, his name had
been placed on five "death lists”, The propaganda line then changed
as the public uneasily wondered why Diem remained inactive against
the Binh Xuyen; the new line was that Diem was both weak and un-
popular, Unfortunately, U, S, officials who were helping make Diem
weak and unpopular now started thinking of ways of changing the
government to one that was stronger and more popular, At TRIM,
French officers kept us adequately informed of each propaganda
change, apparently being given the new line each morning with break-
fast at their mess.

Trinh Minh The was part of the Vietnamese delegation to the
Afro-Asian Conference which opened at Bandung 15 April. He had
become our intimate friend; we were planning a trip together to the
Philippines in May for which The was preparing by learning English,
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General The's propaganda theme for Bandung was worked out: Viet-
namese nationalists hated the French colonialists and had fought
against them, but hated the new Communist colonialism even worse
because it would make them slaves, which is why 700, 000 Vietnamese
had fled from living under the new Communist colonialists in the ‘
north. General The had these mimeographed, with many lurid

details, and personally handed them out to Communist delegates
at Bandung.

Meanwhile, the Heo paramilitary team had finished its training
at the secret training site and been flown by the Air Force to a hold-
ing site in the Philippines, where Major Allen and his officers
briefed the paramilitary team. In mid-April, they were taken by
the Navy to Haiphong, where they were gradually slipped ashore. |
Meanwhile, arms and other equipment including explosives were
being flown into Saigon via our smuggling route, being readied for
shipment north by the Navy task force handling refugees. The White
team office gradually became an imposing munitions depot. Nightly
shootings and bombings in restless Saigon caused us to give them
dispersed storage behind thick walls as far as this one big house
would permit., SMM personnel guarded the house night and day, for
it also contained our major files other than the working file at our
Command Post. All files were fixed for instant destruction, auto-
matic weapons and hand grenades distributed to all personnel, It
was a strange scene for new personnel just arriving,

Army Lt-Col Jorgensen reported for duty with SMM, His quick
adaption to the needs of SMM at the moment and his intelligent, ener-
getic work led to his being appointed Deputy to the Chief of SMM,

Tension mounted. With Ambassador Collins’ approval, we re-
ceived the government's plan of action against the Binh Xuyen from
Diem, for comment on its effectiveness. This was shown to General
O'Daniel, who assigned Lt-Col Hamelin to assist in the work. The
annotated plan was given back to Diem, who was still trying hard to
get either French or U.S, backing to remove the Binh Xuyen from
top positions in the Surete. The green berets of Binh Xuyen shock
troops could be seen all over town behind their fortified positions,
including Surete headquarters on rue Catinat, the main shopping
street of Saigon. The French told Diem that if he tried to take over
Surete headquarters which was now included in the French zone,
French troops would open fire on the Vietnamese Army. The United
States advised Diem to be patient, that the French were really being
helpful by negotiating with the Binh Xuyen, The cease-fire limit was

axtended. -SEGRE-
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SMM was making new friends quickly in the Vietnamese Army,
including most of the combat leaders commanding troops in Saigon-
Cholon and Mai Huu Xuan, chief of military security, whom General
Gambiez had tried to dissuade from his course of action. Size-
able sums were being offered to Army officers and to sect leaders
who were remaining loyal to Diem, to entice them into being at least
neutral. Those who refused were subjected to character-assassina-
tion attacks, which always included that they had been bought with
huge sums from Diem. We got the barest glimpse of the original
type-script of one of these attacks, in the hands of TRIM associate
Romain-Defosses who said that it had been prepared for Col Carbonel;
it was a purported intelligence report of rapes, tortures, murders,
and opium smuggling performed by Colonel Xuan, Xuan had long
been deputy Surete chief under the French; they were infuriated that
he would no longer do their bidding, Others came in for attack for
the same reason, including Colonel Don who was chief of the General
Staff and had been one of the two most promising French agents among
Vietnamese graduates of French intelligence schools. Don chose to
stick to his country, his President, and his Army, Both Xuan and
Don started working with SMM; we only asked them to be loyal to
their own country.

Old contacts started appearing. There were three different
attempts by Bay Vien and the Binh Xuyen to open secret negotiations
with SMM, one of these was via Corsican gangster friends of Major
Conein which continued right into the later fighting. The others
were through old Vietnamese acquaintances of ours, At the same time,
the Hoa Hao dissident leader Ba Cut made contact through a former
high official trusted by Diem. To them all, we replied that the U. S,
was still supporting the legal government, Diem, and that we would
listen to the dissidents only if they were willing to accept complete
surrender from their attempt at a coup. Murder threats against us
increased. There was a plot to kidnap Lansdale. Meanwhile, we
were helping the government in its work to get the Binh Xuyen chief
of staff, Colonel Manh, to rally to the government with troops loyal
to him, who comprised about half the Binh Xuyen forces.

At the National Security Division of TRIM, despite obvious French
hostility, we continued finishing plans for Operation ""Giai Phong"
(breaking of slave shackles), the name given to the National Army
occupation of southern Quang Ngai and Binh Dinh provinces, using
troops of the new 31st and 32nd Divisions. The area had been a
real stronghold of the Communists, noted as a leftist hotbed as far
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back as the early 1930's. The Mixed Commission {French- Vietminh)
had agreed on a number of phase date lines within the area for Viet-
namese occupation and Vietminh withdrawal, Communication routes
were badly damaged by the war. Almost all available shipping,
needed for landings along the thousand mile shore-line, was being
used for the evacuation of Haiphong and couldn't be spared. On top

of all the usual headaches attending logistical support of an operation,
which in our case also included support for Operations Brotherhood
medical teams, we had the additional chore of supervising the psywar
and bebavior training of all troops assigned to the operations, At the
last moment, divisional troops were moved south to reinforce Saigon-
Cholon, We had to "make do" with fewer troops. than the job required.

Colonel Le Van Kim had been assigned as commander of the opera-
tion. He had been the brightest of all Vietnamese officers given both
military and intelligence training by the French, probably the most
capable staff officer in the Vietnamese Army. President Diem was
dubious about the choice; he simply didn't trust an officer who had
been that close to the French, We offered to assign Lt Phillips to
monitor the operation, to be with Col Kim day and night, and suggested
that the President call in Kim, tell him that he knew about Kim’s past
but that he was entrusting him with an operation vital to the nation,

As in similar cases in the past, we pointed out that this was real
leadership and that Diem was the leader of his people and must
demonstrate it to them, He took the advice, expressed surprise to

us privately afterwards at the way Kim was bucked up by the confidence
placed in him. Phillips was assigned to the operation, with General
O'Daniel’s approval, the only non-Vietnamese military officer partici-
pating since Kim was firm in refusing to allow French or U, 5. officers
be present {including U, S, advisors with the 31st and 32nd Divisions),

Operation "Giai Phong" kicked off on time, 22 April. The troops
were still a little dubious about their behavior doctrine, but Kim
held them to it strictly. As the troops saw it working, they responded;
as the troops responded, started helping people along the route of
march, the people opened up to them; by the third day, the behavior
action had snow-balled into genuinely brotherly feelings between the
people and the troops. The people started to point out Vietminh stay-
behind cadres and their arme caches, started bringing food and flowers
to the troops. The news swept into the zones being closed out by the
Vietminh, where they were promising to return soon, and were warning
the people against the barbaric practices of the National Army, The last
days of the Vietminh in Dinh Dinh were spent in slinking out past a
population no longer supporting them and getting ready to welcome the
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National Army; children had been hidden in the bills, because the
Vietminh were taking boys and girls down to the age of 12 for shipment
to the north; Vietminh currency became worthless, unlike their cur-

rency in other areas, The news from Binh Dinh was cheering to us
in Saigon,

Saigon was now seething., Kidnapping of red beret paratroopers
and green beret Binh Xuyen was active daily; hacked open bodies of
victims floated down the Saigon River. The respected Chinese who
was starting to give President Diem (and SMM) the truth about the
opium traffic was kidnapped at high noon from a crowded restaurant
on a Cholon main street, never to be seen again. Colonel Xuan, whom
the President had told o help SMM on the same opium project, was
losing his best agents, French officers in the Binh Xuyen he.adquarters
were busily obtaining the release of G-6 troops kidnapped by the Binh
Xuyen, since G-6 was still being used as an arm of French intelligence,
General Ely shrugged off Diem's repeated requests for the French to
take back the six armed river vedettes of the French Navy being used
by the Binh Xuyen, refused to deliver the armored vehicles promised
months ago and held just outside of town at Bien Hoa.

General The was asked to move his troops from their camp near
Bien Hoa down into the Rung Sat area adjacent to the Saigon River,
which was being readied as a guerrilla base for the Binh Xuyen,
General The could obtain no water supply for his troops (lack of
water was to plague the Binh Xuyen later in this area) and found
French armored squadrons accompanying him as he attempted to
push towards the Rung Sat area. He left his troops in command of
Col, Cao and slipped through to Saigon to ask our help; be needed
water carriers and heavier weapons for the reduction of Binh Xuyen
strong-points ahead of him, We saw Diem, who was bitter at The's
hesitancy; we patiently explained that these were genuine military
needs, that Col Minh at First Military Region had given General The
neither essential supplies nor encouragement nor a plan of support,
and that The's effort would be wasted under these circumstances.
The President made no comment,

Major Bohannan, who had been supporting us strongly from
the Philippines, arrived in town. He had been about to viait the
U.S. on home leave, after years of extra duty in the Philippines,
but gave it up when he sensed that SMM was heading into a time of
trouble. He was a combat infantryman of experience, had been
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Colonel Lansdale's valued deputy in the struggle againe the Huks in

the Philippines. Bursts of fire from automatic weapons could be heard
around town, now and then the explosion of a plastic bomb. It was
rapidly becoming the time and place for experienced hands.

Ambassador Collins had left for Washington. He and we had been
meeting several times a day; just before he departed he told Lansdale
not to be worried by newspaper rumors that the U.S. would stop supporting
Diem. Lansdale asked then if his orders were to continue supporting
Diem; Collins said yes. Members of the country team privately felt
that Diem should be supported by us, that the National Army was ready
to support him and had the capability of defeating the Binh Xuyen.
Washington suggested that we get the country team leaders to state
this, each through his own channel. This suggestion reached us the
morning of 28 April, when we were working on support problems for
"Giai Phong" and on a proposal to transfer the veterans bureau to the

Ministry of Defense, A call came through from President Diem who
wanted us to see him urgently.

On the way to the Palace, lL.ansdale and Redick came under fire
from Binh Xuyen troops occupying the Petruski School near TRIM,
forcing them to abandon their vehicle. Civilian cyclists near them
were the only casualties. It was the usual terrorist strafing. When
it stopped, they drove past Petruski to the Palace. Diem was worried,
having just received word from his Washington Embassy that the U.S.
appeared to be about to stop supporting him, Bao Dai was ordering
him to go to France immediately, had requested a meeting there of a
number of Vietnamese, including a majority composed of Diem's
enemies, to discuss a new government. The telephone interrupted
the conversation; the call was from the General Staff. It had just
come under sub-machinegun fire from a jeep passing along rue
Gallieni, a French Army jeep driven by a white man in colonial army
uniform, with three green-beret Vietnamese handling the weapons.

Col Don had been going out the doorway of the building, almost been
hit. There were casualties. :

Diem told Col Don on the telephone to return any further fire by
the terrorists, hung up, then continued with describing his problem.
On the 25th, the majority of the police had pledged loyalty to the
government, although surete personnel were still holding out with the‘
Binh Xuyen. The trouble was that the prefectural police were becoming
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frightened for the safety of their families when they left home, since

Binh Xuyen troops still held strongpoints throughout town, French

armor protected a large sector of Saigon containing not only Surete
headquarters but aleo a Binh Xuyen reserve force of shock troops.

Most of his Cabinet had resigned as he had failed to take action against
the rebellious Binh Xuyen in the capital city. The people were furious
against this bold armed holdup of the government by what they knew

were only gangsters. Army and people laid the blame on the French,
because they could see French armored vehicles and troops in the streets,
evidently ready for action against the Vietnamese. We told him that it

looked as though Vietnam still needed a leader, that Diem was still
President, that the U,S5. was still supporting him.

Shortly after starting a late lunch at home, and making dates to
meet with General O'Daniel and Mr Barrows to ask them to send
messages to Washington through their own channels, the sound of
mortar explosives was heard. The telephone rang, amid increasing
explosions, some of which were in the neighborhood. It was Vo Van
Hai, Diem's confidential secretary on the telephone. He said that
the Palace was under heavy mortar fire, that the President was on
another line talking to General Ely, that Ely stated that he couldn't
hear any explosions and the President was holding the mouthpiece
out towards the explosions so Ely could hear them. Hai started to
ask what should be done, interrupted himself to say that the President
had just ordered the National Army to start returning the fire and had
go informed Ely. He hung up.

We had prepared for the emergency. A small team had been formed
with the CIA station in Saigon, whose acting chief Phil Potter had
voluntarily placed himself under our Chief's guidance for the emergency
period. Potter had been appointed head of a small operation group,
with Bobhannan as deputy and with members from both the CIA station
and SMM. Key houses were linked by radio. Operational planning was
done jointly, intelligence take shared instantly. All measures possible
under the limits permitted by U.S. policy were taken for action against
the Binh Xuyen and Ba Cut. (These will not be described here, but
there were a number of successful actions).

Conein had been waiting for contact with Bay Vien's men, who
8till wanted 2 conference with us. He was ordered to return from

the contact point. On the way to report in, he saw a taxi take a
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direct hit in front of him; the taxi was filled with civilians as only
Vietnamese taxis can be. Mortar fire was increasing. Some shells
were landing around the White team's building, where ammunition
and explosives had been stored. Permission was requested to
abandon the building, after destroying the files. This permission
was denied, since the building was solid enough to sustain direct
hits by 8l-mm mortar fire and still protect our stored supplies.
Even 8o, those on guard in the building were distinctly uneasy; the
National Army had set up batteries across the street which Binh
Xuyen mortars were attempting to reach. The Binh Xuyen had

set fire to a large section of Cholon and the skies darkened with

the smoke. Wrecked cars in the streets, troop movements, and firefights

between combatants in business and residential districts made detours
necessary in driving.

Our Chief had asked Charge Randy Kidder to call a meeting of the
country team, which Kidder had declined undeyr the inconclusive
circumstances of the morning. It was decided to try again, after a
brief check in at the White team house to see conditions there.
Everything was under control, so our Chief drove to the Embagsy to
see Kidder. Kidder was having a meeting with the military attaches,
They were drafting a report on the fighting for Washington to which we
contributed. When this was finished, our Chief asked Kidder again to
call a meeting of the country team that evening, the subject to be the
support of President Diem by the U.S. under the changed circumstances.
Kidder stated that he was not in position to do this, since Collins was
still Ambassador,

General O'Daniel and Mr Barrows were seen in late afternoon.
They both felt strongly that the U.S. should continue supporting Diem,
particularly now that he had been challenged and was fighting back,
but neither felt that they should so inform their headquarters, since
this was a political matter. (Next morning, Washington asked for
the views of the country team on this subject; a meeting was held; the
country team quickly agreed that Diem should be supported).

Fighting continued. We were getting fatigued, going without
sleep in planning and taking actions, in keeping Washington up to the
minute on events in Saigon. Dixie Reese, USOM {FFOA) photographer,
had taken a light civilian aircraft over the Binh Xuyen lines to get
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pictures, was shot down; the Binh Xuyen radio and propaganda leaflets

promptly announced that Reese was a spy for Colonel Lansdale. Reese
and his French pilot were killed,

The next morning, we saw Trinh Minh The. The Army had asked
him to bring his troops in from Bien Hoa and take the left flank when
the Army started driving the Binh Xuyen south across the Saigon River
and the Canal de Derivation. He was going now to get his troops and
bring them past French armor into town. He had a large scale map of
the entire area and showed us his plan. He then commented that the
people in Cholon were overjoyed that the Army was continuing the fight

and that talk had started openly against Bao Dai and the French whose
armor was clanking around the streets.

President Diem wanted to see us. Vietnamese troops had captured
some French while taking Binh Xuyen strongpoints south of rue Gallieni,
more French were seen in the Petruski School which was being reduced
by the Army, close by FEC headquarters at Camp de Mares. Bao Dai
had sent a message ordering Diem to stop the fight immediately and go
to France, that General Vy would take over. The President's eyes
were red-rimmed from lack of sleep, but he had confidence in what he
was doing. He would ignore Bao Dai. His manner was the same as a
few days previocualy when he heard that General Hinh was returning,
and calmly gave orders to either prevent Hinh's entry or arrest him
upon landing. The Hoa Hao forces of Ba Cut and Soai had not moved
towards Saigon; this was still a localized fight with the Binh Xuyen and
the Army was determined to win.

Negotiations with Colonel Manh, Bay Vien's chief of staff, had
reached a successful conclusion. His men were crossing the Canal
de Derivation; he would prepare them for joining up with the National
Army and was convinced that the men were eager to do 80; they
didn't want to fight the government. SMM worked with the Defense
Ministry on surrender leaflets, to exploit this development with the
remaining Binh Xuyen when the time came.

We had been getting reports of General Vy's movements during the
afternoon (visits to Gambiez, Quat, and others). That night, John
Mecklin of Time Magazine telephoned to say that Vy had been arrested
at the Palace. We checked with the Presidency; Vy was there but not
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under arrest. Later Major Hoai of the Lien Minh visited us. The
"Revolutionary Committee' had arrested Vy at the Palace, paratroopers
were coming to free him, and what should the Revolutionary Committee
do now? Generals The and Phuong, we learned, were members of this
Committee and at the Palace., We commented that it was a hell of a way

to run a revolution, and maybe the committee should escape out of the
back door.

Just then, The and Phuong arrived at our Chief's house, grinning in
embarrassment. President Diem had sent Vy back to the Army, to spend
the night in General Hinh's old quarters. The Revolution had failed to
arrest Vy, but the people were aroused against Bao Dai. They explained
that the Revolutionary Committee had grown out of the Front organiza-
tion which Diem's brother Nhu had tried to organize some days earlier;
they had followed our advice and had joined with Nhu in the Front, but
were dissatisfied with some of the weak organizations they felt Nhu was
depending on, so had organized something more dynamic to meet the
threat of Vy and Bao Dai, and called themselves the Revolutionary’
Committee. They wanted Bao Dai dethroned and wanted the French to
stop interfering in Vietnamese affairs.

The Presidency telephoned early the next morning. Vy had arrested
General Ty and Colonel Don, was holding them at Hinh's house, where
they were being guarded by a battalion of Imperial Guards which had
just arrived from Dalat. Could we come over? SMM officer drove
over to the Palace. As we entered, Captain Cac ran down the stairs,
told us that Vy's troops had just captured the Post Office two blocks
away (it was the communications center for Saigon) and the National
Treasury. We had barely started talking with the President when Cao returned.
He had grabbed some men from the Presidential Guards, rushed to the Post
Office and Treasury buildings, talked the Imperial Guard into leaving, and
both building were now secure. He explained that quick action was dinned
into him by Col Valeriano when he and others received training with the

Malacanang Guards in Manila receatly., The President made Cao a
major.

Colonel Don reported in. He and Ty had been released by Vy, and Vy
was leaving for Dalat with his troops (where Majors Conein and Allen met
him secretly later for a conference on our Heo project). Don and other
officers had teased Vy about being able to get gaaoline and ammunition
from the French, when they couldn't. Vy answered that the French would
give him anything. The others then asked him to call up the French and
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request the armored vehicles which the French had been holding at
Bien Hoa so long without delivery to the Vietnamese Army. The
French rushed these vehicles to Hinh's house, evidently having been
holding them just outside town for this emergency, where Army men
took them over and drove them into the fight against the Binh Xuyen.
Don said the French still hadn't caught on, still thought that Vy would
use this armor to bring the Army into line to stop fighting the Binh
Xuyen and be loyal to Bao Dai. Don added that the Army felt the
same a8 the Revolutionary Committee: Bao Dai was finished.

The addition of the armor hastened the withdrawal of the Binh
Xuyen. By noon of 30 April, almost all of their forces had withdrawn
across the Canal, except for strongpoints in Cholon which were still
maanned but cut off, National Army troops on the north bank were
exhausted, catching quick naps before attempting a crossing. Boats
were being gathered for the crossing, but the six vedettes of the Binh
Xuyen were in the canal, ready to stop the crossing.

In the afternoon, Trinh Minh The slipped in for a visit with us.
(His troop movement through Saigon had thoroughly alarmed many
foreigners, including Americans, who felt that he was going to attack
the colony of whites). General The reported that all of his troops
except one battalion had crossed the canal over a bridge; that they
were being held up now by the fire of the six vedettes (river gunboats)
who were firing on the bridge at point-blank range from the canal; he
wanted to finish the movement and join this last battalion to his troops
across the canal where they had to reduce a Binh Xuyen fort which appeared
to be heavily manned. The's hand was bleeding on the map he used to show
us his position. We bandaged it for him, while giving him tactical advice
on how to engage the gunboats from the shore, including the use of
artillery. General The told us shortly afterwards that no artillery could
be spared for him. We went to the Palace to see if something could be
done. The General Staff was there, listened to us, and started artillery
moving to the flank to support General The.

Diem wanted to talk about the Revolutionary Committee which was
in session. He explained that there were some hot-heads on the .
Committee, particularly Soh and Lang. He sketched in their political
backgrounds for us, including the smattering of political work they had
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learned as minor officials of the Vietminh. He felt that Phuong
relished the wild action of the Committee, and that Trinh Minh
The had been very foolish to join in with the action. Diem was
going to call a Congress of delegates from all provinces to sit
in with the Committee, change its character from one dominated
by the Cao Dai and Hoa Hao (of General Ngo), to one that could
speak with the voice of the people. He had sent a radio message
to Hue and delegates from Central Vietnam provinces would be
arriving in Saigon shortly. What would the United States do if
this Congress dethroned Bao Dai? We explained that the United
States probably would accept a legal action, but that dethrone~
ment by voice vote in a Congress such as that described by Diem
was hardly a legal proceeding. ’

The President's brother Ngo Dinh Nhu came into the room
bhurriedly at this point and interrupted us. "Trinh Minh The is
dead, " he said, He explained that a report had just come in by
telephone. General The had been shot through the head while
directing the fire against the vedettes, It was news that hurt.
Diem broke into tears., We sat with the President for a time,
talking about our mutual friend The, then left.
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We suggested to President Diem that the government provide
for General The's family, which was done. We also arranged that
the Lien Minh make Ngo Dinh Diem their honorary leader, ' This
was done at a private ceremony when The was buried at Nui Ba
Den in the presence of his mother, his wife, his children, the Lien
Minh staff, Lansdale and Redick. There had been a large public
ceremony in Baigon, since The was a national hero. Colonel Gao
assumed command of the lLien Minh and was made a general,

In late April, President Diem had requested funds to finance
a former Vietminh leader who promised to get rid of Ba Cut
(through Vietminh close to this Hoa Hao rebel), SMM furnished
2-million piastres, as a first installment of the funds requested,
but advised Diem to check details thoroughly before expenditure.
The funds were passed in a large suitcase to Diem's confidential
secretary. In following days, President Diem seemed somewhat
embarrassed when queried about the project. Finally, he indicat-
ed that the plan had not worked out'and asked what he should do
with the money we had given him, We advised him to return it to
us, which he did.

Fighting continued in Cholon, where some Binh Xuyen strong-
points still held out, SMM held one conference with General
O'Daniel at MAAG on obtaining bridging material for the Binh Dinh
operation, (Col Kim and Lt Phillips had flown down to get help)
during which the Binh Xuyen strongpoints around MAAG were
reduced; much of the conference was in shouts above the noise of
machine guns and mortars, since some of the strongpoints were
just across the street.

Colonel Manh was reported as probably dead. He had gone to
his home in a little village south of Cholon to get his wife and a file
of documents he had hidden. He had said previously that he had
documents which gave details of the opium smuggling, including
French participation, As he was leaving his house, an armed group
seized him, He was last seen, bound and gagged, on the rear floor
of a small taxi. His troops were under attack by the remainder
of the Binh Xuyen, who were blocking their route through to the
National Army, Surrender leaflets, which we had prepared, were
dropped from the air, saturating areas held by the Binh Xuyen, On
2 May, five of the battalions fought their way through and joined the
National Army, Little more than a thousand men were still alive
in these units.
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On 4 May, the National Congress of People and Administrative
Representatives met in Saigon, as called by President Diem. He
had asked to see us and we sat in the bedroom talking to him while
he prepared to appear before the Congress. Diem had been weeping,
having just returned from Trinh Minh The's house, and put on dark
glasses, We discussed the rumors that the French were asking the
U. S, to recall certain Americans (as printed in the local French
press as news), the Presidential Directive on Nationality {which
would require Army officers to declare themselves either as French
or as Vietnamese), and vicious rumors about Col Kim in Binh Dinh.
On the latter, we suggested that the President send a mature person
he trusted to Binh Dinh to investigate, since reports reaching us
showed that Kim was behaving in exemplary and laudable fashion.

(An investigator from the Presidency was sent, confirmed our
reports, )

Operation Brotherhood had grown into an organization of 105
Filipino doctors and nurses, plus administrative personnel, They
were operating ten medical centers, and were training Vietnamese
in these operations to prepare them for eventual takeover. More
than 2,000 patients were being treated on an average day. The hard
work of these teams and their gayety off-duty when they entertained
refugee and orpban groups had become almost a legend in Vietnam,

The "tinikling" (Filipino barefoot dance between clanking bamboo poles)
was taken up by the Vietnamese (and Americans in Saigon)., SMM
continued its help and guidance.

The National Security Division was collecting information about
Vietminh activities and organizations south of the 17th Parallel,
through available intelligence reports, field trips, and a provincial
survey system which made use of TRIM and National Army field
personnel {which we had established through the Ministries of Defense
and Interior; they trusted us as friends not to mis-use unfavorable
information), Results of this work were given to the country team
and brought the remark by Ambassador Collins that this was the first
detailed picture he had obtained of the enemy. He asked that it be
given to General Ely, which was done.

Vietminh paramilitary organizations were located at several
places in the foothills of Central Vietnam, in the high plateau jungles
north of Kontum, along the jungled Laotian border west of Ban Me
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Thuot, in the swamps of the Plaine des Joncs, and in small cadres
along the rivers and canals of the south, Their secret political
control of villages was growing, since they were advocating the
non-payment of taxes to a government which was to be replaced

by the Vietminh in 1956 and were using small-scale terrorism to
bring village elders into line.

Although the National Army was still engaged with the Binh
Xuyen, and activities by Ba Cut and Soai in the West against the
Army had been stepped up sharply (including the shelling of such
population centers as Long Xuyen), the National Security Division
started planning measures against the Vietminh, including opera-
tions in Central Vietnam and immediate security screening actions
in provinces south of Saigon, such as Gocong and Bentre., Civic
Action, which was developing rapidly on its still extremely limited
budget, was asked to put teams into the more troubled areas as
quickly as possible,

Haiphong was taken over by the Vietminh on 16 May. Our
Binh and northern-Heo teams were in place, completely equipped,
It bad taken a tremendous amount of hard work to heat the Geneva
deadline, to locate, select, exfiltrate, train, infiltrate, equip the
men of these two teams and have them in place, ready for actions
required against the enemy. It would be a hard task to do openly,
but this had to be kept secret from the Vietminh, the International
Commisgion with its suspicions French and Poles and Indians, and
even friendly Vietnamese. Movements of personnel and supplies
had had to be over thousands of miles.

As Haiphong was taken over by the Vietminh, Binh Dinh was
taken over by the Vietnamese Army. SMM's black psywar, through
Vietnamese Army agente, had embarrassed the Vietminh: in the
name of the local Vietminh Committee, the ‘people of Binh Dioh
had been asked to redeem their Vietminh currency (as promised
by the Vietminh) for Bank of Indochina piastres by seeing Vietminh
officials at the last evacuation point, Thousands trave led to Qui
Nhon where red-faced Vietminh lamely explained that they had no
money. On 27 May, President Diem visited Qui Nhon and Binh
Dinh, where he was given a tumultous welcome,

Ambassador Colling left, with a warm letter of appreciation
to SMM for its help to him, Frederick Reinhardt, the new Am-
bassador, arrived, and presented his credentials to Diem on
28 May,
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Alfonso Enriquez of Freedom Company bad been working day and
night, with a small team supporting him and with background guidance
and help by SMM, to organize the Vietnamese Veterans. The First
National Congress of the Vietnamese Veterans Legion was held on
29 May. This first Vietnamese Veterans' convention was a marked
success, with President Diem and General O'Daniel as the honor
guests, heading a long list of Vietnamese and foreign officials, including
invited visitors from the Philippines Veterans Legion. Surete Chief,

General Nguyen Ngoc Lie, was chairman of the first convention and was
elected as commander of the Legion. Enriquez had become highly
popular with the Vietnamese, was asked to make a speech. He
distributed gift shirts from the Philippines Veterans Legion. The
convention adopted resolutions supporting President Diem and against
the Vietminh. After the convention, work started on organizing
provincial chapters. Membership in the World Veterans Oxganization
was requested.

On 25 May, President Diem called us in to meet General Mai Huu
Xuan, chief of Military Security. He told Xuan that he wanted Xuan to
work closely with us in developing his intelligence work. Diem also asked

S5MM for help in seeing that Xuan got a good rest and some leave in the
Philippines. This was arranged.

Our French associates at National Security Division told ue that the
French mission in Hanoi estimated that there were about 400 Chinese
advisors with the Vietminh, mainly as advisors to the higher echelons.
A French business man from Hanoi estimated that there were a total of
perhaps 2,700 foreign advisors with the Vietminh, including a small
Soviet mission. The General Staff of the National Army estimated that
there were about 10, 000 Vietminh clandestine cadres south of the 17th
Parallel; the Vietminh paramilitary in the south were organized in 9
skeletal battalions and 14 skeletal companies.

By the end of the month, SMM was the recipient of unguarded
comments by senior French officers, during work on combined projects
or at social functions. The gist of these comments was: the French
Expeditionary Corps would not fight the Vietminh, except to defend
themselves or to protect the evacuation of French civilians.

On 30 May, President Diem told SMM that fighting in the West
against SOAI and Ba Cut wae imminent, perhaps by 31 May or 1 June.
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Disaident actions against the National Army had become intolerable.
General Hinh was with Soai at his Cai Von headquarters. Soai's
clandestine radio station was broadcasting propaganda similar to

that of the Binh Xuyen and Vietminh. Soai had artillery in position to
fire on Cantho across the Bassac River from his headquarters; French
gunners were reported as serving these guns. (High French officers
stated these men were deserters), The plan given Soai was to capture
Long Xuyen, Racgia and Chaudoc quickly, to create a favorable inter-
national opinion favoring these Hoa Haos over a "weak' government.

The National Army was set to capture Cai Von and Lai Vung as soon
as hostilities opened.

1. June 1955

On 5 June, General Hinh bad called a meeting of sect leaders and
Vietminh at Cai Von. The National Army struck swiftly, over-running
dissident Hoa Hao positions and strong-points the first few hours.

1, 500 of Soai's troops rallied to the National Army. Soai with a few men headed
for a juncture with Ba Cut at the Seven Mountains, close to the Cambodian
border near Hatien. Ba Cut left one regiment as a rear-guard; it was

quickly destroyed by artillery. Ba Cut and Soai headed for hideouts. Hinh

fled to Cambodia. OQOur old friend, Captain Giai, whom we had taken to

the Philippines when he was on Hinh's staff planning a coup, was reported

to have been killed by Ba Cut in anger over the disaster. One of the

students from Redick's former English classes for mistresses was

reported to have been in Cai Von with Hinh, safely escaped to Cambodia;

we were relieved that this lovely, spirited girl got away.

The failure of a French-type of sect uprising was followed by a bitter

and at times hysterical psychological operation by the French, Its main
themes were:

1). The basic French mistake in 1945 was in not giving Vietnam its
independence. From then on, France was supported by U.S. dollars and
was no longer able to act as a free agent. In every showdown, France
had to give in to U.S. policy, which was the root of all trouble in Indo-
China. Cardinal Spellman influenced the U.S. to back Diem in 1954, The
French might have found a modus vivendi with Diem if only certain
Americans hadn't encouraged his antipathy towards the French. 100, 000
men of the Expeditionary Corps and 30,000 French civilians were going
home bitterly anti-American. This would drive France into the neutralist
camp, aid the Communists in the next election.
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Z). Dictator Diem was trying to hold the masses through terrorism
and propaganda. The Army was corrupt. The Vietminh were inc reasingly

powerful. (This line formerly included: the sects are unified and ready
to overthrow the government).

3). (In diplomatic circles). Colonel Lansdale was financing Ngo
Dinh Nhu in printing anti-French propaganda in a small shop in Cholon.

4). (Raymond Cartier, Paris Match, 4 June). Every Frenchman
believes that Lansdale is writing anti-French propaganda at his desk,
An anti-French commando group at the American Embassy is playing
a mechanical political game and has plunged Vietnam into chaos.

5). (Cafes and army messes). Lansdale is now attempting to buy
off the Hoa Hao. French Army personnel saw hirn with a suitcase
containing 1-million piastres trying to bribe Ba Cut {who nobly turned down
the offer). Soai had turned down a Liansdale check for 150-million piastres.

Lt-Col Jorgensen had been assigned by General O'Daniel to the Embassy,
to assist Ambassador Collins in staff planning for a Civil Guard (national
police force). Ambassador Reinhardt had requested that Jorgensen continue
this work. SMM had brought in Colonel Valeriano to work with the
Vietnamese on this organization, at President Diem's request. Jorgensen
and Valeriano teamed up with the police experts of the Public Administra-
tion team of Michigan State University, who had arrived to establish a
school of public administration in Vietnam, under FOA auspices. The
plan finalized by Jorgensen was under long study by the country team;
the Vietnamese were impatient to get started with their organization. As
a first step, then, Jorgensen arranged for the inclusion of selected Guard
officers at the newly-established Army Leadership course at Quang Trung.
Twenty others were selected and sent to Manila for a brief Constabulary
course given by the Philippines Constabulary, arranged by SMM through
Freedom Company. The first group of Civil Guard officers arrived in
Manila 10 June; training was given under the guidance of Freedom Company.

The first ten days of June saw a series of killings on the streets of
Saigon and Cholon. Despite the fact that all of the victims were French,
propagandists labelled this as an "anti-American' campaign, and it was
so reported in the U.S, press. The victims were security officials and
transportation people, mostly Corsicans recently moved down from
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Tonkin, who apparently had attempted to establish their own opium

!:raﬁic organization and were stopped by Saigon gangsters from encroach-
ing on long-held preserves.

SMM had long been attempting to reorganize Psychological Warfare
in the Vietnamese Army, which had been an ineffective organization since
the G-5 had supported Hinh the previous year, Civilians with assimilated
rank had been placed in G-5, but had little knowledge of Army organization
or capabilities. In June, Minister Adjoint of Defense Tran Trung Dung
and Lt Phillips worked out a new psywar organization together, one which
would have effective control from the Ministry down through battalions,
but with military personnel in executive positions, Diem agreed to this
new organization (but has never agreed to which personnel would be
placed in key positions), Finally, 15 Army officers were approved by
the Ministry to man the top organizations. Training of these men was ar-
ranged through Freedom Company at a special Philippines Army course,
including field work. While these 15 were in training in the Philippines,
SMM was informed that none of the men were trusted sufficiently for key
jobs. Upon graduation, they were placed back into lower echelons.

Colonel Kim, whom Diem still suspected of being a French agent,
had proven to be an excellent commander in the Binh Dinh operations.
We had hopes that he would be selected to head all Army engineering
organizations. SMM arranged an.indoctrination trip to the Philippines
for him in June, had him gently 'brain-washed" by the Filipinos through
Freedom Company.

President Diem had become enthusiastic about friendship with the
Philippines. He told SMM that the very open and warm manner of the
Filipinos, in contrast to other Asians whose feelings were continually
hali-masked, was imparting the true spirit of freedom and democracy
among Vietnamese with whom Filipinos came in contact. Most of the
government and army now wanted to visit the Philippines, he said. Col.
Jose Banzon strongly recommended to President Diem that Nguyen Bao
Toan, president of the Revolutionary Committee, be shown democracy
in action by sending him to Manila for a visit, Toan arrived in June,
where he was taken under the wing of Freedom Company and met
leaders of both the executive and legislative branches of government.
Toan was greatly interested in the Constitution. SMM arranged meetings
through Freedom Company, with two practical Filipino Constitutional
lawyers, Senator Lorenzo Tanada and Dr. Juan Orendain. Both had been
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admitted to practice before the U,S. Supreme Court, were working
lawyers, and knew the hard truth about politics from the inside. Toan
was greatly impressed by these two and invited them to visit Vietnam,

at the Revolutionary Committee's expense, and give advice on
constructing a constitution for Vietnam.

Two of the Binh paramilitary teams, now operating behind enemy
lines, opened radio contact with us. The third team sent a courier
message; the Vietminh security measures in its area were still too
strict to permit risking radio contact with us.

SMM within the National Security Division had initiated plans to
establish a medium-wave radio transmitter, for Free Vietnamese use,
to cover both the Vietminh areas of Tonkin and the Center, aa well as
Center and South Vietnam of Free Vietnam. The plan was originated
by Lt Dave Smith, then given to SMM associate Lt-Col George Melvin.
Melvin carried through lengthy surveys and coordination with both
USOM (FOA) and USIS. A 100 kw transmitter located in the vicinity of
Hue could dominate Tonkin over water; an oriented antenna would give

complete coverage of the south. This was turned over to USOM and
USIS for action.

m, July 1955

The Philippines recognized Vietnam on 12 July. The story behind
this goes back several years, when our State Department first started
suggesting this strongly to Philippines officials., In December 1954,
Senator Claro Recto spoke out vigorously against recognition, arguing
that Vietnam was going to turn Communist and the Philippines would be
embarrassed. In June 1955, Alfonso Enriquez, who represented
Freedom Company in Saigon, and Frisco Juan San Juan, National
Commander of the Philippines Veterans Legion, attended the Veterans
Convention in Cebu. They decided to push the recognition of Vietnam
through the emergency session of the Philippines Congress which had
been called by President Magsaysay. They enlisted the support of
Senator Mac Peralta, a L.egionnaire.

San Juan and Enriquez then turned to Major Bohannan for help.
A campaign was mapped out. Mimeographed information brochures on
Vietnam were sent to Legion posts, congressmen, civic leaders, and
the press. Legion posts started writing their congressmen. Catholic
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Action and the Junior Chamber of Commerce were induced to help the
campaign. When Congress convened on 8 July, there was vigorous
support for the recognition of Vietham from the press, from many
civic organizationa. Senator Recto again attacked, but found himself
against an overwhelming tide of public opinion. On the basis of this
popular support, President Magsaysay extended recognition of 12 July
without waiting for the Congress to pase a resolution. By the time

Recto could muster ammunition for his own isolated stand, 23 July, it
was too late.

One of the Binh courier routes makes use of a sailing junk. It put
in at a small coastal spot near Nhatrang in Central Vietnam, and the
Binh team went ashore to find its contact men. The head of the Binhs
assigned one of his men to meet the northern crew. Shortly he was
picked up at a military check-point, His name was similar to a Binh
Xuyen agent who was wanted by the National Army, and he was arrested,
He was interrogated by being handcuffed to a laper, both beaten with the
same stick to draw blood, told he would now have leprosy, and both
locked up in a tiny cell together, SMM was able to have him released,

SMM became involved in the integration of the sect forces of Phuong
(Cao Dai) and Ngo (Hoa Hao), the final formula was that half of each
force would be integrated as a unit and the other half as individuals, all
to receive training and equipment at Quang Trung. The propagandists
were busily at work, attempting to induce hostility between the govern-
ment and these two forces, General O'Daniel and SMM commenced work
on the problem, with the approval of President Diem, and quickly obtained
Phuong's and Ngo's agreement to working principles.

One of our Heo agents was given the task of interrogating refugees
from Vietminh zones and has furpished much detailed information, some
of which is being compiled in a State Department study of social and
economic conditions under the Vietminh,

Now, there were indications from Washington that SMM paramilitary
operations would be transferred to the control of the Saigon CIA station,
and that other SMM activities might be limited to purely clandestine
operations, Some of the most stalwart support personnel in the Philippines
were being removed. The Freedom Company camp was being shut down,
limits placed on its operations. Since personnel slots for military are
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strictly limited under the Geneva Agreement, it appeared that there

would be little or no room for SMM. We started to work on these
problems,

General O'Daniel reorganized TRIM, with most of our personnel
being transferred to MAAG, into the Direct Aid Liaison Section. In
the reorganized TRIM, he gave SMM secret responsibility for the G-2
Branch of the Army Division, SMM placed this under associate Lt~-Col
Melvin, with Lt Phillips to help him, Lt Joseph Palastra was added
later, to train Vietnamese commandos., This G-2 Branch is respon-
sible for all intelligence, psywar, ranger, and paramilitary training
of the Vietnamese Army. The Vietminh Army has the capability of
over-running Free Vietnam; the National Army is planned to have the
capability of delaying that enemy until the SEATO nations can send in
forces to help, but SEATO has plain escape clauses for its participating
nations. Thus, there is the distinct possibility of large portions of
Free Vietnam being occupied by the Vietminh enemy in the future. If
this happens, Army personnel now being trained by the G~2 Branch of TRIM
will be the key to resistance by the Free Vietnamese, just as they will

be the key to present actions against Vietminh paramilitary forces south
of the 17th Parallel.

SMM itself was reorganized to fit the TRIM and MAAG reorgani-~
zations, The new SMM has four teams: Political-Psychological (Blue),
Paramilitary (White), Intelligence-Security (Gold}, and Support (Red).
The White team has been separated physically from the others, Lt
Hugo, who has been on duty in the Philippines as our support liaison
officer, will be recalled for paramilitary duties at SMM, with another
officer replacing him in Manila.
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1IV. ORGANIZATION, SAIGON MILITARY MISSION

31 July 1955
CHIEF
Col Edward Lansdale, USAF
teanes sereerseees s MANILA LIAISON
Lt Victor Hugo, USA
EK O

Lit Joseph Redick, USNR

»*
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OPERATIONS
Lt-Col Gordon Jorgensen, USAR%*
POL-PSYWAR PARAMILITARY INTELL & SUPPORT
(BLUE) (WHITE) SECURITY (RED)
Lt Rufus Phillips, Maj Lucien Conein, {GOL.D}) Lt Frank Garbers,
USAR, Chief USAR, Chief Lt-Col Edmund USAR, Chief
Quereau, USAR,
Lt John Gates, Jr, Maj Fred Allen, Chief It Jerome
USMCR USAR Morris, USNR
Lt Edward
Lt Richard Lt Cristopher Williams, USAR Sgt Charles
Mellor, USNR Dock, USAR Sandman, USA
Lt George
Lt Joseph Moseley, USAR PFC Elwood
Palastra, USA Butler, USA
PFC William

Flanagan, USAR
OPN ASSOCIATE

Lt-Col George Melvin, USAR

(*Acts as Deputy Chief in Col Lansdale's absence)

FORMER MEMBERS
Army: Navy: Air Force:
Lt-Col Raymond Wittmayer Lt Edward Bain Lit-Cal Jesus Villamor
Capt Michael Moriarity Lt Robert Andrews
Lt David Smith Lt Lawrence Sharpe {assoc)
Lt Richard Halloran
M/Sgt Alex Alvarez Marine Corps:

Capt Richard Smith
Capt Arthur Arundel
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V. EXPENDITURES

Expenditures listed here are for FY 1955, While this does not
cover the precise period of the report, it does cover all major
expenditures. Expenditures not covered are minor recurring expenses.
Included herein are initial costs for establishing the mission, such as
official vehicles and office equipment. Pay and allowances of U. S,

personnel are not included, nor are weapons, ammaunition and radios
drawn from U.S, stocks.

Operational, including pay and expenses of agents
(including Binh and Heo paramilitary teams), safe-
houses, transportation (such as a sailing junk)

Support Equipment, such as vehicles, safes, desks,
darkroom photographic equipment, office equipment

Living Quarters, mostly Saigon but includes Haiphong,
both cities were landlords’ heaven

Per Diem and Travel, including $20, 565 for Vietnamese
Garde Civile personnel trained in the Philippines (the
bulk of this money will be reimbursed to us); a number
of U.S. personnel were with us for fairly short periods
of TDY and received per diem; Filipinos are included

Expendable Items, such as operational clothing
and cover equipment for safehouses

Maintenance of Fixed Property

Storage, Maintenance and Operation of Vehicles,
gasoline and oil are bought on the local market

Wages for local caretaker, guard personnel

Miscellaneous, including transportation of property,
confidential fund commo charges

“Total

56 1A 3.3(b)(1)
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- LJPLAN FOR UTILIZATION OF FOREIGN MANPOWER AIR UNITS

PHILIPPINE AIR SECTION

I. ASSUMPTIONS:

A.. That it is desirable to be prepared to utilize Filipinos and other foreign
nationals on a non-governmental volunteer basis for air missions in support

of United States and Philippine Free World objectives in the Southeast Agia
area.

B. That necessary Philippine Government officials have agreed that Filipinos
may be used on a volunteer basis to man air units and that such units may
be activated and based in the Philippines, when the need arises.

C. That an affiliate of Freedom, Inc. has been established in the Philippines.
D. That the Country Team in the Philippines, including the Air Section of
JUSMAG, the U.S. Air Force Commander and the U.S. Navy Commander,

has been briefed and instructed to take a positive approach and asaist the
Air Section with its mission.

. PERMANENT AIR SECTION ORGANIZATION:

A. The permanent air organization would be an Air Section of the Philippine
Affiliate of Freedom, Inc. It would be manned by a S8enior Alr Officer,
a secretary and a clerk-messenger, with an American Advisor attached

to it,
1. a. The advisor would be .an American, selected from the regular
U. 8. Air Force or the U.8. Air Force (active or retired) reserve,
with the following qualifications:
- @gETY (1) Screened and cleared for U.8. "TOP SBECRET" activities,
128806 ”\
% %EE %% (2) Vision and resourcefulness necessary to bring prestige and
?312 @ 1) z‘\ prominence to the project.
250710
| ;;g% (3) Experience in jungle warfare including air suppozt of ground
| 2%0 | forces. :
“ Ny~
gmza
:} %% (4) Appreciation of and respect for the capabilities of Filipinos.
03
T 309\ (5) Preferably, with service in the Philippines and known to be

i
1

respected and liked by the Filipinos.
SRy
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(6) A patriotic and strong leader.
(7) Preferably, a working knowledge of the Tagalog language.

b. The American Advisor would, in addition to being advisor to the
Air Section, be responsible for the following:

(1) Submission of periodic reports on the activities and progress
of the Air Section to the U.S: Freedom, Inc.

(2) Liaison with U.S. Government agencies and U.S. Armed
Forces Commanders in the Philippines.

{3) Liaison with U.S. Government agencies and missions throughout
the Southeast Asia area, as neceasary,

2. The Senior Air Officer of the Air Section would be a Filipino, selected
from the Regular Philippine Air Force or the Philippine Air Force
Reserve (active or retired), with the following qualifications:

a. Screened and cleared for Philippine "TOP SECRET" activities,

b. Well known and respected for accomplishments in the Philippine
Air Force and the Armed Forces of the Philippines.

¢. Known not to have anti-American tendencies.

d. Preferably, with experience in jungle warfare, including air support
of ground forces.

¢. An experienced administrator.

f. A patriotic and strong leader.

g. A potential commander of the Volunteer Air Group.

h. A good command of the English and Tagelog languages and, if
possible, other Filipino dialects.

3. The secretary would be a f‘ﬂip:’mo civilian with the following qualifications:
a. Screened and cleared for Philippine "TOP SECRET" activities.
b. Resourceful and efficient in secretarial duties including taking

dictation, typing, filing and courteous handling of telephone calls
and visitors.
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c. A good command of the English and Tagalog languages.

4. The clerk-messenger would be a Filipino with the following qualifications:

a., Typist.

b. Good command of English and Tagalog.
¢. Resourceful and trustworthy.

B. Office Location:

1. The Air Section office would be located with the offices of the Philippine
Affiliate of Freedom, Inc, if the offices are located in a place where
necessary security precautions can be taken.

2. If the necessary security precautions are not feasible at the offices of

¢ .the Philippine Affiliate of Freedom, Inc., the Air Section Office would
be located in Armed Forces of the Philippinea or other suitable Phil-
ippine Government installations.

C. Estimated Cost to Maintain Air Sectipn:

1. Salaries: Annual
American Advisor $15, 000
Executive Air Officer 6,000
Secretary (all inclusive) 3,600
Clerk-messenger (all inclusive) 1, 650

2. Housing, travalin&, insurance, and .. ‘.0 0w e o el W D0W
miscellanebusiexpenses for American
Advisor 6,000

3. Traveling, insurance, and miscellaneous

expenses for Senior Air Officer 2,500 DECLASSIFIED IN FULL

Authority: E0 13526
Chief, Records & Declass Div, WHS

4. Office equipment (non-recurring and

of residual value) 2,000 Date:  MAY 19 2014
5. Rent 2,250
6. Utilities 1,200
7. Vehicle (non-recurring and of
residual value) 3,000
3
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8. Vehicle operating expense including .
driver $2, 400
9. Contingency 3,000
Total Estimated Annual Cost $44, 850

Notes:

DECLASSIFIED IN FULL
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1. The above cost estimates are accurate enough for planning purposes

for an Air Section located in Manila.

2. All cost estimates are based on current prices in the Philippines
and conversion of U.S. dollars to Philippine pesos at the rate of

exchange ($1. 00 «=-P2.00).

II. AIR SECTION ACTIVITIES

A. Research and Intelligence:

The majority of the following listed data, needed by the Air Section for
planning and operational purposes, will be available from Hq, 13th Air
Force, the Air Section of JUSMAG, the Philippine Civil Air Authority

and commercial air lines. Whenever the required data is readily available
from other sources, the Air Section will not duplicate the efforts of others
and will limit its activities to collection of required data not readily avail-

able from other sources.

1. Keep up-to-date records of regular Philippine Air Force units strength,

qualifications, experience and training status.

2. Keep up-to-date records of Reserve Philippine Air Force personnel, by
units or on individual basis, strength, qualifications, experience and

training status,

3. Keep up-to-date records of all commexrcial and private flight personnel

in the Philippines.

4. Keep up-to-date records of all types of equipment available to the PAF

and the status of such equipment.

5. Keep up-to-date records of all commercial and private aircraft of

Philippine registry.

6..Keep up-to-date records of the commercial aircraft maintenance

capability in the Philippines.

7. Keep up~to-date records of all Air Force, commercial and private

airports and airport facilities in the Philippines.

4
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8. Keep up-to-date records of all equipment and supplies procured and
and stockpiled for Volunteer Air Group use.

9. Recommend to appropriate authorities (by arrangement this would
probably be JUSMAG), additional types of training and experience
required to have trained personnel available to meet estimated Volunteer
Air Group mission requirements,

B. Plans for the activation of a Volunteer Air Group capable of supporting Free
World objectives in the Southeast Asia area would include, but are not limited
to, the following:

l. Earmark a base location for the Air Group, giving consideration to the
following:

a. At an airfirld with an all-weather runway at least 5,000 feet long -~
8,000 feet being desirable,

b. For security purposes, an airfield with 2 minimum of other activities
and located as far as possible from population centers is desirable.

1

c. Access to ports and highways is desirable,

d. Availability of communications facilitiea, shops, hangars, housing,
medical facilities, and storage facilities should be considered in
selecting a base but are not considered to be controlling factors as
climatic conditions are conducive to operating with minimum field
type or temporary facilities.

e. Suggested base lacations in the Philippines in the order of preference

are:

() Tt coem- At ) W PULL

(3) Guiuan Chiof. R :

(4) Davao Dato: emdys& Declass Div, WHS.
(5) Mactan 19 2014

f. The status of U.S./Philippine bases agreement should be considered
prior to any substantive discussions with the Philippine Government
for use of a base for the Volunteer Air Group,

g. The requirement for a base suitable for a Volunteer Air Group should
be taken into consideration when planning the future U.8. assisted air
base construction programs in the Philippines.

2. Induction of volunteer personnel:
a. Earmark an induction center close to the sources of personnel.

5
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b. Make:plans for printing the detailed personnel policy, standard contract
forms, and other required forms for maintaining adequate personunel
records,

c. Complete plana for bandling pay and allowances, bonuses, direct
payment of allotments to families and printing of necessary racord
forms. The probability that volunteers will need a cash advance to
carry them and/or their families until the first regular pay day
should be considered.

d. Select and make plans for training personnel for manning the
induction center on a temporary employment basis,

e. Plan for housing and subsistence for volunteer personnel at the
induction center and transportation to the base. When directed
to activate units, contracts with comumercial sources will probably
be the best way to handle theae requirements.

3. Personal aqufpmmt and supplies:

7.

Maximum use of uniforms and other items of peraona} equipment
belonging to volunteer personnel will be made, thereby holding
purchases by the Volunteer Air Group (VAG) to # minimum. Regular
summer khaki uniforms are suitable for most of the Southeast Asia
area, Philippine or U.8. insignia will not be used, making it neces-

v.ov, gary to design and plan for procurement of distinctive insignia, arm

bands, and/or shoulder patches for VAG personnel,

Plan for temporary housing and subsistence of volunteers at or near
the base until the time self-sufficient units are activated and ready to

- take over, Contracting with commercial sources may be feasible.

Plan for evacuation of sick, wounded and deceased personnel from the
home base and mission areas, At the home base in the Philippines,
charter arrangements with commercial carriers until volunteer unit
transport aircraft are available are feasible. Evacuation from mission
areas to the Philippines or nearest commexrcial airline facilities will
have to be accomplished with unit transport aircraft.

The policy and procedurss for notification of sext of kin of deceased
personnel, burial benefits, gratuities to families and payment of
insurance will have to conform to the custorns and laws of the home
country of the daceased.

Plan for prncurcmeit and stockpiling of organizational equipment
required for units when activated.
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8. Plan for procurement and stockpiling of aircraft, spare parts, POL,
ammunition, bombs and specialized equipment required to equip,
maintain and support units in training at the home base and in other
areas when performing assigned missions,

9. Plan for movement of unita to and from mission areas. Include for
both air and surface movements and resupply of units in action.

10. In making plans for clothing and other personal equipment and
subsistence for personnel, climatic conditions, local customs . .
and habits must be conaidered.

ll. Prepare policy and complete plans for employment of indigenous labor
needed at the home base on a daily or contractual basis.

12. Prepare policy and plans for “sheepdipping® regular Philippine Air
Force personnel for service in a volunteer capacity.

13. Prepare policy and plans for discharging personnel and returning them
to their respective Air Force units or civilian status as applicable,

IV. PURPOSE, COMPOSITION AND MISSIONS OF VAG

A. Purpose:

1. To plan for the effective utilization of foreign manpower by being
prepared to activate air units and have them ready for employment
in the shortest possible time as an effective instrument of initiative
as directed by the Defense Department, for use in a way that the
forces so employed will be "deniable by the United States' and without
injecting the risks of starting a general war which would attend the
commitment:of regular United States “flag* forces,

2. When activated, the VAG will be an air combat and air support force
of the size required to attain U.S. objectives or make a substantial
effort toward accomplishment of U.8. objectives by assisting friendly
forces, during the period between the time reqguirements are beyond
the scope of CIA capabilities and the time it is considered practicable
to commit regular U.S. and/or friendly countries" air forces.

3. When activated, Volunteer Air Group 1 YAG-I) will be capable of per-
forming air support and transport missions requiring the use of small
and unsophisticated forces in terms of manpower, aircraft, equipment
and support systems and using obsolete and obsalescent reciprocating

engine aircraft.

4. When activated, Volunteer Air Group II (VAG II) will be capable of per-
forming air comhat and support missions requiring the use of modern

1
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Jjet types of equipment with the personnel being recruited on a unit basis
from the Philippine Air Force.

5. The general purposea for which the VAG will be employed are the
following:

a, Assist friendly countries in combating Communist encroachment
from outside.

b. Assist with combating Communist movements within .i’ riendly
countries.

c. Assist revolutionary movements that may occur within Communist-
dominated countries.

d. Support overt activities of the Philippine Affiliate of Freedom, Inc.

by providing air transport services not readily available from
commercial sources.

B. Mission:

1. The apecific missions VAG-1 will be capable of performing include,
but are not limited to, the following:

a, Air-lift and air-drop (paratroopers and supplies) capability for
supporting friendly forces.

b. Air-lift and air-drop capability for public welfare and mercy
missions.

c. Close support of ground forces by strafing and bombing.

d. Capability of air-lifting and placing small groups of friendly forces
in Communist-controlled areas.

e. Lir evacuation capability to evacuate friendly groups from untenable
Communist -controllied areas and to evacuate sick and wounded from

combat zones,

f. Night bombing and intruder missions.

g. Fighter missions when the enemy is using or being supported only
with comparable types of fighter aircraft.

2. The specific missions VAG-II will be capable of performing include, but
are not limited to, the following:

a, Fighter missions against any known type of enemy aircraft.

mmmp?
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b. Fighter-bomber missions in support of ground forces.
¢. Reconnaissance and photographic missions.
C. Sources of Volunteer Personnel:

1. The primary source of personnel for frighter and fighter-bomber crews
will be from the Regular Philippine Air Force. PAF personnel are now
receiving training under the JUSMAG program and, in planning future
JUSMAG training programs; the specific personnel requirements of VAG
should be taken into consideration,

2, Philippine Air Force Reserve and Retired personnel will be the primary
source of transport aircraft crews. It may be practicable to have JUSMAG
" . give additional guidance and support to the training of Philippine Air
Force Reserve personnel specifically aimed at qualifying them for VAG
type missions.

3. Philippine Air Lines, other commercial airlines and private pilots
will be the secondary source of transport, liaison and rotary wing
aircraft crews,

a. Philippine Air Lines is the largest potential source of twin-engine
and four-engine transport crews and also has helicopter and liaison
type crews. The suspension of Philippine Air Lines long-range
international services resulted in the company having a surplus
of twin-engine and four-engine aircraft crews. At the present
time, six complete four-engine aircraft crews (pilot, co-pilot,
engineer and navigator) and ten twin-engine aircraft crews (pilol.
co-pilot and navigator), all with a minimum of 8, 000 hours exper-
ience, could be drawn from PAL without handicapping the commercial
services now being operated.

b, Civil Air Transport has American crews qualified on most types of
aircraft and arrangements could be made to have them employ
personnel with special qualifications needed by VAG, thereby having
them available in the area for voluntary mervice with VAG on short

notice.

4. Maintenance,, commaunications and ground personnel would come from
the PAF, commercial air lines and private sources. Philippine Air
Lines has a large pool of well qualified personnel with experience on
major overhaul of U.S, Air Force transport types of aircraft and
engines readily available for volunteer service with the VAG, since
the PAL maintenance contract with the USAF was recently terminated.

9
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5. Flight crews and other personnel, when required, due to language
barriers, could be recruited from other friendly countries in the
Southeast Asia area.

6. Operations such as "Operation Brotherhood, " Freedom Company
and the training of Vietnamese, Laotians, and Indonesians in the
Philippines have done much to eliminate doubts concerning Filipinos
being acceptable to natiomals of other Southeast Asian countries and
have proven that they are able to work together toward attaining a
common goal.

7. Several years ago, at the time it was decided to have the former
Freedom Company of the Philippines activate Air Unita, the
operations department of the Philippine Air Lines and the Commander
of the Philippine Air Force were briefed on the plan. The number of
individuals from both organizations volunteering for service within
48 hours far exceeded the demand for qualified flight crews. In fact,
a group of Philippine Air Force officers prepared a petition request-
ing Freedom Company Philippines to give priority to PAF personnel,

8. U.S. Air Force active and reserve personnel would be recruited only
when impossible to obtain highly specialized personnel required from
Southeast Asian counjries.

V. LOGISTICS

A. Funds:

1. The Philippine Affiliate of Freedom, Inc. will provide the funds required
by the VAG.

2. Ostensibly, the funds will come from voluntary contributions; however,
the major portion of funds required will be supplied through the mech-
anism established for U.8. Freedom, Inc.

3. It is conceivable that voluntary contributions to Freedom, Inc. in the
U.S. and to the foreign affiliate in the Philippines will net sufficient
funds to support the Permanent Air Section.

4. At the present time, due to Philippine currency controls and low inter-
national dollar reserves, it must be made clear to Philippine Government
authorities that conversion of pesos to dollars for purchase of supplies
and equipment for operation of volunteer units will not be required. In
fact, it would be desirable to be able to point out that dollar contributions
from Freedom, Inc., USA, will be a source of dollar revenue for the

Philippines and that dollars brought into the country in this way will
be converted to pesos in the legal manner through the Central Bank of
the Philippines.

10
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5. All supplies and equipment for volunteer units not obtainable in the
Philippines will have to be purchased elsewhere and sent to the
Philippines as contributions,

B. Equipment and Supplies:

L. Ostensibly, the Air Section will obtain aircraft, equipment and supplies
from voluntary contributions from individuals and non-governmental
organizations and by purchase from non-governmental sources. It is
essential that open transfer of U.S. Government resources to the
volunteer units are not made,

2. Aircraft, spare parts, components and supplies will be secrstly
procured from U.8. continental and overseas sources, with some
being withdrawn from USAF active and surplus inventories insofar
as possible. Other supplies will be procured from commercial sources
in the Philippinea, Japan and the U. 5.

3. For public purposes, aircraft, spare parts, components and other
supplies could be procured from the USAF and other U.S. Govern-

ment sources through normal public surplus and salvage sales
procedures. In actuality, such procurement will be handled on a
secret negotiated sale basia.

4. Insofar as practicable, all supplies and equipment, including sub-
sistence, available in the Philippines, Japan and other Asian markets,
will be purchased by the Philippine Affiliate of Freedom, Inc. mul/or
Freedom, Inc.

5. Petroleum, oils and lubricants will be procured directly from
commercial sources in the areas where the VAQ ia stationed.

6. Weapons and ammunition will be furnished the VAG on a secret
baais from USAF and MDAP sources with some being atockpiled
as close as possible to the home base of the VAG and/or the areas
in which it is anticipated the VAG will be employed.

7. USAF surpius aircraft, spare parts, components and supplies needed
for operation of a VAG should be earmarked and stockpiled for this

purpose.
C. Transportation:

1. USAF equipment and supplies will be moved from the ZI to designated
storage areas in Asia in the normal way USAF units are supplied,

1
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2. Equipment and supplies purchased from commercial sources for VAGs
will be shipped on a commercial basis.

3. Advance planning and stockpiling of equipment and supplies in areas
where VAGs may be activated should be accomplished to the greatest
extent possible in order that units may be activated and equipped
expeditiously and to avoid costly last-minute air shipments.

CONTROL AND OPERATIONAL PLAN

A. Control;

l. The American Advisor to the Air Section will be responsible for
directing, through the Senior Air Officer of the Air Section, all
activities of the VAG when it is in the Philippines in accordance
with the secret policy, plans and instructions received from U, S.
Freedom, Inc.

2. When special air task forces are dispatched to other countries to
perform authorized missions, they will come under the direction
and control of the Air Advisor in the country assigned.

3. VAG air task forcés will maintain their identity when on assigned
missions and will not normally be placed under the direct command
of the Commander of the forces being supported.

4. The Air Advisor will be responsible for liaison with the forces
belng supported and direction of missions to be performed by the
VAG air task forces,

B. Operational Plan:

1. The VAG will not be committed to any action in support of combat
forces until ordered by the U.S. Freedom, Inc. o perform
specific missions,

2. All requests for VAG's resources and services received directly
by tjne VAG will be referred by the American Advisor through pre-
arranged channels of communications to the U,5. Freedom, Inc.

3. The approved general operational policy of the affiliate of Freedom,
Inc. will include a section that will clearly define the responsihilities
and authority of the VAG to participate in other than combat activities
such as performing mercy missions, furnishing air-lift for Freedom,
Inc. overt activities, etc.

12
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A. Organization:

The following proposed VAG headquartexrs organization and squadrons are
being indicated for planning purposes only. It is not intended to prescribe
any specific air order of battle as a unit of this nature must bave the
maximum degree of flexibility and be prepared to put air task forces
compased of fighter, fighter-bomber and transport aircraft of only the
size necessary to accomplish the assigned mission in the field in the
shortest possible time after orders have been received to perform a
mission. It is envisaged that missions may require from one or two
transport, fighter or fighter-bomber aircraft to as many as all the
aircraft asgsigned to the three squadrons listed in thia plan.

1. Volunteer Air Group I Headquarters will be manned with the minimum
number of qualified personnel required to handle the following:

a. Administration and liaison with the Aiv Section.
b. Research, intelligence and plans.
c. Communications, operations and supply.

2, The following three types of squadrons will be able to perform the
mission it is now anticipated the VAG would be directed to perform
and should be activated in the oxrder listed:

a. Light transport squadron,
b. Utility squadron.

c. Fighter-bomber squadron.

3. See attachment "A' for command relations and comaposition of units.

B. Typical types of obsolete and obsolescent aircraft in the USAF inventory

suitable for VAG use are:

1. B-26 and RB-26 for multi-purpose aircraft for day and night bombing,
intruder missions, reconnaissance, para-drop of personnel and
materiel and light transport.

2. F.51 for fiﬁhter. fighter -bomber and reconnaissance aircraft.
t

3. C-47, C-119, and C-54 for medium and heavy transport and para-drop
of personnel and materiel.
13
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4. SA-16 for a multi-purpose amphibian for reconnaissance, para-drop
of personnel and materiel, air/sea rescue and light transport.

5. Other fixed and rotary-wing aircraft suitable for the VAG are the L-19,
L-20, L-21, T-6, H-13, H-19, and H-21.

6. Aircraft of foreign manufacture may also be suitable for VAG use and
it may be desirable to consider this possibility carefully as the use of
some aircraft of foreign manufacture may be a good cover for indicating
the VAG is not U.S. Government sponsored.

7. USAF aircraft earmarked for use by the VAG should be completely
equipped for combat missions before being placed in storage.

C. Activation Procedure:

1. When the green light from the agencies concerned has been received,
to activate the Volunteer Air Group, or such portion thereof as is
required, instructions and authority to proceed with the previously
developed plans will be transmitted to the American Advisor to the
Air Section.

2. At the same time orders are issued to the American Advisor to the
Ailr Section to procedd to activate the VAG, the American Ambassador
and involved members of the Country Team in the Philippines would
be informed of the detailed approved plan and directed to talk with
necessary Philippine Government officials for final agreement to
permit their nationals to volunteer and for the VAG to be activated
and based in the Philippines.

3. The Senior Air Officer of the Permanent Air Section with the assistance
of the American Advisor would handle the negotiation of the contract for
use of an airfield with appropriate Philippine Government authorities as
the home base for the VAG,

4. The Permanent Air Section would proceed with execution of the detailed
pre -arranged approved plans for induction of personnel, procurement
of supplies and equipment and activation of units.

5. Providing that aircraft, spare parts, supplies and equipment are
stockpiled in the Philippines, the basic VAG would be activated,
equipped and ready for action quickly from the date orders to activate
unith are received, Single aircraft should be given 48 hours lead time.
To establish an operational base for VAG-I, up to 60 days should suffice.

14
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l. VAG headquarters and VAG units will utilize indigenous labor,

2.

hired on a daily or contractual basis, to the maximum extent
possible.

VAG units will be equipped to perform field and organizational
maintenance only. Depot maintenance will be accomplished by
contracting with commercizal sources when commercial sources
are capable of meeting VAG requirements.

When commercial sources are not capable of performing depot

maintenance requirements of the VAG, arrangements will bave
to be made for the USAF VAG requirements.
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The Problem: To provide the United States with the means of having
foreign manpower readily available for military use, with the following

characteristics:

a. Legally deniable by the United States, if desired; DECLASSIFIED IN FuL:

Authority: EQ 13526
b. Trained for ground, naval, and air combst; | Chief, Records & Declass Div, WS

Date: MAY 19 2014
c. Operating under U. S. control;

d. At an acceptable cost.

Facts Bearing on the Problem

a. There is nothing. x;ew in using 'volunteers” to satisfy national
objectives in foreign areas. It has long been an established practice.
There are numerous examples in modera times, such as the U. S,

Army's Macabebe Scouts and its Philippine Scouts (including the

12th and 14th Divisions after World War II), as well as the AVG who

flew for the Chinese. Several nations had volunteer forces in the

Spanish Civil War, as part of the Spanish forces.

b, The Communists are adept at the practice; witness the

*
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Communist *volunteers' in Korea and Khrushchev's recent threat to

in Full:

send "volunteers' into the Middle East.

c¢. The Freedom Company of the Philippines permitted some

telling action in saving Vietnam from Communist take-over.

-M- 4,

d. Recent examples of employment of ''volunteers' is illustrated

: d

¥

by the infiltration of Egyptian and Syrian "volunteers's into Lebanon
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and Jordan before and during the recent crisis in the Middie East.

e, Iu the past few years, the U. S. has considered several
plans for developing a foreign manpower capability to combat Communist-
guided forces in foreign areas. Most of this planning has envisioned a
"Foreign Legion" type of organization, with considerable political and
budgetary problems, and has not been implemented.

f. At present, the U. S. has some limited capability of this type
through clandestine projects, mostly fixed to a local 2rea and local
contingency.

g. U. 8. defense programs have created a potential pool of foreign
manpower for U. 8. military use, which only awaits proper exploitation.

h. Through the Lodge Act (PL 597) and through language and area
training, there are military persounel equipped to deal with the peoples
and problems of a number of Communist target areas.

i. Through our 38 JUSMAGs, MAAGs, and Military Missions in
foreign countries, there are now foreign armed forces equipped and trai:}ud
with U, S, materiel, schooled in U, 5. tactics, and with personnel who
generally meet aecurity standards acceptable to the U. S.; most of these
foreign armed forces include ground, naval, and air forces.

j» Sizable numbers of these foreign military officers and men have
shown a willingness to volunteer when man's freedom has been th.real:.emd
in 8 neighboring country. This fact will be atteated to by American officials
in foreign countries during the Hungarian Revolt, the Indounesian Rebellion,

the Indochinese War, and the Huk Rebellion in the Philippines, Today's
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trouble in the Middle Last is no exception.

k., Methods could have been developed in several nations of the
Free World, including the United States, for processing military personnel
80 they can be used in foreign areas and be diplomatically deniable by the
government iagvolved. Although the processes for doing this in free countries
are more complex (to protect the individual) than those in Communist
countries, the Free World does have this capability.

It is cantemplated that the foreign manpower being discussed in this
paper would be employed only in accordance with national policy on approval
by the President.

During the past few years several situations have existed wherein it
appeared that foreign manpower could have been used to advantage in
carrying out our national policies. Some assets were available and were
clandestinely employed on a small scale without achieving the initial
objectives. It therefore appears that a method can be devised by which
trained foreign manpower on a larger scale can be made available in a
manner that would not require the United States to have any official con-
nection with such use of foreign manpower.

A potential reservoir of trained foreign maupower exists within the
units being supported by the various military assistance agreements and
within units receiving the assistance of United States military and naval
missions. The feasibility and practicability of utilizing manpower from

3
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these sources will depend upon the nature of agreements that can be made
with the respective governments in each instance. It is doubtful that any
pattern of agreement can be obtained because of various problems which
may be created in certain areas of the world. It is preferable that agree-
ments be made on a country basis, Planning should be done on a regional
basis in order that manpower employed in a given locality would resemble
as closely as possible the indigenous population in the areas in which it is
to be employed.

Other factors which would influence employment of foreign manpower
would be certain religious bitterness and racial animosity which may exist
in the areas concerned.

The implementation of any basic plan for employment of foreign man-
power must take into consideration the factors enumerated in the above
paragraph, stability of the government being dealt with, the possibility
of an internal coup d'etat and other security hazards that may exist.
Implementation of such a plan would also need to take account of the political
aud foreign policy problems in regard to the relations of the United States
with the country willing to provide volunteers.

It is xequired that the foreign volunteers be employed by the entity
which we are supporting or by some mechanism which bas no visible
relationship with the U. S, Government. The Central Intelligence Agency
is specifically charged with the conduct of clandestine operations in support

4
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of our national policies., The extent of po.rticip.ation by the Defense Depart-
ment initially would be in a support role. Should the covertly supported
operation develop beyond the capability of CIA, the direction of the operation
should pass to the Defense Department, with CIA continuing in support.
The exact point at which this change of direction and control would be made
from CIA to the Department of Defense is difficult to determine, but for
plaunning purposes it is regarded that when the size of the foreign volunteer
units is that of a battalion or greater, such change should be made. Thus,
the type of organization dealt with in this paper in each instance must have
the capability of processing and handling units of battalion size or larger.

Discussion

Considering the aforementioned factors, it appears that the following
courses of action are open for consideration as a means for the development
of a plan as follows:

Course I {4d Hoc) - Whea the situation requires, arrange for the entities

that the United States is supporting to set up one or more purchasing agencies,
the purchasing agencies to assume the responsibility of processing the

volunteers in accordance with the agreement of the country providing the

volunteers, and arraage for them to join the entity to be supported. The

purchasing agency should also engage in the purchase of certain war supplies.

Course Il (Covert Fermanent) - To organize permanent covert units

which would organize covert affiliates in countries willing to provide

volunteers, for the purpose of processing the volunteers and arrange means

5
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for them to join the entities to be supported, conduct advance planning for
organizing, equipping the troops, and logistics support of the volunteer
project, as well as demobilization upon completion of the operation.

Course 11l (Covert-Overt Permanent) -To establish & new, or utilize .

an existing, organization within each country under secret U.5. sponsor-
ship and with no visible affiliation between each other or with the United
States. These organizations would conduct appropriate local programs in
addition to carrying out the activities listed in Course IL.

Course IV (Ovext Permanent) - To organize a permanent, non-profit

corporation which would establish affiliates in countries willing to provide
volunteers, This corporation would conduct a suitable overt program
through the affiliates as well as secretly carry out the activities liated

in Course 1I ahove,

Discussion of Courses of Action

Course 1 (Ad Hoc) would appear to have the following advantages:

a. Provide a means for employment of foreign manpower in support
of the selected entity designated.

b. The plan is simple and would provide 2 high degree of deniability
of United States involvement.

The disadvantages of Course 1 (Ad Hoc) are:

a. This course of action would function initially at least on a crash
it
basis and/is doubtful that it would have the capability of an operation of any

magnitude. 6
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b. It has a disadvantage of not having predetermined plans or personnel

for supporting the designated entity.

Coarse II (Covert Permanent) would appear to have the following

advantages:
a. A small permanent organization would be in being and in contact
with the officials who would be involved in assiating and providing volunteers.
b. Better control of procurement of equipment, organization, logistic
support could be provided.

¢. Predetermined plans could be made and adequate personnel could

be earmarked and positioned.

The disadvantages of Course I (Covert Permanent) appear to be that

it would be difficult to operate on & covert basis for an extended period of
time and be deniable because of the possible magnitude of the operation.

Gourse lII (Covert -Overt Permanent) appears to have the following

advantages:
a. There would be no visible evidence of U. S. sponsorship and support,
b. The public program could be conducted so as to provide excellent
justification for the activities in connection with the foreign volunteer project.
¢. Predetermined plans could be made and adequate personnel could be
earmarked and positioned.
d. It appears possible, especially in the case of existing organizations,
that part of the program could be financed from public contributions.

7
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The disadvantages of Course III (€overt-Overt Permanent) are:

a. Because of the requirement for covert U. S. participation,
control would not be as effective as direct participation makes possible.
b. In some instances it would be more costly, at least initially,
than either Courses I or Il because the public programs would have to

be covertly financed by the U. S. Government,

Course IV (Overt Permanent) appears to have the following advantages:

a. The affiliates would receive guidance and supervision on a permanent
basis from the unit organized in the United States.

b. The public program could be conducted so 'u to provide excellent
justification of activities cmcﬁed with the foreign volunteer project.

c. The affiliates could conduct their programs in such a maoner and
under such titles as to indicate a relationship or affiliation with the organ-
jzation in the United States,

d. Once the programs are underway, it appears possible that pirt
of the program could be financed from public contributions.

The disadvantages of Course IV (Overt Permanent) are:

a, It would be more caostly, at least initially, than either Course 1 |
or Il because the public programs would initially ha.ve to be financed by
the governmeant.

b. The visible relationship between the atfiliate and the U. 5. organ-
ization could be a weakness. (Note: Covert funding would be the sole

clandestine aspect of Course IV.)
‘ 8
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Courses I, II and III if adopted would be the exclusive responsibility
of CIA as regards control and direction. Pre-planning and logistic support
with the Defense Department to the extent possible will be necessary in
each instance. (Course III would involve closer coordination and would
make possible more extensive planning than Courses I and II.)

Course IV is overt in nature, with the sole covert aspect the funding
of the organizations involved. Major responsibility therefore should lie
with the Department of Defense, with ClA supporting on the covert aspects.
Because of its overt nature, Course IV permits the greatest amount of pre-
planning and pre-arrangements vis-a-vis the other courses of action.

Any of the four courses of action listed above would appear to have
the following advantages for the utilization of foreign manpower versus
the “foreign legion” concept as follows:

a. They would be more likely to secure the enthusiasm and support
of other free world nations than a solely U, S.- sponsored foreign legion
volunteer effort. It could conceivably contribute to uniting the {ree worid
to some extent against commaunist-inspired subversion.

b. The United States would be much less susceptible to Soviet
propaganda charges of 'war mongering"” than if it were to establish a
"foreign legion" type force and attempt to hold it in readiness.

c. The cost factoxr would be much more acceptable since training
costs would be largely absorbed within existing military aid programs.

9
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d. A mauch greater flexibility could be achieved with regard to the

type of forces to be employed and the nature of their employment. Forces
to be committed could be readily tailored to meet the demands of the
existing situation.

e. This concept would permit commitment of a volunteer force
largely indigenous to the geographic area in which the emergency exists,
thus relieving it of the stigma of being & force for Western imperialism
in contravention of nationalistic aspirations.

f. U. S. Government sponsorship under this concept can be main-
tained on a secret basis and could be legally deniable.

g. No substantial detraction from regular U, S. military programs
would resuit from this approach.

h, Regular U. 5. foreign military assistance programs would not
be duplicated but rather they would be rendered more immediately

productive in terms of their being more reaponsive to the immediate

threat.

10
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Reference a, iy memorandum dated 28 uotober 1958, Re: Freedom, Inc,
Reference b, Memorandua from Asst. Secretary of Defense (ISA) dated
24 November 1950, Res Freedom, Imcorporated

1. 4. Uhat will bo the size of the operation, such as air, naval
and jungle fighting?

A. The size of the operation cannot be predetermined in this
type oi warfare any move clearly than can limited war
operations be determined besorehand. The magnitude of
the operation will depewd upon the iorces which may be
iavolved, Concotvably, Freedom, Inc. may be coscerned
with sending oi a single infantry battalion or possibly
a foroe as laxge as two divisions, Muoh would depend

- upon the capability o: the opponent and the amount of
assistance that the U, S, deoides to provide, It should
be remembered that in a recent situstion President Rhee
volunteered several divisions, The smount of support
required way depead to a large degree upon the smount oi
Communist volunteer support provided to the opponest,

2. ¢ What will be the nature ol the mechanism under which the
volunteers and equipment would be supplied?

A. Freedom, Inc, snd its toreign affiliates will provide the
organizational structure through which volunteers and
equipment can be supplied as desoribed in my previous memo.

3. &« Considerisg that the scale of operations envisaged would
not be expected to be massive, would it be feesible to
try to accomplish the objectives of the plaa under the
auspioes of CIA?

ULL
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A. The purpose of the plan is to cover situations which are
of suoh magnitude that they are beyond the capability oi
CIA operations and ave still short of dixect U, S. imter-
vention in & limited war, This particular point hes been
disoussed before, resulting in the Seoretary of State
having passed the problem to the Secretary oi Defense Lor
his consideration,

DECLASSIFIED IN F
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4. Q. Could the plen be worked out without resorting to the use
of a oorporate coreign eafiliate structure? ’ Lo

A, It is possible, and considered highly desirable, for sueh ' . !
a plan to work without a corporate foreign aifillate A
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5. q.

A,

6. Geo

A.

7. Q.

A,

YCRG

struoture, The plan recommended and which has been dis~
cussad during previous meetings does not contemplate
corporate atfiliation between Freedom, Inc. (SA snd the
torelgn aifiliates., The United States orgenisation would
sponsor and advise the foreign effiliates but would not
have legal corporate ties between them. The foreiga
affiliates would be separate corporate entities governed
by the corporate law of the country in which they are
established. We sea no way that this would sdd grist to
eneny propagendists beyond the epemy's normal capability
of exploiting any story for propagande,

Will an over-all understending with State comcerninmg the
roles of State, Defense, CIA and participating countries
be worked out?

Yes. (ur efforts up to this poias have been directed
toward te»hlngam upderstanding with all agencies con~
corned and to development of a plan to facilitate proper
understanding and coordination between agencies in the
tuture. The working group seems o offer an ideal mechan-
ism for vesolving this aotion.

Will State brief its smbassador in detall during the
course of oonsideration and implementation of the plan in
particular countries?

This is a matter for determination by the State Depart~
ment in each case just as it would be a matter tor
determination by Defense on the amount of briefing for

a MAAG ochief and other Defense officials stationed in the
areas ooncernsd,

What is the meening of e statement on page 4 of my memor-
andum which indicates only that the U, S. advisor will
“advise the ambassador” on his arrivel in a foreign
oountry?

This statement is intended to mean that the representative
from the United States Freedom, Ino, office would give the
ambassador a detailed briefing im socordsnce with the
approved plan for the establishment of an affiliate ia

the country concerned. It is sot believed that it will be
possible to inform the embassador in advanoe except in
very general terms by cable or dispatch priox to the arri-
val of the Freedom, Inc, representative, The U. S. advisor,
who should be properly authenticated to the smbassador con-
o:rmd.luiil give the ambassador an adequate brieiing upon
his arrival.
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Can the relationghips to the country to which deployed
aud to the sending country be moxe explicitly stated,

a8 to (1) the foreign corporations, (2) the volunteers,
sed (3) U. S. military personnel (including volunteers)?

Relationships regarding the foreiga corporations have
been discussed above, Our relationship with volunteers
will be through thixd parties; in the country of origin
it would be through the foreiga corporatiom; im the
country of combat, it would be through the foreign eamtity
requeating voluateexrs; the U, S, comtrol would be through
fiuanelal asd other support. As vegards U. S. military
persounel, it appears that the methods now employed for
using such personnel im CIA operations would be appli-
cable, These methods ave similer to those used in the
"Flying Tigers.”

what will be the relatiomship ox the U. S. Govermment to
sending ead receiving countries in terma oi agreemensts,
coumni tments, requests for assistance, eto,?

There should be no official overt relationship between
the U, S, Government and the sending and receiving coun-
tries, The purpose for establishing Freedom, Inc. is to
give the U, S, unoifiocial means for avcomplishing ueces-
sary and spproved sissions. It is auticipated that
requests ior assistanoe would heve been made by the re-
ceiving country, screewed snd spproved prior to any
action being taken to have Freedom, Inc, (BA or its
foreign counterparts make any commitments to participate
in any operstion since Freedom, Inc. is designed to step
12 gﬁy when the proposed operation exceeds the capability
] .

will U. S. personnel participate ia raising and trainsing
volunteersy

The volunteers will be reoruited by the foreign sifiliate
mainly from forces now being supported by MAP, The
affiliate may also recruit oertaia persomnel, particularly
officers, from reserve force amd civiliam personsel ro-
giding ia the sending country. U, S, persommel in NAAGS
and training missions will have oaly their mormal relation-
ship with the Armed Forces of the countries im which they
sre stationed. It is possible that U, S. persomnel of
Freedom, Inc, will assist with assembly, indoctrination,
and training in the sending country, and engage in some
training of volunteer units aiter their arrival in the
receiving countries.
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11. ¢,

A.

12, Q.

A.

13. ¢.

A,
14. QO

A,

SECRET

Since the United Svates will not be formally involved,
what would be the reletionship to the ioreign countries
of U, 5, personnel participating?

The same relationships as have existed in the past opera-
tions of a similar nature,

Does U, S, law permit our citizens to become involved in
foreign wilitary operations short of U. S, Government
involvement?

It has been done many times ia the past. 1t is understood
that legal counsel in ISA is sware of mwany aspeots of this
sction, ISA and USD General Counsel could provide sound
guidance on this point. It desired, CIA could be requested
to discuss this with ISA and uSD General Coumgel,

Would dispensation be needed and possible to protect their
individusl rights as cirimens?

This question has been snswered above,

Can the omtline indicste @ scale on which U, S, persomnel
can be utiliged?

This question does not indicate whether it refers to mili-

tary or civilian personnel. The home office oi Freedom,
Ino. would be wholly sanwsed by U, S. personnel approxi-
wately in accordance with the table submitted in my
menorandun for that ofiice, A portion of the persoanel
employed in the main office should be military personnel
possibly reserve officers called to active duty. The
remainder should be civilian employees outside Civil
Service., It is possible to man all of the U, S. personnel
positions by civilian employees outside Civil Service and
retired and resorve officers, MFGR indicates that thexe
is a considerable potential of exceptional officexrs who
would be gvailable for this purpose in a ecivilian status,
U. S. militery personpel oun MAAG and similar duty status
will not participate in the recruiting ox voluateers or
in military operations or Freedom, Inc. or its aifiliates,
HAAG persomnel probably will be involved in the traiming
of Ranger, Commando, end similar units forming a part or
the regular and resexve forces ot a foreign country from
which foreign volunteers msy be reoruited, towever,
these units eve integral to the armed rorces in many
countries today and their unit trainisg is being undertaken
at the present time. No additional burden will be placed
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15. Q.

A.

SR .

on MAAG personnel as a result ox this operation, exeept
that MAAG pexsonnel should emsure that uaits from which
volunteers will be recruited will be in combat readiness,
and at full strength, thereby permitting withdrawal of
trained volunteers whemever required.

Can the plan make more clear the reservation of partici-
pating countries of decision as to the use of their forces
in speciiic situations?

It is obvious that cextain past relations, traditions,

‘amenities, and religious feelings, may influence parti-

oipating countries regarding ereas in which their volun-
teors may be utilized. For exemple, it is doubtiul that
the Chinese Nationalists could be used in some countries
whexe there is antipathy for the Chinese even though the
Nationalists would be eager to send volunteers, FPoli-
tically the Turks might be similarly eager to participate
in any actions in Greece and vice versa. It is also
doubtful if it would be wise to employ Xsraelis in Jordan
or Sudan, The readiness oi the leaders in such countries
as Pakistan, Viet Nam, Nationalist Chima and South Korea,
to furnish volunteer units would need thoughtinl consi~
deration on an ad hoc basis to meet the ciroumstances of
a specific contipgency when it aerises.

DECLASSIFIED IN FULL
Authority: EO 13526

5 Chief, Records & D
Date: eclass Div, WHS

e AL




M

s s O

EO 13526 3.3(b)(1)>25Yrs

AT . \23{
L e
OECLASSIFIED IN PART

, EO 13528
Thief, Records & Daciass Div, WHS

2 mAY 19 W04

26 April 1962

Dear Ed:

SUBJECT: Jose Banzon

Thank you for your memorandum of 23 April, I do indeed
recall the essentials of Jose Banzon's background, although
your note gives us additional material on his capabilities,

Joe has for some yoars, as you know, been working closely
with the ACSI people who are in liaison with J-2, AFPP. This
was certainly true during his tour of duty in Indonesia. Now
that he is back at Camp Murphy we have no reason to believe
that there has been any change in that respect. Whereas I am
sure Banzon could be very helpful to our people, I would be
reluctant to encourage any contact that might convey to ACSI
the impression we are trying to dislodge them from their J-2
beachbead. Any thoughts you might have on the latter point
would be of intereat to me, the meantime I shall forward
your comments on Banzon ihmd ask the latter to

comment on his current it CIA 3’3(&)(') 0SD 3.3“’)( 1)
Sincerely,

..

Office of the Scerctary of Defense & 0«'.! <.d S8z

Chicf, RDD, ESD, WHS Desmond FitzGerald
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23 April 196 § £=
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MEMORANDUM FOR DESMOND FITZGERALD, CIA mmmn S
20n |EW=
From: Brig. Gen. Lansdale mm MM&
s BNeE
Subject: Jose Psason ox~gge

wM&Mhok
E523%358

It has come to my attantion that Colenal Joss Bannon of the
Philippine Army is now stationed at headquarters, Camp Murphy,
Cuenon City. As you know, he has had long and fruitful sxperi-
once in neighboring countries: Indonesis, Vietuam, Lasos, Cam-~

1 don't know what his current duly assigament is, but Joe is
the sert of eparater who undoubtedly is yearning for anothey
. abrosd. Your stations in Southeast As
%ﬂﬂﬂ.gri_p?f%%a-ﬂlﬂ

« 90 I pass bis name slong for some comsideration. CIA 3.3(5)(1)

Jos is & real) charmar, as yom know, with sonsiderable ability
to got closs 10 local military and civilian afficials in thess countries. OSD 3.3(b)( [ )
Not so well known is is wide knowliedge of Filipino loze in Sextheast
Asia, and his akill in making use of that knowledge; I doubt that
anyons eles has guite this same ability, For sxampls, the Royal
Khmoer Orebestra, with ite gesesis ia o Philippine battalion band
in the latter days of the 19th cantury, has unique Filipino londs
into the Cambodian cabinat and to Pringe Sihanouk. There are
similar Filipine londs, going back several genezations, in other
countries, which tis~in uniquely at all levels of society and which
can be made of resl constructive uwss in operxations.

I muntion this because Banson usually is thought of in his
advisory zole on civic action, in which he is an uneevelly imagina~
tive axpert. e was of grest assistance to U.5. advisors in the
pacification campnigns in Vietanm and in the eaxly military civie
action in Laoce, In the Huk campaign in the Philippines, ho acted
as pexsoval suscutive officer for Ramon Mageaysay when Magsay-
say was Secretary of National Defense; among other things, he mads
?n@i“gﬂii?!ﬁﬁn%i%fg 13.Mm-1346

| Secretary, really work.
’ ——
c:“wmn-nnnnvs._ |
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' R SECRETARY MC NAMARA
MEMORANDIM FOR SEPUTY SECRETARY GILPATRIC

Subject: Paychelegy. Special Combat

tnformation. Last Thursday aftermeen, Dr.
Aoy iamait- Daniare of tho ADRGE (¥ raseh et

4 by for an informasl visit,
Gl e -
yours of sxperisnce in perssunel selestion, tvaining,

rations (not enly intalligence, but alve "agtion
m» o mﬂ::‘m: aperations).  We discussed

peansl peyshelogy in escape and avasien. I wes sble 1o
bring him tegether with Admiral Fraskel of DIA, Dr.
Gevden wha 18 just commencing some paych 'm';,h::;.
ing of Avmy Specisl Foress, and Major Baker

sorned with selection of Aly Feree pevssansl for Jungle

Jim.
CIA 3.3(b)0) OSD 3.3(p)( , )
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SUBJECT COMPOSITION OF THE NATIONMAL: (
“PNTELLIGENCE BUREAU F

Dl , PRECEDENCE  ROUT INE

St/¢

DATEDISTR. 23 APRIL 1963

REFGRENCES N P
<in B3O 0553300 ) 3641

m
z
>
3
]

|

i - <14 3.3(5)0 0SD 3.3(b)( ; )

1. PLANS FOR A NATIONAL INTELLIGENCE BUREAU (NIB)
HAVE BEEN DRAWN UP, t;f WILL BE HEADED BY COLONEL BO LWIN,
WHO NOW DIRECTS ;I'HE MlLl;l'ARY INTELLIGENCE SERVICE (MIS), HE
» ! L HAVE FOUR DEPUTIES: THE CURRENT HEADS OF THE SPECIAL
HANCH (U TIN MAUNG MAUNG), CRIMINAL tNVg.:T!GATmN‘ _
-~ FIVISION (LT. COLONEL HLA MAUNG), BUREAU OF SPEC{AL

vV ESTIGATION (U BA NYEIN), AND A FGUR'FH GFF!CAL, NOT

"7 DESIGNATED, FROM THE MIS. THE FOUR UNJTS INVOLVED
WHL IN THEORY BE AMALGAMATED INTO THE NIB WHICH WILL BE
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CLASSIFICATION - DISSEMINATION CONTROLS . N 3351;1
-mmm, DISSEMEXATED BY (W —

DIRECTLY RESPONSIBLE TQ NE WIN.
2. DUE TO THE NECESSITY FOR ENABLING REGULATIONS
TO BE PROMULGATED, THE NIB WILL PROBABLY NOT COME QN:YO
EXISTENCE UNTIL 1 QCTOBER, THE BEGINNING OF THE FISCAL

YEAR, IN THE MEANTIME COLONEL LWIN EXERCISES POLICY
CONTROL OF THE UNITS |NVOLVED THROUGH THE CENTRAL
INTELLIGENCE BOARD WHICH HE CHAIRS.

THIS CONFIRMS AND AMPLIF IES

STATE ARMY NAVY AID AIR CINCPAC
PACFLT ARPAC RACAF. 1A 3.
<IA 3.3(6)(1) 0SD 3.3(b)(

1)
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
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SUSKECT BRIGADIER TIN PE'S DETERIORATING DATE DISTR, 23 aPriL 1963
RELAT JONSHIP WITH GENERAL NE WIN

PRECEDENCE ROUT INE

ban OF REFERENCES N 23448

iNFO,
nace a
DATE ACG
APPRAISA LN

+ APPRAISAL OF CONTENT {5 TENTATIVE,

SOURCE

IR 33X 05D 3305,
1. BRIGADIER SEIN WIN, COMMANDING OFF ICER, CENTRAL

COMMAND AND MEMBER OF REVOLUTIONARY COUNCIL, MADE THE FOLLOWING

REMARK

2. REVOLUTIONARY COUNCIL CHAIRMAN NE WIN 1S CONCERNED

ABOUT MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE BRIGADIER TIN PE'S INCREASING

STATURE AND WOULD PREFER TO HAVE BRIGADIERS SAN YU AND SEIN

WIN AS THE NUMBER TWO AND THREE MEN ON THE REVOLUT |ONARY

COUNCIL. IN ORDER TO HAVE REASONS FOR DOWNGRADING TIN PE,

NE WIN HAS ALLOWED HIM TO GO AHEAD WITH HIS PLAN.TO ESTABLISH
GONFIDENTHA— |
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W 23448
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VILLAGE COOPERATIVES IN PEGU AND THARRAWADDY DISTRICTS, s EX<-
PECTING THAT IT WILL FAIL. THE AREA IN WHICH THE VILLAGE
COOPERATIVES ARE TO BE ESTABLISHED 1S RECLAIMED LAND WHICH

DURING THE MONSOONS WILL BE HEAVILY INUNDATED RENDERING

THE LAND USELESS. ciA 3.3(b)(1)
3. ONE EXAMPLE STATED BY SEIN WIN FOR NE WIN'S DIS- 0SD 3.3(b)( 1.)

TRUST OF TIN PE HAD TO DO WITH THE RECENT PURCHASE OF RICE

PADDY BY PRIVATE RICE MILLERS. AFTER ANNOUNCING THAT IN

1964 THE PRIVATE RICE MILLERS WOULD NOT BE PERMITTED TO

BUY RICE AND WOULD ACT ONLY AS MILLERS FOR THE UNION OF BURMA

AGRICULTURAL MARKETING BOARD (UBAMB), NE WIN TOOK A TRIP UP

COUNTRY. IN INTERVIEWS WITH RICE CULTIVATORS HE LEARNED . |

THAT THEY WERE HAVING DIFFICULTY SELLING THEIR PADDY TO Ao B e sass D, WHE

THE PRIVATE RICE MILLERS BECAUSE THE LATTER WERE ToLb BY — MAY 19 2014

THE LOCAL SECURITY AND ADMINISTRATION COUNCIL (SAC) THAT

HEY WERE NO LONGER PERMITTED TO BUY RICE. NE WIN WAS

/NCENSED WHEN HE LEARNED THIS AND CALLED FOR BRIGADIER TIN

FE WHO ADMITTED THAT T WAS HE WHO TOLD THE CENTRAL SAC TO

ISSUE THE ORDER PROHIBITING THE PRIVATE RICE MILLERS FROM BUYING
THE PADDY DURIN@ THE CURRENT CROP YEAR. NE WIN THEN DIRECTED

TIN PE TO RESCIND THE ORDER AND SEVERLY -CHASTISED HiM.
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